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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NAER

Place of Incorporation

Hong Kong

Registered Office

21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong

Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Internet Websites

Lam Soon Hong Kong Group
http://www.lamsoon.com

Home Care Business
http://www.axe.com.hk/hk

Edible Oil Business
http://www.lamsoonoil.com
https://www.haomama.com

Flour Business
http://www.hkflourmills.com
http://www.gsflour.com

Hong Leong Group
http://www.hongleong.com

a1 A A2 3t R
&8
M ERE

BEBHMARIBAE T EBREL 2155

RHBFETE

BEBNRESFELCHERAT
BEBEBFERNERI1SIFEMP 171
171281716

B AR Uk
HIEE B EE

http://www.lamsoon.com

REBEXR
http://www.axe.com.hk/hk

RAMPIERET
http://www.lamsoonoil.com
https:.//www.haomama.com

LIRE S
http://www.hkflourmills.com
http://www.gsflour.com

BiE £

http://www.hongleong.com

MIE(EB)BRLAR | — B _ZFFRH



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBRE

Revenue (HK$ million)

WACEEHZT)

Profit Attributable to
Shareholders (HK$ million)
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Consolidated Results

mERE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBRE

Year ended 30 June
BEAA=THLEE

(HKS$ million) 2020 2019 2018 2017
(BEEET) et LM —E—HE —T—)\E —E—+t&
Revenue WA 5,119 5,316 5,374 4,814
GP% EFR =R 23% 22% 21% 21%
Profit before taxation RRE AR R 400 398 391 319
Taxation Fi1g (83) (58) (65) (46)
Profit for the year INEERF 317 340 326 273
Non-controlling interests i HRER - - _ _
Profit attributable to AAFRE

shareholders of the FEfRER

Company 317 340 326 273

Consolidated Assets and Liabilities
mEEERAERE
At 30 June
RAB=+H

(HKS$ million) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
(BEET) b dml L T fFE T\ —ZET—+tHF _—T—RF
Total assets BEE 3,215 3,062 2,871 2,561 2,317
Total liabilities wmaE (738) (727) (701) (655) (586)
Non-controlling interests  JEiR 4% - (11) (11) (11) (11)
Equity attributable to AAFRR

shareholders of the FEfLRER

Company 2,477 2,324 2,159 1,895 1,720

MIE(BE)ERAA | —E_2FFH 5



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

Key Financial Indicators

FENBER
Year ended 30 June
BEAA=THLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
el T NF —T-)\& Tt —T-—nE
Earnings per share (HK$) BREF (B T)
Basic HR 1.34 1.44 1.38 1.15 0.85
Diluted b1 1.34 1.43 1.37 1.12 0.84
Dividend per share (HK$) ERRE(BT) 0.45 0.44 0.40 0.35 0.28
Equity-debt ratio* REREFL & 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0
* Equity-debt ratio is defined as the ratio of the total equity * REERLEERARQATRREGBEZEFE
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company to net debt. BHEWLEE - FEXBEHEEERRER
Net debt represents leases liabilities less cash and short term funds. RHES -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEEIRERES

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Lam Soon
(Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”), | present herewith the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group” or “Lam Soon”) for the financial year ended on 30 June
2020.

Despite the challenging external factors of COVID-19 pandemic,
geopolitical tensions and social unrest in Hong Kong, the Group
recorded only a slight decrease both in revenue at HK$5,119
million and net profit at HK$317 million versus last year. However,
it is worthy to note of further improvement in overall gross margin
by 1.6% to 23.3%. As at 30 June 2020, the Group was in sound
financial health with a cash balance of HK$1,530 million.

The Group Food Segment faced significant headwind as COVID-19
adversely impacted our business-to-business customers in hotel,
restaurant, catering and food manufacturing. This negative
factor was somewhat mitigated through our strong performance
in business-to-consumer products, particularly in e-commerce.
Overall Food Segment revenue and profit from operations
decreased by 5.0% and 6.7% respectively. The Home Care
Segment performed solidly to register a 4.5% revenue growth and
significant improvement in net profit partially aided by favourable
material costs.

RAEREXBE(RB)ERIA(A2F N2
ExE((ESE)) REARARENBLH
(ERF&E IR HENBE-S-2F XA
STREMBFEEZFR -

BEEBZE20198 MBS R ([ COVID-19])
BB HEBERZBERURTEFHEEA
BEEZHIBRZREE  NEBHAIEE
g A R #5 R A& %8 #5,119,000,000 7T & 78 1
317,000,0007C > EE L FHEHLEE R BE T F% o
R ESIENEERBEANRE—FES
T16%%E233% c R—ZE-_FEEXA=
B AEBEZHERRER ReERBEE
1,530,000,0007T °

BRCOVID-198 K MBS - BE - EREER
BREENGEHPERA CEFEETAY
& XEENRRITERERMES - RFE
TEHEBEEACER  BHREFTAEES
ARG REBEE—ERELIERTE—AAR
Z-BMOMBHBBRARELEND BT
T5.0%K6.7%  REEES>HRREE WK
AERAS5% » HMRINBEERA > BoZERE
RIEI AR R AR o
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEEIREHRES

The Directors are recommending a final dividend of HK$0.31 per
share at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. In addition to
the interim dividend of HK$0.14 per share paid earlier this year,
total dividend for the year amounts to HK$0.45 per share. The
total payout for this financial year at HK$0.45 represents the fifth
consecutive year of growth in dividend per share.

The Group remained steadfast to strengthen its growth
fundamentals with implementation of a number of long term
initiatives. We continued to invest in development of innovative
and value-added products, widening online and offline distribution
across China and enhancing our production infrastructure and
capabilities. Our state-of-the-art Yixing flour factory in Jiangsu
Province is now up and running. The specialty fats facility is
proceeding on track and is expected to be operational in the
second half of FY20/21. Notwithstanding the present adverse
macro business environment, we remain cautiously optimistic that
our business in providing trustworthy and high quality essential
food and home care products will remain on an even keel. Our
management team working from a solid foundation in planning
and execution forged over the years is well prepared to face the
challenges ahead.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, bankers, customers, and employees
for their unwavering support and commitment to the Group in
good and bad times. | would also like to record our appreciation
to Mr. Joseph LEUNG who retired as Group Managing Director, for
his contribution over the last 8 years of services with the Group.
We wish him well in his next life chapter. A warm welcome is
extended to Mr. WONG Cho Fai who assumed the position of
Group Managing Director in July 2020 and | look forward to his
positive contribution. Moving forward, while external situations
are likely to remain challenging in the near future, we are also
excited about the opportunities ahead and will endeavor to grow
the businesses of the Group and to build its capital value.

KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 August 2020

ESEENISETHRRAFES LIRER
HREERBH®03IT - KRAFERERE
PR EERER14TH  AFERER
BRABRBY045T - XBBFEEFTIKEE
#0457 EELFERREBEER -

AEERENBHIZEBERSERHEE LM
BEERER KMEBREME AN R
HEMR BAEGTENKLERET 28 i
BERRMANEEERRERED - RMALT
HENEREDBEMNTE  ROZHKRE -
BRMEREELESET B BER=
T/ C-UBBRFETH¥FRALE -BEHA
NEBEBERENH - ERADAEELE
AR RARATEERSRENESRR
FEEEEMNEBERES TR - BANEE
EEZFRELTRENRIRHBTER
R L RRATRE -

BANBRRESEIOVRHHHEMOBRE - R
T - BFREENIEERFRHEHREHNE
EXHRER c FATELRHREZEEE
BREERZBAERBENFHRRAREER
BAEH 2B/ - RARERRT —BALER
B —{IER - RFARNBDEEELERZ
ZEFLARAREESALE B XA
TOMBFREELEREM - REKRK - BE
ERAHMER - SERBRATRE A RE - B
MEHRRNBBRIEE BB HIBRRE
BHEBARTHEREE -

B8 “E_ZEFNAZ+tHRH
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FE R

Financial Results

The adverse impact of COVID-19 pandemic and the Hong Kong
social unrest affected our business-to-business customers in hotel,
bakery, catering and food manufacturing. This was partly offset
by our growth in e-commerce and Fast Moving Consumer Goods
segments of Edible Oil and Home Care. The Group sales revenue
decreased by 3.7% from the previous year. Gross profit margin
improved by 1.6 percentage points to 23.3% as a result of our
product premiumisation strategy and favourable material costs
for Flour and Home Care. The Group invested in higher marketing
spend to enhance brand equity and in emerging e-commence
channels to maintain business momentum. Profits attributable to
shareholders decreased by 6.8% to HK$317 million due to higher
taxation from additional provision for People’s Republic of China
("PRC") dividends withholding tax.

B RE

ZH2019BAMRFEER ([ COVID-19]) EHBEHF
FEEREBHLENHE  FETRMARE
EoBE BERRERBEENGEHEE
BzEF HEEWRMERABRREE
BNEFEBERNREERDSINIERADBS
eH - MEFMAL  NEBMNHEEWRATE
3.7% c HREFIWE R SRR UK EH
RXEEENEIEMBEAE  EFERS

1.6[EEDEE23.3% - AEBBRAFESZ M
TUREREEE  URERFTENETEHR
REUHFERBRDE  RRELGZFRD
6.8% £ B #317,000,0007T » bt T3 R N F
ZEARINE([HE )R EFENHER MR
BB -
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FE R

Business Review
Food Segment

Food Segment recorded revenues of HK$4,375 million, a 5.0%
reduction against the previous year and profits from operations
slipped 6.7% to HK$368 million, mainly due to flour volume
reduction under the challenging backdrop of the COVID-19
pandemic.

During the year, our Flour Division continues to pursue its long-
term strategy to transform from an ingredient supplier to a
solutions provider. This includes introduction of new high-quality
and higher-margin products to cater for the evolving customer
and consumer demands, opening additional baking centres to
provide hands-on technical training and solutions to our business-
to-business customers, deepening and widening our distribution
coverage and strengthening our production facilities and supply
chain.

In the midst of the intensifying U.S.-China trade relationship,
the Group has conducted rigorous sourcing and evaluation of
various wheat types from PRC and Europe with the aim to lessen
its current dependence on U.S., Canada and Australia wheat. This
exercise has not only yielded cost savings but enabled the Group to
identify and use various wheat sources that provide bespoke mixes
that support our expanding flour products portfolio.

Our highest quality Royal Sakura flour continues to penetrate into
the market, albeit at a slower pace than previously planned due
to disruption of product demonstrations and roadshows from the
pandemic lockdowns. Our specialty fats factory in Jintan continues
to proceed on track and is expected to be operational in fourth
quarter of FY20/21. Specialty fats is a complementary product
to the Group’s business with overlapping targeted customers,
synergistic distribution network, and operational and system
requirements. This will add a strong new pillar to fuel our business
growth in the near future.

E 3 )

A O
B oo

)

=]

B EPi15 W A B 4,375,000,0007C @ B
EERDP50%  RERFTB6T%E B
368,000,0007t © EEHRECOVID-19%IEH
kB TEBHEERD ©

FR - RANED S PEBERARBRE
R ESRBRLRUER - HP 8
BHELSmEBNBRESHHER  UaR
EFREBEHMAENTR  BREZHE
i REMNEEREEXRACEFRME
BEREAE IR BRG R RERBEAEM
B SHERE - WA EMINEERE R AR -

EEFESBETEHRCNBERD  AEEY
REFEREMNNSERENEET T BEN
BRI BRWRBLDERHEER - NEX
RBMNNERREE o WRTEEHERE » TfE
REMMAENBR R EASENEREF - MEE
PEFFETRESEOME - R FERMAR
BRANERERAS -

EFEemEN[HRE @REESATS &
ERRBHHERSEHERR NN EDE
HEBESRLRESEE - RMNESENEE
IR R IR T BIET - RATR =T =8
HFEEENFRAEE - BEAERAIEERE
BNEWER BE-—BWNEREF - HBES
HREUAREERRAGRER - EER/EMAET
AR B ETSIR RILR T WA AL
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FE R

Business Review (continued)
Food Segment (continued)

For Edible Oil, it registered robust revenue growth in the year
under review against the challenge of higher raw material costs
of corn and peanut. Our core Knife Oil business-to-consumer
business had strong growth, both offline in South China and in
online e-commerce. This successfully offset our decline in catering
and institutional business-to-business. In the very competitive
Guangzhou market, Knife grew significantly and reached a new
high of 6.3% market value share.' Knife grew and expanded
in e-commerce via expanding channels into different and wider
platforms, enriching the online specific product portfolio and
implementing new attractive sales and marketing programmes.
In the mature Hong Kong market, Knife delivered solid growth
and continued to lead in the very important peanut segment with
total market share in value and volume at 27.9% and 31.9%
respectively.? To capture the prevailing health-conscious trend
among consumers, Knife continued to strengthen its premium
range offering, with the addition of Supreme Peanut Blended
Oil, Supreme Corn Oil and Supreme Canola Qil, which sets a
foundation for growth in future.

The Group commenced distribution of Manuka Health honey
products in PRC via cross border e-commerce platform in the
current year and expects to expand to cover more channels,
especially e-commerce, in the upcoming financial year, to provide
a new source of future growth.

L Lam Soon’s calculation based in part on data reported by Nielsen
through its Retail Index Service for the Edible Oil (Consumer Pack)
Category for the rolling year June 2020 (from July 2019 to June
2020), for the China Guangdong market. (Copyright @2020, The
Nielsen Company.)

Z Lam Soon’s calculation based in part on data reported by Nielsen
through its Retail Index Service for the Edible Oil Category from July
2018 to June 2020 for Total Supermarkets & Convenience Stores in
Hong Kong. (Copyright @2020, The Nielsen Company.)

MR (EB

BB @)
BRDHE)

HMATMERARRIEERM B RN ERALE
EAHEREEENRAERIES o RFHZ
[T RS2 EHEEER 2B NER
WENETEXURELETEKHIER T ®
PR c ERMIRE T RMAETEARKELE
HOEEX ZEBHN TR - REIHRUANEM
miE DB IXIBER  HEEEMEERHN

SH63% - ABKREERZTREERERZ
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SIOMHEEREHTE DB | EETEHK
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FE R

Business Review (continued)
Home Care Segment

Home Care Segment revenue grew 4.5% to HK$744 million
and profits from operations increased 40.1% to HK$84 million.
This was mainly attributed to consolidation of distributorships,
consumer trade up through AXE premiumisation, strong
momentum of e-commerce and favourable material costs.

In Hong Kong, we upheld strong market leadership in the
dishwashing detergent category with combined value and
volume market share at 39.0% and 51.0%.° In Guangdong, we
maintained our No. 2 market position in dishwashing detergent
category with a combined market share of 17.6% in value and
16.4% in volume respectively.

We will continue to execute our long-term strategy to transform
Home Care to a wider range household business via rejuvenating
the AXE brand, trading up consumers in dishwashing detergent
and expanding beyond dishwashing, e.g. Fabric Care. COVID-19
is a threat to most businesses but for Home Care, it is also an
opportunity. We strengthened our portfolio and business through
the launch of the anti-bacteria range of Triple Actions and
Artemisia and accelerated our momentum in our firmly established
online channels to pave the way for our further geographical
expansion and growth in the future.

E Lam Soon’s calculation based in part on data reported by Nielsen
through its Retail Index Service for the Dishwashing Detergent
Category from July 2018 to June 2020 for Total Supermarkets,
Convenience Stores and Drug Stores in Hong Kong. (Copyright
@2020, The Nielsen Company.)

& Lam Soon’s calculation based in part on data reported by Nielsen
through its Retail Index Service for the Dishwashing Liquid
Category for the rolling year June 2020 (from July 2019 to June
2020), for the China Guangdong market. (Copyright @2020, The
Nielsen Company.)

BB @)
REHE 5 5

FEEEIBHNBRABRISHEERE
744,000,000 © A& REFILMN40.1% ZE 8
#£84,000,0007t - TEZHRDHEES - B
BIEEE ISRLEEEEEEEESEE
m o ETERAESTEL R A F KRR K
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EHEEREENTSNELAB176% K
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REWRE G EBUINNEE (Fl B EE)
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FEEmMS AT —EKE - RMEBESY
[ZEWR IR [EEINERIERTERES
MEK  WHEFEERIMNELRER MR T 3
REE > BRARRNE—SHIGERRIER
SR o

3 HENTESXBHREREERLAEE
W AZ2RERTERERE K== —N
FLtAZEZZE-ZFEAABEEBBATE -
BEAEREERENESNEIE - (REFMA
©2020 > EEHRLAA)

4 BMIENTEFXBOREREERE+HE
ERENHMBEEZBEINBE S -ZTF X
BRBEE(I=ZE-AELtAE=-T_F
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©2020 > EEHRAA)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FE R

Outlook

The financial year just ended has been a year marked with volatility
and uncertainty as geo-political tensions dampened business
sentiment and the COVID-19 pandemic disrupted economic and
social activities. It has been a year many had not foreseen nor
experienced before. The Group through its strong fundamentals
and support of its customers has managed to emerge with minor
revenue and profit slippages. It is steadfast to pursue its business
agenda to strengthen its products and market support while
solidifying its distribution channels and relations with its valued
clients. It continues with its plan to introduce new products in
higher valued flour and specialty fats from its new plants in Yixing
and soon Jintan and in superior offerings of Edible Oil under the
Supreme series and in Home Care under new product categories.
The Group has taken necessary steps to risk manage its supply
chain as best as it can, heightened improved health and safety
measures and worked more closely with our customers to assure
the availability of our products to our consumers.

The outlook for the new financial year 2020/21 is expected to
be challenging as the COVID-19 pandemic continues to ripple
across the globe while communities and businesses struggle to
cope with the resultant disruption and to operate under a new
normal. The stage - two effects of disrupted businesses, job losses
and economic retrenchment will start to bite deeper in the new
financial year and economic activities may remain soft. Against this
backdrop, the Group enters financial year 2020/21 with vigilance
and discipline but mindful that its strong financial position and
business fundamentals will be a safeguard and allow it to grow
when the economic recovery emerges.

Financial Review

Management has been provided with the following key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) to manage its business, through
evaluating, controlling and setting strategies to improve
performance. Such KPIs include revenue, gross profit margin, net
profit attributable to shareholders, inventory and trade receivable
turnover days.

fRE

MERNTREESZ R T BERTEEYE &
ERMGEHABRRERZME TEBENR > UR
COVID- 19X BEFELEBREEETHEE - E2R
ZARKBEILEBN—F - AEBEHEEH
BMANEBUREFNXIEEUKINREE )
BABRARBRTE AEBMBELBHET
HEHKARE UWREERRHTSEXE B
ZEHDHERBUREESEEFNEER - K&
EEEHTE EEERTFRAANSEHNIK
PHRESEREMRESELENER  YE£
#|ZJSHREAHERRXEEBERHEHH
Em AEECERBMSEER  ERARER
EREEAMER  NREERZEEE I
HEFFEEREE  URREEEFRMHEKM
WER -

BEZECOVID- 19K IFHEBLEZREL r MLE
REEZ HEHAERNBERLEREET
BB FN_-_ZT=T —-HBRFEEANSES
TmkE c EHNTHEE » EXPHE - K
REBEHENE _RBEFELERENRE -
BETEARENAER - EHESET » X&H
BRELEGREBEAZTZT " —UHEF
B EE2BRHBANUBERIRELERE
RAE—BRE ZEHTELEEBHBEESGE
BR o

BF %5 Bl

UTHEEXRRER(EZEXRRER] » Bt
REEERAEQAREEEE  BERMAEFMG
ERREITRBUNEER IBERRAELE
WA - BRR - BREGFEN  FERE
ZEYERABEERE
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FE R

Financial Review (continued)
Group Results

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group's revenue decreased
by 3.7% to HK$5,119 million. The decrease was mainly due to
the depreciation of the Renminbi which 85% of Group revenue
was denominated and coupled with adverse impact of COVID-19
pandemic and the Hong Kong social unrest affected our business-
to-business customers in hotel, bakery, catering and food
manufacturing. The Group’s gross profit margin improved by
1.6 percentage points to 23.3% due to product premiumisation
strategy and favourable material costs for Flour and Home Care.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 30 June 2020, the Group had a cash balance of HK$1,530
million (2019: HK$1,318 million). This was mainly attributable to
the net cash generated from operating activities. About 76% of
these funds were denominated in Renminbi, 17% in Hong Kong
dollars and 7% in United States dollars.

Banking facilities available to Group companies and not yet drawn
as at 30 June 2020 amounted to HK$611 million (2019: HK$721
million).

The Group centralises all the financing and treasury activities at
corporate level. There are internal controls over the application of
financial and hedging instruments which can only be employed to
manage and mitigate the commodity price risk and currency risk
for trade purposes.

At 30 June 2020, the inventory turnover days' were 62 days (2019:
59 days). The trade receivable turnover days? remained at a stable
level of 21 days (2019: 24 days).

In view of the strong liquidity and financial position, management
believes the Group will have sufficient resources to fund its daily
operations and capital expenditure commitments.

! The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the closing
balances divided by the preceding 3 months’ cost of sales and
multiplied by 91 days.

Z The calculation of trade receivables turnover days is based on the

closing balances divided by the preceding 3 months’ revenue and
multiplied by 91 days.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FE R

Financial Review (continued)
Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group has operations in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau. Local costs and revenue are primarily denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars, and Macau Patacas.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases, which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to
which the transactions relate. The Group monitors its exposure by
considering factors including, but not limited to, exchange rate
movement of the relevant foreign exchange currencies as well
as the Group's cash flow requirements to ensure that its foreign
exchange exposure is kept at an acceptable level. Details of the
foreign currency exposure of the Group are set out in note 24(d) to
the financial statements.

Net exchange losses for the year is set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

Capital Expenditure

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group invested a total
sum of HK$93 million (2019: HK$121 million) on construction of
new plant and new production lines in China and acquisition of
other plant equipment.

Details of the capital expenditure commitments are set out in note
25(a) to the financial statements.
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Human Resources

As at 30 June 2020, there were 1,735 employees in the Group.
Annual increment and year-end performance bonus mechanism
were incorporated in the Group’s remuneration policy to retain,
reward and motivate individuals for their contributions to the
Group. Share options were granted to eligible employees to
recognise their contribution and provide incentives to achieve
better performance in coming years.

Relation with Shareholders and Investors

The Company encourages two-way communication with its
stakeholders. Extensive information about the Group’s activities
is provided in the Annual and Interim Reports, which are sent to
shareholders. The Group also maintains a number of websites
to provide a wide range of information on the Group and its
businesses.
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS

Site visit of Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited by July 2019
YiXing Government officials 2019%7AH
HEDBFHE I&HmRIEERERAF

China International Import Expo November 2019
TEREENEES 20195F11 A
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS

Lam Soon Cup — Chinese Team'’s Eastern Qualification Trials of
the iba.UIBC.Cup of Bakers

M — R IBAH REEMAETERERBERED B

October-November 2019
2019%F108-114

Product launch of “Royal Sakura” Japanese Style Bread Flour

BERMARABYRHE

24

November 2019
2019% 118
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS

Baking Centres
B s

Hong Kong
&g

Shenzhen
I

Fuzhou

M

Jinan
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YiXing
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
SELE

Honour & Awards

REERRIT

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited was honoured as a “Caring
Company” for the thirteenth consecutive years by the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service
FHIE(EB)BRAREE T =FEEBLSRBBHS R
[BREEIEIER

Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited
was awarded “National Excellent Enterprise with
Foreign Investment — Excellent Tax Payment and
Turnover” by the China Association of Enterprises
with Foreign Investment and the Shenzhen
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment
OEIRER AR A REFEIHREREDHS R
HIBRELEHENE [ZEERIIERELE-EF
2 |

Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils Company Limited
was awarded “National Excellent Enterprise with
Foreign Investment — Excellent Tax Payment and
Turnover” by the China Association of Enterprises
with Foreign Investment and the Shenzhen
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment
AYIEIEHEE R L AEHBEIEHRE DX HE KRR
SBRELXHENE [ZEEFIERELE-EF
i3 |

L
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
SELE

Honour & Awards

REERRIT

Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils Company Limited was awarded

“"Top 100 Manufacturers of Guangdong” and “Top 500 Enterprises of
Guangdong” by the Guangdong Provincial Enterprise Confederation
and the Guangdong Provincial Association of Entrepreneurs

Y EIEREERAREERECEMESRERELERGSHEE [ER
FLEZ10058 | K& [EREZE500% |

Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited

was awarded “2019 Guangdong Top 100 Baking
Enterprises — Top 10 Baking Ingredients Companies”
by the Guangdong Light Industrial Council and

the China Association of Bakery & Confectionery
Industry
WOMEEERERATNEEREAEIXBSERERE
BRERMBERAEXDSEE [2019BREMELER

I REFE — HUE FR R 31058
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
SELE

Honour & Awards

REERRIT

Lam Soon (Sichuan) Food Company Limited was awarded
“National Demonstration Project of Safe Grain and Qil-
Demonstration Processing Enterprise” by the China National
Association of Grain Sector
MIE(MIDERERARETEERTEDGSMEE [ 2EMUEH
RE T2 — REMN T3 |

Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited was
awarded “Demonstration Enterprise of Corporate
Safety Culture Construction in Nanshan, Shenzhen”
by the Emergency Management Bureau of Shenzhen
Municipality
OERERERARER)ITELERESERR
BEIRYTELBEERE CERREEE]
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  #HERERBRES

The Group’s Sustainability Mission
and Vision

The Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”) and
together with its subsidiaries referred to as the (“Group”) is built
on the strong heritage of value creation for our stakeholders and
communities within which we operate. Over the years, we have
taken a progressive approach in integrating sustainability into
our businesses, towards a stronger, more resilient group. We are
committed to: growing our businesses responsibly, balancing
environmental with economic considerations, as well as creating
a positive impact for our stakeholders and contributing to our
communities.

Our Values

The Group continues to strive for excellence in its day-to-day
business operations and embrace the following core values in all
aspects:

Honour To conduct business with honour

Human resources To enhance the quality of human resources —
as the essence of management excellence

Entrepreneurship To pursue management vision and foster
entrepreneurship

Innovation To nurture and be committed to innovation

Quality To consistently provide goods and services of
the highest quality at competitive prices

Progress To continuously improve existing operations
and to position for expansion and new
opportunities

Unity To ensure oneness in purpose, harmony and
friendship in the pursuit of prosperity for all

Social To create wealth for the betterment of

responsibility society

These intrinsic values form a major part of the Group’s core value
system and have served as the foundation for its sustainable
growth and development.

Our Business

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited has been publicly listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange since 1972. The Group is
headquartered in Hong Kong and is principally engaged in the
manufacturing, trading and processing of food and home care
products in Hong Kong, the PRC and Macau. The Group comprises
a broad portfolio of famous brands, which include “Knife”, “Red
Lantern”, “AXE", “Labour”, “Golden Statue”, “American Roses”,
“Royal Sakura” and “Golden Double Peach”.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  #HERERBRES

About This Report

This is the fourth Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
report of Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited, highlighting its ESG
performance, with disclosure reference made to the ESG Reporting
Guide as described in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of the Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and Guidance set out by
the Stock Exchange. The Group has complied with all the “comply
or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide during
the Reporting Period.

This ESG report covers the Group’s overall performance in two
subject areas, namely, Environmental aspect of its major business
operations for the manufacture and distribution of food and
home care products in Hong Kong and the Mainland China, which
accounted for 98% of the Group’s total revenue, and Social aspect
of the Group, from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 (the “Reporting
Period”), unless otherwise stated. The Group’s major operational
sites were:

(i) the Lam Soon Building in Hong Kong, which comprises the
headquarters office and an edible oil plant;

(ii) the Shenzhen office in Shekou, Shenzhen of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC");

(iii) the five flour mills in Shekou (Shenzhen), Yixing, Jintan,
Qionglai and Qingzhou of the PRC;

(iv) the edible oil plant in Shekou, Shenzhen of the PRC; and

(v) the homecare product plant in Guangzhou of the PRC.

The environmental performance of the business operation in
Macau, sales offices in Beijing and Shanghai were not reported
as they constituted insignificant environmental impacts during
the Reporting Period. The flour mill in Yixing has been relocated
to a new factory and recommenced operation since June 2019.
No other major operational changes had occurred during the
Reporting Period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

R -HERER

Our Approach

With growing public expectations of corporate responsibility, the
Group takes a proactive approach to integrate ESG matters as
part of its business strategies. The Group believes that an effective
ESG management structure is a key factor to business success,
and has therefore adopted an integrated four-pillar approach to
its overall sustainability management to manage ESG issues on
the environment, human capital, corporate governance and social
capital.
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Towards a Empowering Conducting Business Caring for
Greener Future our People with Honour our Community
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The Group sees the benefits of proactively tackling ESG issues,
believing that its strategic focus on sustainability and its ability to
manage associated ESG risks can create not only tangible value
for its business, but also long-term values for its employees,
customers, the environment and the broader society, towards a
stronger and more resilient group.

The Group has dedicated its effort to ensuring its compliance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirements as described in the
Listing Rules. The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
oversees the sustainability management and performance of
the Group and has the overall responsibility for the Group’s
ESG strategy and reporting. For details of the Group’s corporate
governance practices, please refer to the “Corporate Governance
Report” Section of this annual report.
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RE  #HERERBRES

Stakeholder Engagement

Beyond corporate governance, the Group conducts stakeholder
engagement exercises and materiality assessments to ensure its
business focus remains relevant to them.

The Group values input and feedback of its stakeholders as they
bring potential insights to the Group's business. Key stakeholders
including investors, shareholders and employees have been
involved in regular engagement sessions to discuss and review
areas of attention in order to help the Group meets its expected
growth and prepares for future challenges. Through identifying
areas of improvement and maintaining close communication with
various stakeholders, the Group aims to consistently enhance its
ESG performance and management.

Stakeholders’ Feedback

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our ESG approach
and performance. Please give your suggestions or share your views
with us via email at webmaster@lamsoon.com.

Performance Highlights

The Group’s remarkable achievements are recognised by the local
governments and various trade associations. Awards and grants
received by its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period included:

Hong Kong Flour Mills Limited

o “American Roses” and “Golden Statue” were awarded
“Hong Kong Top Brand” by the Chinese Manufacturers’
Association of Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Brand
Development Council

Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited

o “Demonstration Enterprise of Corporate Safety Culture
Construction in Nanshan, Shenzhen” awarded by the
Emergency Management Bureau of Shenzhen Municipality*

o “National Excellent Enterprise with Foreign Investment
- Excellent Tax Payment and Turnover” awarded by the
China Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment
and the Shenzhen Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment

o “2019 Guangdong Top 100 Baking Enterprises — Top
10 Baking Ingredients Companies” awarded by the
Guangdong Light Industrial Council and the China
Association of Bakery & Confectionery Industry

For identification purpose only
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Performance Highlights (ontinueq)

Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited

o Received a special reward for high-quality development
from Yixing Agriculture Bureau in 2019°
o Received “2019 Yixing City Xinzhuang Street Advanced

Enterprise” from the office of Yixing City Xinzhuang Street”

Jiangsu Lam Soon Food Company Limited

o Received a grant as one of the top 20 leading enterprises
in agricultural industry from Rural Industry Planning and
Development Division of Bureau of Agriculture and Rural
Affairs in Changzhou City Jintan District”

o Received an A-line subsidy for technological transformation
project from Rural Industry Planning and Development
Division of Bureau of Agriculture and Rural Affairs in
Changzhou City Jintan District

Lam Soon (Sichuan) Food Company Limited

o “National Demonstration Project of Safe Grain and Oil
— Demonstration Processing Enterprise” awarded by the
China National Association of Grain Sector

Lam Soon Products Supply (Hong Kong) Company Limited

o “Knife” was awarded “Hong Kong Premier Brand” by the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and the
Hong Kong Brand Development Council

o “Red Lantern” was awarded “Hong Kong Top Brand” by
the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and
the Hong Kong Brand Development Council

Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible QOils Company Limited

o “Top 100 Manufacturers of Guangdong” and “Top 500
Enterprises of Guangdong” awarded by the Guangdong
Provincial Enterprise Confederation and the Guangdong
Provincial Association of Entrepreneurs

o “National Excellent Enterprise with Foreign Investment
— Excellent Tax Payment and Turnover” awarded by the
China Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment
and the Shenzhen Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment

Lam Soon Cleaning & Caring Laboratories (Hong Kong) Company

Limited

o “AXE" and “Labour” were awarded “Hong Kong Top
Brand” were awarded by the Chinese Manufacturers’
Association of Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Brand
Development Council
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Pillar 1: "Towards a Greener Future”

We aim to reduce waste and improve efficiency in energy
and use of resources, starting from the humblest of steps
and seek to entrench the philosophy into a Group-wide
awareness and culture of caring for the environment.

The Group pledges to make continuous improvement in managing
and monitoring its emissions, wastewater, solid waste and noise
pollution. Every year, through engaging external licensed testing
laboratories, various environmental tests are conducted to
evaluate the capability of existing facilities on meeting regulatory
and environmental requirements and national standards based
on the parameters obtained. Starting from 2013, the Group
has also appointed qualified third-party institutions to verify its
greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission, as part of the commitment
to the government’s Emission Trading Scheme. The flour mill in
Shekou is audited annually to ensure that their GHG emission
quantification and reporting meet the requirements set out in the
Specification with Guidance for Quantification and Reporting of
the Organisation’s GHG Emissions (SZDB/Z 69-2012).

Moreover, the ISO 14001 Environmental Management System
has been adopted across most of the Group’s operation sites. The
system enables that effective and timely emergency mechanism
is in place in case of severe environmental pollution incidents, as
well as keeps track of the Group's energy efficiency and emission
reduction targets.

The Group strictly abides by the laws, rules and regulations
enforced in relation to environmental protection and pollution
control, including but not limited to the following:

. Environmental Protection Law of the PRC;

o Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
PRC;

. Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution;

o Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste;

. Soil Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC;

° Directory of National Hazardous Wastes;

o The Administrative Measures for Hazardous Waste Transfer
Manifests;

o Regulations on Environmental Protection in Guangdong
Province;
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

o Regulations on Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste in Guangdong Province;

° Measures for the Management of Hazardous Waste
Transfer in Shenzhen;

o Environmental Protection Regulations of Shenzhen Special
Economic Zone; and

o Measures for the Management of Municipal Domestic
Waste (Decree No. 157 of the Ministry of Construction of
the PRQC).

In addition to complying with laws and regulations at national/
provincial/city level, the Group also follows industry standards to
monitor its environmental performances.

For air emissions, the Group is committed to strict compliance
with:

° The Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Boilers
(DB44/765-2019 and GB 13271-2014);

. The Emission Limits of Air Pollutants (DB44/27-2001)
in Guangdong Province;

. The Integrated Emission Standard for Air Pollutants (GB
16297-1996); and
o The Regional and Integrated Emission Standard of Air

Pollutants (DB37/2376-2019) in Shandong Province.
For water pollutants, the Group ensures that its discharge meets:

. The Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants (DB44/26-2001) in
Guangdong Province;

o The National Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard
(GB 8978-1996); and
o Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal

Sewers (GB/T 31962-2015).

For noise pollution, the Group strictly controls the noise generated
from production activities by complying with:

o the Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises Noise at
Boundary (GB 12348-2008).

No cases of material non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating to
air and greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
were recorded during the Reporting Period.
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(continued)
Emissions
Air Pollutant Emissions

All air-borne emissions were strictly monitored by the Ministry of
Environmental Protection of the PRC. All sampling results were
within permissible levels stated by various emission standards,
including the Determination of Toxic Substances in Workplace
Air — Chloride (GB Z/T 160.37-2004). During the Reporting Period,
stationary fuel source of natural gas contributed to the emissions
of 7.78 kg of nitrogen oxides (“NO.") and 0.02 kg of sulphur
oxides (“SOx").

Respiratory suspended particles (“RSP”), NOx and SOy are emitted
from fuel consumption of company vehicles. During the Reporting
Period, vehicles were used for transportation and delivery of
products, contributing to the emissions of 126.97 kg of NOj,
0.70 kg of SOy and 3.68 kg of RSP. Despite the similar fuel
consumption pattern as the last reporting period, there was a
substantial increase in NOx emission due to the change in emission
factors based on the updated model of EMFAC-HK for vehicle
emission calculation.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s business operation
resulted in GHG emission of 38,598.29 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent (“tC0O.eq."”), mainly carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous
oxide and hydro fluorocarbons. The overall intensity of the GHG
emissions for the Groups was 0.05 tCO,eq./tonnes of production
volume. The GHG reported was from the following activities and
scopes:

. Direct (scope 1) GHG emissions from the combustion of
various fuels in stationary and mobile sources, and release
of refrigerants;

o Energy Indirect (scope 2) GHG emissions from purchased
electricity; and
° Other Indirect (scope 3) GHG emissions from business air

travel, freshwater and sewage processing, and paper waste
disposal at landfills.
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(continued) (&
Emissions (continued) BER(E)
Greenhouse Gas Emissions (continued) BEREHK (&)
GHG Emissions Total GHG
Scope of GHG Emissions Emission sources (in tCO2eq.) emissions (%)
BERBHERE BERE
BERBHMEE BER R IR (-—EmEE P E(%)
Scope 1 Direct emission 0.76%
EE1EEZEER
Combustion of fuels in stationary sources Natural gas KRR 103.41
EE IR ZREHR & Liquefied Petroleum 0.09
Gas ("LPG")
B AER
(MEfeAHERD
Diesel £€5h 0.57
Biofuel ¥R ¥ 3.32
Combustion of fuels in mobiles sources Diesel 47/ 2.90
RERBHR R Petrol 5 H 125.12
LPG BRI BHR 0.78
Refrigerants 85 & 57.71
Scope 2 Energy indirect emission 98.30%
SRS 28E R BB
Purchased electricity 37,943.17
Scope 3 Other indirect emission 0.94%
EiRE 3 H th B HE K
Paper waste disposed of at landfills 105.25
HIHERE R
Freshwater processing 68.15
RKEE
Sewage processing 31.49
Bk
Business air travel 156.33
M E iR
Total GHG emission BEREBHKEAE 38,598.29 100%
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(continued)
Emissions (continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (continued)

Notes:

- Emission factors (“EFs”) were made reference to Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules and their referred documentation as set out by the
Stock Exchange, unless stated otherwise.

- EF of 0.50 kg CO2eq./kWh was adopted for purchased electricity in
Hong Kong. EF of 0.54 kg CO2eq./kWh was adopted for purchased
electricity in Guangzhou and Shenzhen. For the five flour mills in
various provinces of the PRC, their corresponding grid EFs were
adopted, i.e., 0.71, 0.61, and 0.65 kg COzeq./kWh for Shandong,
Sichuan, and Jiangsu province, respectively.

- EF of biofuel used in canteen operations was assumed to be
0.54 tCO2eq./tonne, by referring to the Methanol Institute
Specifications.

- CO: emissions from the Group’s business air travels were reported
with accordance to the International Civil Aviation Organisation
("ICAO") Carbon Emission Calculator.

Hazardous Waste

The Group has appointed licensed operators/applied industry
standard to collect and handle hazardous waste prior to disposal.

The Group generated an approximate total of 20,772 kg
of hazardous waste with an intensity of 0.03 kg/tonnes of
production volume in the Reporting Period. Hazardous wastes
generated include pesticide waste, waste with organic solvent,
waste with mineral oil, waste with dye and coating, copper,
selenium and mercury-containing wastes and other wastes (i.e.
waste containers, capacitors and oil wipes). During the Reporting
Period, there was a substantial increase in the generation of
other wastes as specified in the Directory of National Hazardous
Wastes. Some of the reasons included the change of hazardous
waste classification code from HWO04-Pesticide Waste to HW49-
Others and the disposal of a total of 7,780 kg of empty chemical
containers as per the latest regulatory requirements set by the
Ministry of Environmental Protection of the PRC. The increase in
the waste with organic solvent was caused by end of production
of certain homecare products and the expired chemicals returned
from its original equipment manufacturers.
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(&)

Emissions (continued) BEmk (&)
Hazardous Waste (continued) EEEZY(E)
Hazardous Waste generated in 2019/20 R2019 2005 EENEEBREY
Waste
Generated
Types of Waste (in kg)
FELBEEYE
EEEYyER (F%)
Other waste listed on the Directory of National Hazardous Wastes 14,558
2% (EREREYEHE) WHEMEEY
Pesticide waste (from treatment within the factory premises) 3,682
BHEEZEY CREIRSGHANEE)
Waste with organic solvent 1,299
EEMABNEEY
Waste with mineral oil 525
EEYENEEY
Mercury-containing waste (from waste lighting products) 306
EREBEEY) CREBZERHER)
Waste with dye and coating 244
SRR BHNEEY
Acid waste 80
MUEEY
Selenium-containing waste 78
EWEEEY
Total 20,772
st
Non-hazardous Waste BEZEEY

Centralised waste collection, storage and transfer facilities for on-
site solid waste are available in accordance with national standards
to maximise recycling rates. Non-hazardous waste is collected by
registered waste collectors for proper disposal. Commercial waste
is transferred to designated collection points; other recyclables,
including scrap metals and waste paper, are collected and
repurposed by qualified recyclers.

ARBEXGEFEAREPRABEYRE - FRHM
BRRSERBENNRE  UKRARERS
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MIE(BE)ERAA | —E_2FFH 39



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  #HERERBRES

Pillar 1: "Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Emissions (continued)
Non-hazardous Waste (continued)

The Group generated an approximate total of 957,931 kg of non-
hazardous waste with an intensity of 1.16 kg/tonnes of production
volume in the Reporting Period. Non-hazardous wastes generated
comprised of commercial, paper, plastic, scrap metal, sludge
and other wastes. Other wastes included sampling and liquid
wastes from manufacturing plants. During the Reporting Period,
the retrofitting of production lines in the flour mills in Jintan and
Shekou and the recyclable scrap waste accumulated in the edible
oil plant gave rise to the generation of scrap metal.

XE—[BRERRRRK]

(&)
BEEk (#8)
HEEREY (E)

AEERRERBHAEENIS7,BTTREE
BREY BEAEWEE116TR - IEEMN
BEBRZYOEEE KR BH ELE-
SRREMBEY HUEEYEEERBER
BRETMAREERZEY - REHHER - €8
RO BNEESHREURBERABRER
WABRRAAERNEETESE -

Non-hazardous Waste generated in 2019/20 2019 205 EENEEEEY
Waste
Generated
Types of Waste Sources of Waste (in kg)
FEEXBREYE
EEEY R BEEE YRR (F®)
Commercial waste Tissue paper, food wastes and other daily office wastes 355,080
BRERY B/ EHRHEMBBERARBREY
Scrap metal Waste metal containers, equipment parts and accessories 219,195
BELE BERETERN - REIM4REM
Sludge Sludge from on-site pre-treatment facilities 187,960
35 RSTHERERENSRE
Waste plastic Waste woven bags and plastic bottles 175,055
BEEEH BEERA R R ERIR
Waste paper Packaging paper boxes, waste documents and magazines 20,641
BEAK BERE  EEXHRER
Total 957,931
#Et
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(continued)
Measures to Mitigate Emissions
Production Activity

The Group has made relentless efforts on emission reduction
through various initiatives and policies. The edible oil plant in
Shekou operates a natural gas-fuelled boiler with high efficiency
and low NO, emissions. The flour mills are equipped with dust
collector systems for collection and removal of airborne dust
generated during the flour production processes. The captured
flour dust is filtered by a pulse-jet dust collector and the exhaust
gas is discharged by a 15-metre high exhaust cylinder.

Vehicle and Canteen Operation

All the self-owned heavy-duty vehicle fleet and passenger cars
have been upgraded to hybrids to meet the Euro V vehicle
emission standard. To further reduce air emissions, the edible
oil plant in Shekou has upgraded all its forklift trucks to electric-
powered models, resulting in lower fuel consumption and exhaust
emissions. The Group has an internal guideline on the purchase of
hybrid electric vehicles to further minimise fuel consumption and
GHG emission. The staff canteen in the new flour mill in Yixing
uses electricity rather than LPG to reduce air pollution caused by
catering service. Fume exhaust generated from canteen operations
in other plants is purified by electrostatic precipitator before
releasing into the atmosphere.

Wastes Reduction and Initiatives

To prevent potential harm to human health through contamination
of soil, air and water resources, the Group is committed to
ensuring proper and immediate treatment of hazardous waste and
waste that requires strict control, by engaging qualified companies
for collection and further handling.

Additionally, the Group has adopted electronic communication
for a paperless office. Where printing is necessary, double-sided
printing is recommended. The use of smart-print application
also saves paper and ink. Waste recycling bins are installed in
the offices to encourage paper recycling. Over 80% of the non-
hazardous wastes were recycled during the Reporting Period,
achieving with 100% recycling rates for scrap metal, waste paper,
plastic and sludge.
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(continued)

Measures to Mitigate Emissions (continued)
Wastes Reduction and Initiatives (continued)

The home care product plant has established the following
initiatives to reduce waste generation:

(i) The plant establishes the “Waste Management Procedure”
and sets up various recycling stations, to facilitate better
classification of waste for storage and disposal; and

(i) The plant generates economic benefits from non-hazardous
waste, by selling them to recognised recycling companies.

Use of Resources
Energy Consumption

The total energy consumed by the Group was 61,466,375
Kilowatt-hour ("kWh"), with an overall energy intensity of 74.18
kWh/tonnes of production volume during the Reporting Period.
Types of energy consumed included electricity, natural gas, LPG,
biofuel, petrol and diesel. The table below shows the energy
consumption, energy intensity in terms of the Group’s production
volume.

Energy Consumption in 2019/20
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2019, 205 WAL R H &

Energy
Intensity
Direct/indirect (kWh/tonnes
energy consumption Consumption of production
Resources (unit) (kwh) volume)
HiEBEaREE HEE REREE
ER (TEE) (TEE WEE)
Electricity 60,502,263 kWh 60,502,263 73.02
£ 60,502,263 F FL B
For stationary combustion
BREERRE
Natural gas 50,762 m? 501,634 0.61
RAR 50,7623 5 K
LPG 30 kg 418 0.001
BIERHAR 30F %=
Diesel 126 L 1,260 0.002
SEH 1267+
Petrol 93 L 824 0.001
bt 93F#
Biofuel 6,150 L 29,859 0.04
E YRR 6,1507
For mobile combustion
ARSERRIRE
Petrol 46,415 L 413,148 0.50
b 46,415F
Diesel 1,049 L 10,488 0.01
558 1,049F
LPG 465 kg 6,481 0.01
BILBEHBR 465F 7

Note: Energy density of 9,500 BTU/pound was adopted for biofuel
calculation, by referring to the Methanol: Properties And Uses
published by SGS.

it - BBSESGSHRMN(RE  BHEAR)
R EB R EFTE,500 BTUSTEEWIRES o
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(continued)
Use of Resources (continued)
Water Consumption

Water consumed by its Hong Kong's operations was supplied by
Hong Kong’s Water Supplies Department, whilst water consumed
by the China’s operations was sourced from the municipal water
supply system in Mainland China. There was no issue identified
in sourcing water that was fit for purpose. The plants have water
tanks in place to store water for emergency use. During the
Reporting Period, the Group consumed 160,658 m? of freshwater,
with a water intensity of 0.19 m3/tonnes of production volume.

Wastewater treatment

All discharges from production and domestic activities are pre-
treated on-site through regularly maintained grease trap and
septic tanks. On-site wastewater treatment facilities' are installed
in the edible oil plant in Shekou and the home care product plant
for advanced sewage treatments. The pre-treated wastewater
will either enter the sewage collection system into a nearby
wastewater treatment facility or directly discharge into the Pearl
River Basin.

During the Reporting Period, the treated effluent discharged
by the home care products plant and edible oil plant in Shekou
fulfilled the requirements of permitted discharge limits set by
the Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants (DB44/26-2001). For
the home care products plant, the measurable chemical oxygen
demand (COD) in the treated wastewater was strictly controlled
within 90 mg/L, meeting the first-class discharge standard of
Guangzhou of the PRC. The edible oil plant in Shekou performs
regular wastewater testing and the sampling results of COD, pH
value, total suspended solids (TSS), and oil and grease were all
within the permissible levels during the Reporting Period.

! Since the flour mills did not generate industrial wastewater, and
the wastewater generated by the edible oil plant in Hong Kong

was minimal, there were no on-site wastewater treatment facilities

provided in these plants.
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(continued)
Use of Resources (continued)
Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives

The Group continues exploring new energy-saving opportunities
and energy-efficient technologies for its premises and production
lines. When selecting cooling system for the office in Hong Kong,
priority is always given to the energy-efficient equipment with
Grade 1 energy label.

Installation of solar photovoltaic (“"PV") system

To support the use of clean energy, the Group took part in the
CLP Power Hong Kong Limited (“CLP") Renewable Energy Feed-
in Tariff Scheme by installing a 220-kW solar PV system on the
rooftop of Lam Soon Building in Hong Kong. The solar PV system
commenced operation in November 2019 and supplied electricity
of 139,389 kWh to CLP’s power grid as at 30 June 2020.

Installation of LED lighting system

With the support of the CLP Eco Building Fund, the Group has
gradually replaced the T8 fluorescent lamps in office of the Hong
Kong Lam Soon Building with the smart LED lighting systems,
which saved up to 65% of electricity usage in lighting system
during the Reporting Period. Some of the plants in Mainland China
are also equipped with LED lighting system. The refurbishment
work is expected to be scaled up across the business units in Hong
Kong and Mainland China.

System and machine upgrades

In the edible oil plant in Shekou, system upgrades on
programmable logic controllers (“PLCs"”) have been completed for
all production lines during the Reporting Period. The strengthened
control over production equipment reduces engine idling and
thus improves the overall energy efficiency. Old machinery (e.qg.,
blowers and motors) was replaced with energy-saving models.
Designed with energy efficiency up to 94%, a new natural gas
boiler with a fully automatic condensing system for energy-saving
is in operation at the edible oil plant in Shekou since 2019.
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(continued)
Use of Resources (continued)
Water Use Efficiency Initiatives

The Group persistently reduces water loss by maintaining and
upgrading its water supply pipeline system, minimises water
consumption through upgrading water-saving devices and re-
uses wastewater whenever possible. Some water-saving initiatives
include:

(i) Establishing regulations on water management to regulate
water consumption practices of employees;

(ii) Using cooling water recirculation system for cooling towers;

(iii) Installing automatic faucets;

(iv) Re-using purified reverse osmosis (“RO") water for toilet
flushing and greening of production areas; and

(v) Posting promotional materials and reminders to encourage
water conservation practices.

The home care product plant has formulated Regulations on
Water Use Management during the Reporting Period to regulate
the rational use of water and promote the conservation of water
resources. In addition, the Administration Department of the
Group is expediting the replacement of old water dispensers to
reduce the consumption of bottled water.

Packaging Materials

Packaging materials consumed by the Group were mainly
recyclable materials including plastic, cotton bags and paper.
Packaging materials were sourced from external suppliers, with
constant inspection on quality, particularly on their safety and
hygiene performances. During the Reporting Period, a total of
16,726.86 tonnes of packaging materials have been consumed
for the protection of finished products, resulting in a consumption
intensity of 0.02 tonnes/tonnes of production volume.
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Pillar 1: "Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Use of Resources (continued)
Packaging Materials (continued)

The Group has been proactively exploring ways to reduce the use
of packaging materials and promoting products with replaceable
packaging to reduce the consumption of plastic pumps. During the
Reporting Period, various production lines have reduced the use
of non-recyclable resources for packaging. In particular, the flour
mills have implemented the following practices:

o Make use of recyclable materials for packaging materials;

o Reduce the consumption of packaging materials by bulk
delivery;

o Re-use packaging materials to achieve zero packaging
waste; and

o Evaluate packaging suppliers annually for compliance
assurance.

The edible oil plant in Hong Kong has implemented the following
practices:

o Light packaging has been applied for bulk transportation;

o Various re-using and recycling methods have been applied
to non-food packaging materials, such as re-using as
turnover box, or recycling by recognised handlers; and

o Evaluating packaging suppliers annually for compliance
assurance.

In addition, the edible oil plants in both Hong Kong and Shekou
replaced polyvinyl chloride (“PVC") based labelling materials with
those made of polyethylene terephthalate (“PET”). The edible oil
plant in Shekou consumed less plastic for packaging by adoption
of simplified packaging methods.
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Use of Resources (continued)
Packaging Materials (continued)

Packaging Materials Consumption in 2019/20
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(#)

ERER )
BEME(E)

2019, 20F B EMRIHFE

Consumption

Type of Material Material (in tonnes)
MEHER R SHFEE (W)
Plastic Plastic bags, bottles, handles, caps and pumps 8,133.79
2 BRI MF BF  EFEER

Paper Paper bags, boxes, labels and cardboards 6,607.78
KR T EBRER

Metal Metal containers 1,429.39
k] SBRE

Cotton Cotton bags 533.58
1w meR

Fibre and cotton Packet lines 22.32
HERRED NaB

Total 16,726.86
At

The Environment and Natural Resources
Significant Impacts of Activities on the Environment

The Group constantly monitors its air emission, wastewater
discharge, and noise level to ensure minimal impacts on the
surrounding environment.

To strengthen its environmental management, internal procedures
are in place with clear roles and responsibilities assigned to various
departments for ensuring efficient utilisation of resources. For
instance, the Group carried out regular maintenance of machines
and equipment so as to optimise the operational efficiency and to
prevent excessive noise generation. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not receive any complaints from the surrounding
communities regarding air pollution, odour, noise, or night light
pollution.
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Pillar 1: "Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
The Environment and Natural Resources (continued)

Significant Impacts of Activities on the Environment
(continued)

Electricity consumption, which accounted for over 98% of
the Group’s total GHG emission, remains the largest source
of GHG emissions for the Group during the Reporting Period.
To demonstrate its determination to lower overall energy
consumption, the Group has phased out old equipment, upgraded
lighting system and participated in the CLP clean energy initiative
to optimise energy efficiency, which aims to reduce electricity
consumption and align the practices in regions where it operates
in.

As part of the Group’s management strategy, all business
operations except the edible oil plant in Hong Kong have deployed
the ISO 14001 Environmental Management System to manage
their impact and strive for continuous improvements. Apart from
integrating environmental considerations into the procurement
processes, the Group also gives priority to sustainable materials
and adopts advanced environmental technologies whenever
feasible.

Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

We aim to create a diverse, welcoming culture and a safe
working environment in which our people are engaged,
nurtured and empowered to reveal their full potential.

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group regards human resources (“HR") as its most valuable
asset. With a mission to create values for its employees, the
Group offers attractive career prospects, a wide variety of learning
opportunities and a safe working environment.
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

The Group is in compliance with all applicable laws of Hong Kong
and the PRC regarding labour rights and employment, included but
not limited to:

- Employment Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong;

- Minimum Wage Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong;

- Employees’ Compensation Ordinance of the Laws of Hong
Kong;

- Labour Law of the PRC;

- Labour Contract Law of the PRC; and

- Social Insurance Law of the PRC.

No non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare had been identified during the Reporting
Period.

Employment

The Group provides competitive remuneration with various
benefits to attract and retain talents. Employment package
is regularly reviewed with consideration of the market trend,
benchmarking the industry’s salary and benefit information
through salary survey reports conducted by professional
consultants. Annual salary increment and year-end performance
bonus mechanism have been incorporated in the Group’s
remuneration policy. Share options are also granted to the Group’s
eligible employees in recognition of their contributions.

Employees in the PRC are entitled to year-end bonus, social
security insurance and housing fund. Year-end bonus, life and
health insurance are provided to employees in Hong Kong.
Additionally, staff sale, meals and transportation are provided to
employees. Fair terms on working hours, holidays, termination of
contract, fringe benefits and leave entitlement are stipulated in the
employment contracts signed between employees and the Group.
Overtime work shall be applied through submission of application
forms and approved by departmental supervisors. Any disputes
will be settled according to the Group’s appeal procedures in an
equitable and prompt manner.
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(continued)
Our People
The Group had a total of 1,735 employees as of 30 June 2020,

all were full-time employees. The total workforce categorised by
gender, age group and geographical region are shown below:

Total Workforce (%) by Gender
EHRIEI D EE DB (%)

56 and above @
56 R A E

Female
peg i3
43%

Male
B

57%

46-55
46-558%
21%

THEZ THEFERMHWET ]
(#&)

RMEWET

RZBE-ZEFEARA=1+H F~EBEHHE1,735

HEE MR EWES - BMHH - FHRA
BRI EE D KIS E D BBIIRAT ¢

Total Workforce (%) by Age Group
RERARBISNEB HBRR(%)

@® 1325
18-255%
4%

3%

26-35
26-355%
33%

36-455%
39%

Total Workforce (%) by Geographical Region
BB DNEE HRB(%)

Hong Kong
&g
12%

Macau
P
1%

Mainland China
FR B K R
87%
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Equal Opportunity

Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. The employees are not discriminated
against or deprived of such opportunities on the basis of gender,
ethnic background, religion, colour, sexual orientation, age,
marital status, family status, retirement, disability, pregnancy or
any other discrimination prohibited by applicable laws of Hong
Kong and the PRC.

Appraisal System

The Group has a standardised appraisal system to evaluate
employees’ performances, assess their capabilities and determine
whether their abilities are in line with the Group’s business
development. It also provides a basis for promotion, salary
increment and a communication platform for employees and
management to set mutually agreed and measurable performance
standards, as well as career development opportunities.

Employee Health and Safety

The safety and well-being of employees is the core concern of the
Group. As such, the Group strictly complies with all applicable
laws and regulations in relation to occupational health and safety
("OHS"), including but not limited to the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases, the Hong Kong
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), and Hong Kong Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group
also has OHS systems and policies in place to manage occupational
health and safety issues across the entire business operations.
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Employee Health and Safety (continued)
Regular medical examination

Apart from mandatory health check-up before employment,
annual or biennial check-ups are also offered to employees based
on their employment categories and nature. Frontline workers in
the PRC undergo end of term check-ups to ensure that no OHS-
related health issues are developed during their employment.
Employees exposing to high occupational health risks are offered
with occupational health checks in accordance with the statutory
requirements. Appropriate personal protective equipment (“PPE")
is provided to employees based on their duties performed. Offices
and canteens are assessed by qualified institutions to ensure
that they meet applicable national standards regarding indoor
environmental pollution control.

Hazard Prevention and Control

Noise reduction devices have been installed in the equipment such
as exhaust fans, air compressors and grinders in accordance with
the requirements of the Environmental Impact Assessment Report
conducted by the Group’s appointed agencies. Acoustic meters
have been installed for all working areas to further improving the
monitoring processes.

To reduce workers’ exposure to flour dust, effective dust
collection devices are installed at all flour mills to ensure that
the airborne dust concentration does not exceed regulatory
exposure standards. To minimise explosion hazard, the flour
mills have deployed various explosion protection systems (e.g.,
explosion-proof lighting system, flameless vent installations on
dust collectors) and maintained compliance with the following
regulatory requirements, which include:

o Safety Regulations for Dust Explosion Prevention and
Protection (GB15577-2018);

o Safety regulations for the protection of dust explosion for
grain processing (GB17440-2008);

o Guide for pressure venting of dust explosions (GBT15605-
2008); and

o Safety Specifications for Dedusting System Used in Dust

Explosion Hazardous Area (AQ4273-2016).

When purchasing office furniture, the Group selects
formaldehyde-free products and gives preference to wood
products from FSC-certified forests to ensure that its employees
work in a safe environment.
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Employee Health and Safety (continued)
Reaction to the COVID-19 outbreak

The health and safety of employees in times of the pandemic
remains the Group’s primary concern. To contain the spread of
COVID-19 and to protect the health and safety of its employees,
the Group has implemented special arrangements and stepped up
precautionary measures, aiming to reduce the risk of infection.

Special arrangements and preventive measures adopted by the
Group included:

o Adopt flexible work arrangements (e.g., work-from-home
arrangement, rotating shifts);

o Postpone non-essential travel to countries where there are
confirmed cases of COVID-19;

o Request self-quarantine for staff members who have
travelled overseas recently;

o Conduct internal questionnaire to understand employees’
health conditions after travelling abroad and collect
feedback;

o Arrange body temperature check before entering Lam Soon
offices and plants; and

o Provide hand sanitisers and surgical masks in the
workplace.

Development and Training

With human resources as one of the core values, the Group
believes that strengthening the capabilities of employees can
benefit both the Group and employees themselves. Training needs
are identified through appraisal sessions with employees. Thus, the
training provided can effectively address below objectives:

(i) Facilitate the achievement of the Group's and/or its
departmental targets;
(ii) Increase productivity in every aspect of working processes;

(iii) Enhance employees’ satisfaction; and
(iv)  Assist employees’ career development.
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(continued)
Development and Training (continued)

The training courses vary from mandatory training and skill
enhancement to the more advanced supervisory skills and
managerial development, targeted employees of various levels.
During the Reporting Period, employees have been provided with
both internal and external training on numerous areas including
occupational health and safety, customer services, product
knowledge, management systems, communication skills, risk
management, data security and financial budgeting.

Staff members are also encouraged to attend e-learning classes,
seminars, team building activities and knowledge sharing events
for enhancing their knowledge and skills. The Group will provide
subsidy or full reimbursement on the course fees for eligible staff
under the training policy.

Employee Engagement

Employees are always kept informed of the Group's key projects,
future directions and latest market strategies, activities and social
events in the industry through notice boards, intranet, meetings,
annual conferences and the internal e-newsletter, namely E Post.
In the PRC, a dedicated mediation team, led by the trade union, is
set up to improve the Group’s internal communication. Employees
can raise concerns regarding workplace and personal issues and
obtain speedy resolutions to the issues.

The Group also arranges various onboarding training activities to
help new employees adapt to the company culture. During the
Reporting Period, the Group organised group meetings, team-
building activities and various tours to enhance employees’ sense
of belonging and foster staff relationship. Some of the activities
organised during the Reporting Period include:

o Lam Soon Annual Conference and team building activities
(4-5 July 2019);
o Dananshan hiking competition organised by the Lam Soon

Labour Union in Shekou during the Double Ninth Festival
(20 October 2019);

o A team building tour in Xunliao Bay for the production
division of the flour mill in Shekou (November 2019); and
o Technology exchange session and parent-child baking

activity jointly held with the Yixing City Product Quality
Supervision & Inspection Institute (31 May 2020).
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Labour Standards

The Human Resources Department continues to implement
comprehensive checking system during the recruitment process
to ensure compliance with all the applicable laws regarding
employment and labour standards, such as the Employment
Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong and Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labour of the PRC.

The Group will take appropriate disciplinary action against
anyone who is in breach of any applicable laws, regulations, and
ordinance. No non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group relating to preventing
the use of child and forced labour had been identified during the
Reporting Period.

Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with
Honour”

We aim to uphold good business ethics and integrity and to
develop long term relationships with our business partners
based upon fairness, mutual trust and benefit.

Operating Practices

The Group places highest regards to integrity and professional
ethics. It operates its businesses in an honest, accountable and
fair manner which offers safe, reliable and quality products. At
the same time, the Group accomplishes its social responsibility by
addressing the needs of the local community.
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Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with
Honour” (continued)

Product Responsibility

Product Safety and Quality

Product safety is of paramount importance to the Group. The
Group complies with applicable laws of Hong Kong and the PRC
and relevant international standards on product safety and recalls,
which include but not limited to:

For food products:

. Food Safety Law of the PRC;

o National Food Safety Standard for the Use of Food
Additives;

° Administrative Measures for Food Recalls;

o Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance of the Laws
of Hong Kong;

. Food Adulteration (Metallic Contamination) Regulations;
and

o Food Recall Guidelines in Hong Kong.

For home care products:

o National Food Safety Standard — Detergent; and
o Technical Specification for Safety of Soaps and Detergents.

The Group fulfils relevant product quality, product safety and
food labelling requirements and meets various internationally
recognised standards. All the Group’s business operations possess
the I1ISO 9001 Quality Management System certification. The
flour mills and edible oil plants are certified to ISO 22000 Food
Safety Management System. The four flour mills in Shekou,
Jintan, Qionglai and Qingzhou as well as the edible oil plants
are accredited with Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point
(HACCP) certification. The flour mills in Yixing and Jintan and the
edible oil plant in Shekou are certified to FSSC22000 Food Safety
System Certification. The home care product plant is accredited
with the China Environmental Labelling Products Certification for
fulfilling the control requirements for hazardous substances in raw
materials or products, pollutants in the factory and environmental
policy in the production processes.
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Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with
Honour” (continued)

Product Responsibility (continued)
Product Safety and Quality (continued)

To ensure that raw materials (including packaging) comply with
related product safety or quality standards, tests are conducted
by the Quality Assurance Department against pre-defined
specifications. Same for work in progress and finished products to
ensure compliance. Qualified testing organisations are engaged
to validate the test results and issue independent test reports. The
test results shall meet relevant national and industrial standards
before proceeding to production or distribution. Any materials
or products that fail to meet the required standards will be
labelled, isolated and assessed by related departments. Causes of
defective products will be analysed and rectifying measures will
be implemented by relevant departments. The Group also deploys
standard procedures on sanitation of food plants and associated
equipment to maintain a high hygiene standard throughout the
production process.

Any reported case regarding product quality or safety will be
investigated and dealt with promptly and responsibly, putting
public health, safety and benefits on top priority. Products required
to be recalled after assessments will undergo a process according
to the Group’s product recall policy.

Product Labelling and Advertising

The Group has its own labelling control policy to ensure that
both the design of labels and information shown on labels are in
accordance with the General Standard for the Labelling of Pre-
Packaged Foods (GB7718-2011) in Mainland China and Food and
Drugs (Composition and Labelling) Regulations in Hong Kong.
Labels are required to be approved by its Legal Department and
Quality Assurance Department with records filed. For edible oils
and flour products, the food label contains nutritional profile
and the composition of the product. For home care products,
the product label provides information on the main ingredients,
dosage instructions, directions for use and safety precautions of
the product.
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Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with
Honour” (continued)

Supply Chain Management

The Group’s procurement policy outlines three underlying
principles on procurement management:

(i) Just-in-time inventory model: Buy only what the business
operation needs with speculative behaviour prohibited;

(i) Source from local suppliers to reduce transportation cost;
and

(i) Source for high quality and competitive products to meet
the business strategy of the Group.

The policy states the Group’s procurement strategy and provides
guidelines and procedures on procurement processes such as
sourcing new suppliers, assessing existing suppliers, managing
suppliers in breach of the policy, tendering, quality assurance and
payment/refund arrangements. Suppliers are selected and rated
based on a set of criteria, in terms of product price and quality,
timeliness of delivery, payment terms, food safety and after-sales
service. The Group constantly reviews the policies and has updated
the marking scheme for supplier evaluation set out in the Supplier
Management Policy during the Reporting Period.

It is essential to engage employees in maintaining, monitoring
and improving the Group’s overall procurement management. The
Group encourages employees to take proactive, comprehensive
and stringent measures in the process of procurement, to
avoid unnecessary loss and ensure utilisation of its resources in
accomplishing the production, supply and sales targets.

The Group considers the quality of raw materials of paramount
importance to ensure the safety of finished food products.
Background, permits, licences and certificates of suppliers are
checked to ensure their compliance with food safety policies and
standards. Products sourced from suppliers are subject to multiple
tests to ensure they are of national food safety standards. The flour
mills and the edible oil plant evaluate their raw material suppliers
every six months for compliance assurance, and collect suppliers’
activity logs on a regular basis for quality assurance. Suppliers of
packaging materials are audited against their safety and hygiene
performances annually. Suppliers must carry out rectifications if
non-conformities have been identified. The Group also enters into
contract with suppliers to ensure that they meet occupational
health and safety standards while performing their works.
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Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with
Honour” (continued)

Customer Services Management

As part of its ongoing effort to transform from an ingredient
supplier into a solutions provider, the Group has set up 4 baking
centres in Jintan, Fuzhou, Shenzhen and YiXing to increase
awareness among business-to-business customers and strengthen
technical support to industry partners.

During the period of COVID-19, the Group has adopted live
streaming platform to carry out a series of programmes such as
Japanese bread baking demonstration, new product introduction,
seminars on healthy flour ingredients and training programmes on
product knowledge. The Company has collaborated with Wang
Sen International Bakery Western-Food College to participate in a
Live stream “Baking World Champion” to provide information and
technical skills on the usage of our flour products.

The Group strives to improve public well-being by promoting healthy
lifestyle. Its “Good Mother” website (https:/Awvww.haomama.com) and
Knife Oil Facebook aim to share resources about healthy and balanced
lifestyle with the public. Moreover, the Group produces and shows
videos through social media platforms on which registered dietitians
introduce nutritional values of its products, shares cooking recipes
prepared with nutritious ingredients and organises workshops to
promote healthy diets.

For any marketing and promotional activities, the Group ensures
that relevant activities comply with applicable laws and regulations
such as the Advertisement Law of the PRC. Neither false nor
misleading contents shall be contained in any promotional
channels. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not record
any cases of material non-compliance with laws and regulations
regarding health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided.
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Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with
Honour” (continued)

Customer Services Management (continued)
Customer Communication

The Group values any complaint or feedback from customers as it
does not only allow the Group to have a better understanding of
customers’ concerns, but also point to the need for improvement
in product and service quality. The Group also pays special
attention to enquiries regarding health and safety aspects and
tries its best to help customers better understand its products
and to strengthen customers’ confidence in its brands. The Group
pledges to handle any enquiry or complaint cases according to
the standard procedure established, provide prompt response and
keep traceable records of the cases in its system. To ensure that all
complaints are resolved to customers’ satisfaction, complainants
would be invited to rate their level of satisfaction and provide
feedback regarding their complaint cases after the cases are
resolved.

Intellectual Property (“IP”) Rights

The Group strives to protect its own IP rights and respects
third party IP rights according to all related applicable laws and
regulations. It registers new IPs (including trademarks, designs and
patents) in different parts of the world, renews existing IP rights,
manages the use of IPs, and keeps track of IP infringement by
other parties. The Group reserves the right to take legal actions
against any alleged infringement.

The Group also ensures its service providers, suppliers or business
partners undertake and warrant that all their deliverables or
products are their original creation and/or do not infringe any
third party’s IP rights. Infringers are liable to specified appropriate
consequences in the event of a breach.

Data Protection

The Group strictly follows its policy, manual and guideline, and
procedure on protecting customer data. Before collecting personal
data from customers, customers are informed of the purposes
of data collection and how it will be used. Its Legal Department
ensures that the Group is in compliance with the Personal Data
Protection Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong and any applicable
laws in any document, publicity and marketing activity. Procedures
on handling, storing, transferring and erasing customers’ personal
data collected are reviewed periodically.
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Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with
Honour” (continued)

Anti-corruption
To ensure ethical business practices, the Group strictly observes
applicable laws, regulations and regulatory documents related to

commercial bribery, including but not limited to:

° Criminal Law of the PRC;
° Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC;

o Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong;

o Theft Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong; and

o Organized and Serious Crimes Ordinance of the Laws of
Hong Kong.

The Group takes a zero-tolerance approach to bribery and is
committed to operating its business in an ethical manner with
high integrity. The Group has implemented policies on anti-
corruption and procedures concerning offering or accepting gifts
and gratuities. Suppliers and all employees are required to become
acquainted with and to abide by these policies and procedures.
Any fraud, corruption, irregular transactions or breach of ethics
shall be reported to the Internal Audit Department. Such report, if
any, shall be treated in strict confidence to protect the identity of
the informer.

No non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group relating to corruption, bribery,
fraud and money laundering had been identified during the
Reporting Period.
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Pillar 4: “Caring for our Community”

We aim to contribute for the betterment of society, to
create collective advancement and harmonious community
relationships.

While formal policies on community engagement are yet to be
established, the Group continues to maintain its strong tradition of
supporting various charitable causes during the Reporting Period.

Caring Company Scheme

The Group is awarded for the “Caring Company Award” for
thirteenth consecutive years by the Hong Kong Council of
Social Service since 2007, which is a testament to its long-term
commitment to community investment.

Volunteering and Charitable Activities

In 2019, the flour mill in Jintan addressed social needs through
participating in the poverty alleviation programme “Heart-
Winning Project” launched by the Jintan District Party Committee
and District Government and provided subsidy to help the
underprivileged.

On 27 October 2019, the Group sponsored Sowers Action
Challenging 12 Hours Charity Marathon.

On 25 October 2019, the Group collaborated with Hong Chi
Morningjoy School, Yuen Long in Hong Kong and organised a
parent-child baking activity in Lam Soon Baking Centre.

On 4 December 2019, the Group participated in “Love Teeth Day”,
an annual fund-raising event organised by the Community Chest
of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Dental Association and Oral Health
Education Unit of the Department of Health to promote oral health
education.

On 12 January 2020, the dedicated Lam Soon Volunteer Team
provided voluntary service at Shenzhen West Railway Station to
serve the crowds during the Lunar New Year travel season.

Educational Contributions

Invited by Lingnan University, Mr. Joseph Leung, the Group’s
former Managing Director, shared his knowledge with the
students of a master programme in Human Resource Management
Organisational Behaviour via webinar on 22 May 2020. Mr. Leung
introduced the Group’s business operations and shared the human
resource management strategies and challenges posed by the
business environment.
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Sponsorship of Sowers Action Challenging 12 Hours Charity
Marathon - Official bread
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Parent-child baking activity at Lam Soon Baking Centre
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I
Voluntary service at Shenzhen West Railway Station during January 2020
Spring Festival rush 2020514
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Kwek Leng Hai

Aged 67, the Chairman of the Company since October 2006
and has been a Non-executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Kwek is also the Chairman
of Board Nomination Committee and a member of Board
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Kwek is a director and shareholder of Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM", and together with its subsidiaries,
the “"Hong Leong Group”), the ultimate holding company of the
Company. He is the Executive Chairman of Guoco Group Limited
("GGL"), a subsidiary of HLCM and listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).
He is also a director of GGL's key listed subsidiaries and associated
companies including as the Non-executive Chairman of GL Limited
(“GL") and a director of Guocoland Limited (“GuocoLand”), both
listed on the Main Board of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited, Hong Leong Bank Berhad, listed on the Main Market of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Malaysia”) and Bank of
Chengdu Co., Ltd., listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kwek qualified as a chartered accountant of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and has extensive
experience in various business sectors, including but not limited
to finance, investment, manufacturing and real estate. He is the
brother-in-law of Dr. Whang Sun Tze, a Non-executive Director of
the Company.

Wong Cho Fai

Aged 53, Group Managing Director and Executive Director of the
Company since appointment to the Board in July 2020.

Mr. Wong holds a bachelor’s degree in Social Science and a
master’s degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He also completed the General
Management Program in Harvard Business School.

Mr. Wong has more than 30 years of experiences in fast moving
consumer goods in USA, Asia and particularly China. Mr. Wong
has worked in several multinational Fortune 500 corporations,
including Campbell Soup, S.C. Johnson, Coca Cola and Colgate
Palmolive. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wong served as the
President of Campbell Soup Greater China and the Managing
Director of S.C. Johnson Greater China.
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Tang Hong Cheong

Aged 65, Non-executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in September 2016.

Mr. Tang is a Director and the President & CEO of GGL. He is also
the Group Managing Director of GL, a Director of GuocolLand
and a Non-executive Director of The Rank Group Plc, listed on
the London Stock Exchange. He held various senior management
positions in different companies within the Hong Leong Group.
Prior to his appointment, he was the President/Finance Director of
HL Management Co Sdn Bhd.

Mr. Tang is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
and has over 40 years' in-depth experience in the investment,
manufacturing, financial services, property development, gaming
and hospitality industries. In addition, he possesses broad-based
and C-suite expertise in finance, treasury, risk management,
operations and strategic planning.

Whang Sun Tze ph.p.

Aged 76, Non-executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1984.

Dr. Whang holds a Doctorate Degree in Chemical Engineering. He
is the brother-in-law of Mr. Kwek Leng Hai.
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Tan Lim Heng

Aged 72, Non-executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997.

Mr. Tan was a Non-executive Director of GGL from March 2015
to December 2018. Mr. Tan holds a Bachelor of Science first class
honours degree in engineering from University of Surrey and a
Master of Science degree in management from Massachusetts
Institute of Technology. He had previously worked in Geneva
in 1974 with the United Nations Conference on Trade and
Development. He had also served in the Singapore Civil Service as
a Colombo Plan Scholar from 1975 to 1978 before coming to work
in Hong Kong with a financial services company and a major U.S.
bank. Mr. Tan has extensive experience in property investment,
financial and investment management services.

Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony

Aged 71, Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in December 2008. He is the
Chairman of Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
and a member of Board Nomination Committee and Board
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Lo is qualified as a chartered accountant with the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada and a member of the
HKICPA. Mr. Lo has over 30 years of experience in banking, finance
and investments. He worked for a number of well-known financial
institutions as managing director.

Mr. Lo also holds other directorships in a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong including independent non-executive
director, the audit committee chairman and members of the
compensation and nomination committees of Playmates Holdings
Limited; independent non-executive director, audit committee
chairman and member of the remuneration committee of Tristate
Holdings Limited; and independent non-executive director, audit
committee chairman and member of the nomination committee of
Convenience Retail Asia Limited. He retired as independent non-
executive director of The Taiwan Fund, Inc., a company listed on
the New York Stock Exchange, in April 2018.
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Huang Lester Garson sgs, Jp

Aged 60, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company in November 2013. Mr. Huang is the Chairman of
the Board Remuneration Committee and a member of the Board
Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company.

Mr. Huang is an independent non-executive director and a
member of both the board audit and risk management committee
and the board remuneration committee of GGL, a subsidiary of
HLCM and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Huang is a practicing solicitor and notary public, and is
currently Managing Partner and Co-Chairman of P. C. Woo &
Co., a solicitor firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Huang became a qualified
solicitor of Hong Kong in March 1985 and has over 30 years
of post-qualification experience. Mr. Huang graduated with a
Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1982
and a Master of Education from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 2006.

In 2002, the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“The Government of HKSAR") appointed Mr. Huang as
a Justice of the Peace. In July 2018, The Government of HKSAR
awarded him a Silver Bauhinia Star for his public services.

Mr. Huang is a non-executive director of the Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC"”). He also chairs the Investor and
Financial Education Council (a subsidiary of the SFC). Mr. Huang's
public roles also include serving as Chairman of Council of City
University of Hong Kong, Chairman of the Social Welfare Advisory
Committee of the Labour and Welfare Bureau, Chairman of the
Standing Committee on Language Education and Research and an
ex-officio member of the Education Commission. He has also been
appointed as a director of Faithful Servant Charitable Foundation
Limited since August 2019 and a Steward of The Hong Kong
Jockey Club since April 2020.

Mr. Huang was the President of the Law Society of Hong Kong
from 2007 to 2009. He was also a member of the Hospital
Authority and the Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s Exchange
Fund Advisory Committee as well as a non-executive director of
the Urban Renewal Authority. He also served as a member of the
Standing Committee on Judicial Salaries and Conditions of Service
and other public positions.

Mr. Huang is an independent non-executive director, the
remuneration committee chairman, the audit committee member
and the nomination committee member of Kidsland International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Ho Yuk Wai, Joan

Aged 55, Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in November 2019. She is
a member of both the Board Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Board Nomination Committee of the
Company.

Ms. Ho is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. She is also a Chartered Financial Analyst
and a member of the CFA Institute. Ms. Ho graduated from
Queen’s University, Canada with a bachelor’s degree (with
honours) in Commerce.

Ms. Ho has over 30 years of experience in auditing and advisory
services. She was an audit partner of KPMG China financial
services group between 2000 and 2015 and was also in charge of
the firm’s internal audit, risk and compliance services for financial
institutions and the accounting advisory services. Ms. Ho has
extensive experience in capital market transactions and conducting
operational reviews of banks in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China.

Ms. Ho is currently a member of the Anti-Money Laundering
and Counter-Terrorist Financing Review Tribunal and a member
of the Process Review Committee of the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority. She also serves as a member of the Payment Systems
and Stored Value Facilities Appeals Tribunal, a member of the
Financial Reporting Review Panel of the Financial Reporting
Council and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants’ Panel B of the Institute’s Disciplinary Panels.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has adopted
a Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “CGP Code”),
which is based on the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix 14 (the “"HKEx Code”) to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). The CGP Code is reviewed from time to time
and updated as appropriate to align with the revised provisions
of the HKEx Code. Continuous efforts are made to review and
enhance the Group’s risk management and internal controls and
procedures in light of changes in regulations and developments in
best practices.

The Board is pleased to report compliance with the HKEx Code for
the year ended 30 June 2020, except where otherwise stated.

Every director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company and the CGP Code.

Despite non-executive directors were not appointed for a specific
term, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meetings of the Company, as stipulated by the
HKEx Code. As such, the Company considers that such provisions
are sufficient to meet the intent of the relevant provisions of the
HKEx Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct
governing directors’ securities transactions.

All directors of the Company during the year, following specific
enquiry by the Company, have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year.
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EEXg
EERER

Board of Directors
Composition of the Board

RAFEARBIFBREERY  ARRAZES
ERECHNENEESEREER -

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
hereof are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 91.

EXZE288  RRAERHEER

Board Meetings, General Meeting and Attendance

RAFER  HBFTOAEEEEER —RRR
RE - BRESRAFEALFESTTERERR

During the year, four board meetings and one general meeting
were held. Details of individual attendance of directors at the

board meetings and general meeting during the year are set out in RAREZHFBEHNT X
the table below:
Board General
Meeting Meeting
Number of Number of
Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Meeting Held Meeting Held
EEEER BRAE
HERE, HERE
Name of Director BEEnE BIEINRY HITEBRH
Chairman: xE
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai L EE 4/4 1/1
Group Managing Director: EEESAKE .
Mr. WONG Cho Faj (Note = AH S o 4 () 0/0 0/0
Mr. Joseph LEUNG ote 2 2 {H o A (wiE2) 4/4 11
Non-Executive Directors: FEHITESE
Mr. TANG Hong Cheong WEELE 4/4 1/1
Dr. WHANG Sun Tze =HTEEL 4/4 11
Mr. TAN Lim Heng R R 5 4 4/4 11
Independent Non-Executive Directors: B Ik {TEE :
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ERUBSE 4/4 1/1
Mr. AU Chee Ming B L 2/2(Note 3)(Hfit3) 171
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson ERALE 4/4 1/1
Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan MEEL+ 2/2 Note 4)(Hfzta) 0/0
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Meetings, General Meeting and Attendance
(continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. WONG Cho Fai was appointed as Group Managing Director
with effect from 1 July 2020.

2. Mr. Joseph LEUNG retired as Group Managing Director with effect
from 1 July 2020.

3. Mr. AU Chee Ming (“Mr. Au”) retired as an Independent Non-
executive Director after the conclusion of 2019 annual general
meeting held on 13 November 2019 (“2019 AGM"). Two Board
meetings were held during the period from 1 July 2019 up to the
conclusion of the 2019 AGM (date of retirement of Mr. Au).

4. Ms. HO Yuk Wai (“Ms. Ho") was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director after the conclusion of the 2019 AGM. Two
Board meetings were held during the period from the conclusion of
the 2019 AGM (date of appointment of Ms. Ho) to 30 June 2020.

Operations of the Board

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad strategies,
monitors and controls operating and financial performance and
sets appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives. Decisions involving financial statements,
dividend policy, material contracts and major investments and
divestments are reviewed and subject to approval by the Board.
Other main roles of the Board are to review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and to ensure
that adequate risk management and internal control systems and
management information systems are in place, including being
in compliance with every aspect of the provisions of applicable
laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines to create value
for its shareholders and to ensure that the Company has adequate
management to achieve the Company’s strategic objectives.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group’s businesses to management of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Where appropriate, decisions are also taken by way of circulated
resolutions.

Board papers are circulated prior to board meetings on a timely
manner, which include, among others, financial and corporate
information, significant operational and corporate issues and
business performance of the Group as well as management
proposals which require the approval of the Board.
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Board of Directors (continued)
Operations of the Board (continued)

All directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary and internal auditors, and upon reasonable request,
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company’s expense, if any.

Independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company received confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors (“INEDs"”) for the year
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Up to and as at the date
of this report, the Company considers that the INEDs continue to
be independent.

Relationship among the Members of the Board

The family relationships among the members of the Board are
disclosed under “Board of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 65 to 69 of this annual report.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development
Programme

Pursuant to the HKEx Code which took effect on 1 April 2012,
all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place a training and development
programme for directors which includes (i) induction/
familiarisation programme for newly appointed directors; and (ii)
on-going training and professional development programme for
directors.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development
Programme (continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2020, all directors of the Company
namely, Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai, Joseph LEUNG, TANG Hong
Cheong, WHANG Sun Tze, TAN Lim Heng, LO Kai Yiu, Anthony,
AU Chee Ming (retired on 13 November 2019), HUANG Lester
Garson and HO Yuk Wai, Joan (appointed on 13 November 2019),
received regular briefings and updates on the Group’s business,
operations, risk management and corporate governance matters.
Materials on new or changes to salient laws and regulations,
environmental, social and governance matters applicable to
the Group were provided to the directors. They also attended
regulatory update sessions and seminars on relevant topics.
All directors are requested to provide the Company with their
respective training record pursuant to the CGP Code.

Chairman and Group Managing
Director

The roles of Chairman and Group Managing Director (“GMD")
are segregated and are not held by the same person. Currently
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman and Mr. WONG Cho Fai
(appointed on 1 July 2020) is the GMD of the Company.

The Chairman leads the Board and ensures its smooth and
effective functioning. The GMD is responsible for the vision and
strategic direction of the Group, implementing the policies and
decisions of the Board, initiating business ideas and corporate
strategies to create competitive edge and enhancing shareholder
wealth, setting the benchmark and targets for operating
companies, overseeing the day-to-day operations and tracking
compliance and business progress.

Non-Executive Directors

The non-executive directors were not appointed for a specific
term. However, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company and the CGP Code.
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Board Committees

During the year, three board committees, namely, the Board
Remuneration Committee, the Board Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Board Nomination Committee were in place
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs pursuant
to the Listing Rules and the CGP Code.

The three board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference, approved by the Board, which
set out the Committees’ major duties. The terms of reference
now being posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company, are available to shareholders.

The majority of the members of each board committee are INEDs.
The list of the chairman and members of each board committee is
set out in the following board committee section.

The board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC")

The Company established the BRC on 1 July 2005 with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirements
of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its authority and
duties.

The principal role and functions of the BRC are to make
recommendations to the Board on its policy and structure for the
remuneration of directors and senior management, as well as to
determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, which may include
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment. Detailed terms of reference of the BRC are accessible
on the Company’s website and HKEx's website.

The BRC has adopted the approach under code provision B.1.2(c)(i)
of the HKEx Code to determine, with delegated responsibility
and authorisation by the Board, the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management.

EEXZET

RAFER  ZEESZES NESSHFMHE
EE EFSEUNREAREEZSEREFER
BEEE  HERBLHRAREEEATAE
BERNBZBESH °

KRB = HESEESSYRAESSH
BB EEARESE  ETHEEET TR
BE  BESERKNBEIMRADTDHEE
B DUERRER -

BREEZREECAMOMENABIFHTE
E MEFERKERERTNESZEE—HR
RIS

EXZESRREHARER  UBETHREZHR
B WERSHERE  #gARNEEBRTER
BYSXER EREAHHALFESE -

EzeyMEES((FMEES))

ARBN=ZEZRFLA-BRUFHESS
WREMEHIMIRE AREHRESE 2
HETAREE N RBE -

FHEES T EACKRBERNEBRSTESR
BRITHRABZHMBERRBOESSFHE
& UREBEZRIITESRSREEAEZEA
EMETE  BEFSRNE - RICEENRE
EEHRERAIRLEBBHZREZEE) - #F
M= S SREEE 2 IR D AL R A AT
AR ER] -

FHESSCERESZSRTRERE - RN
Ry RIZEB. 1. 2(0) R <F RURZET R 2 535 - A
BEERNNITESRSREEAE ZHMTE -

MIE(BE)ERAA | —E_Z2FFH 75



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERWMES

Board Committees (continued)
Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC") (continued)

During the year, the BRC comprised Messrs. HUANG Lester Garson
(re-designated as the Chairman of the BRC after the conclusion of
the 2019 AGM), AU Chee Ming (Chairman of the BRC, retired after
the conclusion of the 2019 AGM), KWEK Leng Hai and LO Kai Yiu,
Anthony (appointed as a member of the BRC with effect from the
conclusion of the 2019 AGM). Mr. HUANG Lester Garson, Mr. AU
Chee Ming and Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony are INEDs of the Company
whilst Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman of the Company.

During the year, two BRC meetings were held. The individual
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attendance of each member are as follows: RELEEZERESANT :
Number of
Attendance/
Number of
Meeting Held
HERE,
Name of Director BEEHS HITEBRRHY
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson (Chairman)ete ! BRI L (T FE) 2/2
Mr. AU Chee Ming (Chairman)\e?2 B R S 4k (o) w2 2/2
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai I EE 2/2
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony"ete3 Z& PR 5 A et 0/0
Notes: Wit :
1. Mr. HUANG Lester Garson was re-designated as the Chairman of 1. BEEALEN—_S-NWERRBEESHERE

the BRC after the conclusion of the 2019 AGM.

2. Mr. AU Chee Ming (“Mr. Au”) ceased to be the Chairman of the
BRC after his retirement as an INED which took effect after the
conclusion of the 2019 AGM. Two BRC meetings were held during
the period from 1 July 2019 up to the conclusion of the 2019 AGM
(date of retirement of Mr. Au).

3. Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony (“Mr. Lo") was appointed as a member of
the BRC after the conclusion of the 2019 AGM. No BRC meeting
was held during the period from the conclusion of the 2019 AGM
(date of appointment of Mr. Lo) up to 30 June 2020.

AERFHZEEEE -

2. BEALLE(EBEEDAZZE-NERFEBF
EEARRREBYFITES —BHENR
BTRBEIFHNEEETR -2 - NFL
A-REZZ-NERREFESHERAM
BAEREZBR)HBTMAFHESSS

e
R ©

3. EREAE(ERE DR-Z-NERFAF
EEEREEZEAFHNESENE B =%
—“NERRBEEEHERA (MELEREE
ZAMEZE-EFAASTHAERITH
HEEEEE -

76 Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2020



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREAWMES

Board Committees (continued)
Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC") (continued)
Work done for the financial year 2019/2020

- Reviewed and recommended directors’ fees for non-
executive directors for the financial year 2018/2019;

- approved the discretionary bonuses for executive directors
and senior management for the financial year 2018/2019;

- reviewed the remuneration packages of executive directors
and senior management;

- reviewed and approved the remuneration package for the
Group Managing Director of the Company;

- reviewed the Employee’s Share Option Scheme;

- reviewed the terms of reference of the BRC and remuneration
policy for directors and senior management; and

- deliberated the statement relating to the BRC for inclusion
in the Corporate Governance Report.

Level and Make-up of Remuneration

The Group’s remuneration scheme for executive directors and
senior management is linked to performance, service seniority,
experience and scope of responsibility and is based on the
provisions in the Group’s Human Resources Manual, which are
reviewed from time to time to align with market/industry practices.

The level of remuneration of non-executive directors reflects the
level of responsibilities undertaken by them.

The fees of directors, including non-executive directors, are
recommended and endorsed by the Board for shareholders’
approval at the Company’s annual general meeting.

Details of the remuneration of the directors for the year ended 30
June 2020 are provided in note 9 to the Financial Statements in
this annual report.
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Nomination Committee (“BNC")

The Company established the BNC on 1 April 2012 with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirement
of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its authority and
duties.

The principal role of the BNC is to make recommendations to the
Board on the structure, size and composition of the Board, to
review the independence of INEDs, the suitability of directors who
will stand for re-election and directors’ continuous training and
development programme, to formulate, review and implement
a policy for the nomination of directors (including nomination
procedures) and to formulate a policy concerning board diversity,
monitor the implementation of such policy and to review the same,
as appropriate. Detailed terms of reference of the BNC is accessible
on the Company’s website and HKEx's website.

The BNC comprised Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman of the
BNC), LO Kai Yiu, Anthony, AU Chee Ming (retired after the
conclusion of the 2019 AGM) and HO Yuk Wai, Joan (appointed as
a member of the BNC with effect from the conclusion of the 2019
AGM). Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony, Mr. AU Chee Ming and Ms. HO
Yuk Wai, Joan are INEDs of the Company whilst Mr. KWEK Leng
Hai is the Chairman of the Company.

During the year, two BNC meetings were held. The individual
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attendance of each member is as follows: REHFEZEREINNT
Number of
Attendance/
Number of
Meeting Held
HERE
Name of Director EENR BITERNIH
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman) B BRE(EE) 2/2
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ERURSE 2/2
Mr. AU Chee Ming"ete! =18, B ¢ L it 22
Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan™ote? A R w2 0/0

Notes: Bt -

1. Mr. AU Chee Ming (“Mr. Au”) ceased to be a member of the 1. BRBAEE(BEEDB-Z-NERREBF
BNC after his retirement as an INED which took effect after the HEEREERTBELIFPITES —BENE -
conclusion of the 2019 AGM. Two BNC meetings were held during BIBETRBZEENE - H-T—LFt
the period from 1 July 2019 up to the conclusion of the 2019 AGM B—BZE-ZE-NERFBAEESHERBE (A
(date of retirement of Mr. Au). BAEREZAH)AETRMAIREBEEES

%%;’ o
2. Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan (“Ms. Ho") was appointed as a member of 2. MEELZT(ALZET RS- NEFRREF

the BNC after the conclusion of the 2019 AGM. No BNC meeting
was held during the period from the conclusion of the 2019 AGM
(date of appointment of Ms. Ho) to 30 June 2020.
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Nomination Committee (“BNC") (continued)
Work done during the year

- reviewed the suitability of 1) a candidate to be appointed
as the Group Managing Director of the Company and
2) a candidate to be appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company;

- reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity and
gender of the Board (including the mix of skills, knowledge,
experience, competences of directors, and the balance
between executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) annually;

- reviewed and accessed the independence of independent
non-executive directors of the Company;

- reviewed the profile of and participation in the Company’s
affairs of the directors who stood for re-election at annual
general meeting;

- reviewed the continuous training and development
programmes undertaken by directors to ensure that an
appropriate program is in place;

- reviewed the Board Diversity Policy, the terms of reference
of the BNC and reviewed and updated the Nomination
Policy; and

- deliberated the statement relating to BNC for inclusion in
the Corporate Governance Report.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy pursuant
to which the Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
The Company maintains that selection of candidates for Board
appointments will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service and the ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

The BNC reviews annually the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its
effectiveness and application.
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Nomination Committee (“BNC") (continued)
Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted the Nomination Policy which serves as
a guiding mechanism and framework for the BNC on the process
for new appointments and re-appointments of directors, Group
Managing Director and board committee members and their
annual assessment.

The BNC reviews annually the Nomination Policy to ensure its
effectiveness and application and will update, amend and modify
as appropriate to ensure it continues to be relevant to needs of
the Company and is consistent with regulatory and corporate
governance requirements.

The Nomination Policy is accessible on the Company’s website.

Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
("BARMC")

The Company established the Board Audit Committee on 29
December 1998 with specific written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange which
deal clearly with its authority and duties. On 17 February 2016, the
Board has resolved to rename the Committee as Board Audit and
Risk Management Committee ("BARMC").

The BARMC oversees the financial reporting process and assesses
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s system of
risk management and internal control. The BARMC meets with
the Company’s external and internal auditors, and reviews their
audit plans, the internal audit programmes, the results of their
examinations as well as their evaluations of the system of risk
management and internal control. It also reviews directors’
interests in contracts and connected transactions. The BARMC
reviews the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements and
the auditors’ report thereon and submits its views to the Board.
Detailed terms of reference of the BARMC are accessible on the
Company’s website.
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Board Committees (continved)

Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
("BARMC") (continued)

During the year, the BARMC comprised Messrs. LO Kai Yiu,
Anthony (Chairman of the BARMC), AU Chee Ming (retired after
the conclusion of the 2019 AGM), HUANG Lester Garson and Ms.
HO Yuk Wai, Joan (appointed as a member of the BARMC with
effect from the conclusion of the 2019 AGM). Mr. LO Kai Yiu,
Anthony, Mr. AU Chee Ming, Mr. HUANG Lester Garson and Ms.
HO Yuk Wai, Joan are INEDs of the Company.

During the year, five BARMC meetings were held. The individual
attendance of each member are as follows:
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Number of
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Number of

Meeting Held

HERE,

Name of Director EEfE BITEBRH
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony (Chairman) ERBREE (EE) 5/5
Mr. AU Chee Ming "ete? =18, B ¢ L it 22
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson BEEMAfE 5/5
Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan Note? (] B2 4 w2 3/3

Notes: ﬁ{jﬁ:{ ;

1. Mr. AU Chee Ming (“Mr. Au”) ceased to be a member of the i Eﬁﬂﬂ%ifrgﬁil)é%g_ﬂﬂzﬂﬁ;ﬁﬁﬁ
BARMC after his retirement as an INED which took effect after the "%“%ﬁ?ﬁfﬁﬂ&ﬁEiFiM{i%—Hﬁ?iﬁ?ﬁ ’
conclusion of the 2019 AGM. Two BARMC meetings were held ?&T\E}%&%&&E\,@%E%E%EX\E o E=
during the period from 1 July 2019 up to the conclusion of the Z-NEFLtA-RER-NFRREFES
2019 AGM (date of retirement of Mr. Au). FERE(MBEEREZ BH) HETRAEX

REMEREZESER
2. Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan (“Ms. Ho") was appointed as a member of 2. AEZLZL (WLt DR=F-NFRRAF

the BARMC after the conclusion of the 2019 AGM. Three BARMC
meetings were held during the period from the conclusion of the
2019 AGM (date of appointment of Ms. Ho) up to 30 June 2020.
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Board Committees (continved)

Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
("BARMC") (continued)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the BARMC
during the year:

- reviewed the nature and scope of external audit, the
independence of external auditor and effectiveness of the
audit process and approved the external audit fee and the
engagement terms;

- reviewed the interim financial report, the interim results
announcement, the annual accounts and the final results
announcement;

- reviewed and discussed with the management the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system, including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications, experience and training programmes;

- reviewed the Group's accounting policies and practices;

- reviewed and approved the annual internal audit plan;

- reviewed major findings of internal audit assignments and
the progress of implementation of remedial measures on

control issues identified;

- reviewed the effectiveness of the processes for financial
reporting and Listing Rule compliance of the Company;

- reviewed connected transactions entered into by the Group
or subsisting during the year;

- reviewed the terms of reference of the BARMC; and

- deliberated the statement relating to the BARMC for
inclusion in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for
Preparing the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company have acknowledged their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements for the year.
There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 110 to 116 of this
annual report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

Auditors’ remuneration for the year is set out in note 7 to the
financial statements on page 171.

Risk Management and Internal
Control

The risk management and internal control system is designed to
facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, safeguard
assets against unauthorised use and disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records and the truth and
fairness of the financial statements, and ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and
manages rather than eliminates risks associated with its business
activities.

The Board, recognising its responsibilities in ensuring sound
risk management and internal controls, has developed a set of
Enterprise Risk Management framework (“ERM framework”) for
the Group and set forth in its policy and procedures to assist in:

- identifying the enterprise risks faced by the Group in the
operating environment as well as evaluating the impact of
such risks identified;

- developing the necessary measures for managing these
risks; and

- monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness and adequacy
of such measures.
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Risk Management and Internal
Control (continued)

The ERM framework consists of interactive processes for each of
our business units to constantly identify and access risks in terms of
their potential impact and probability of occurrence, as well as to
establish and implement relevant procedures and internal controls
for risk mitigation, ongoing monitoring and periodic reporting by
management to ensure that residual risks after taking into account
risk mitigating measures fall within the risk appetite and tolerance
set by the Board.

The Board has entrusted the BARMC with the responsibility to
oversee the implementation of the ERM framework of the Group.
In discharging this responsibility, the BARMC, assisted by the
Group Internal Audit Department (“GIAD"):

- ensures that new and emerging enterprise risks are
promptly identified by management;

- assesses the adequacy of action plans and control systems
developed to manage these risks;

- monitors the implementation of the action plans and the
effectiveness and adequacy of the control systems; and

- ensures the Group's risk register is up-to-date and risk
profile reports are furnished by management to the BARMC
review.

These on-going processes have been in place, and reviewed
periodically by the BARMC to ensure their effectiveness,
supplemented by the other reports from GIAD on the Group's
internal control and risk management findings.

The controls built into the risk management framework are
intended to manage and not expected to eliminate all risks of
failure to achieve business objectives. These controls provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information or against
financial losses and fraud.
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Risk Management and Internal
Control (continued)

The Board, through the BARMC, has conducted an annual review
on the Group’s risk management and internal control system and
considers that it is adequate and effective covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. The Board is satisfied that the Group has fully complied
with the provisions on risk management and internal controls as
set out in the CGP Code.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company has established and implemented relevant
procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, including restricting employee
access to inside information on a need-to-know basis and ensuring
that those who need to know understand the obligation of
keeping the information confidential. All inside information is
disclosed to the public pursuant to the requirements under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules and kept
strictly confidential before disclosure.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares, all shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividends declared.

(a) Rights and procedures for shareholders to
convene extraordinary general meetings
("EGM")

Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance”), the Directors shall on the requisition of
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”)
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholder(s) having a right to vote at general meetings of
the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene an EGM
of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

(a)

(b)

86

Rights and procedures for shareholders to
convene extraordinary general meetings
("EGM") (continued)

The requests must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting and may include the text
of a resolution that may properly be moved and is/are
intended to be moved at the meeting. The request must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary in hard copy form.

Rights and procedures for shareholders to make
proposals at general meetings

(i)

Rights and procedures for a shareholder to
propose a person for election as a director are
as follows:

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, shareholder(s) may send a notice
in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been delivered to the Company’s registered office
provided that the minimum length of the period
during which such notices are given, shall be at least
seven days and that the period for lodgement of the
notices shall commence no earlier than the day after
the despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such meeting.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

(b) Rights and procedures for shareholders to make
proposals at general meetings (continued)

(ii)  Rights and procedures for proposing resolution
to be put forward at a general meeting:

Shareholder(s) can submit a written requisition to
move a resolution at an annual general meeting
("AGM") if they:

- represent at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM; or

- at least 50 shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted the Dividend Policy which sets out the
guiding principles with aims to create long term value for its
shareholders through maintaining a balance between dividend
distribution, preserving adequate liquidity and reserve to meet
its working capital requirements, and capturing future growth
opportunities.

Pursuant to this, the Board may propose/declare the payment
of dividend(s) after taking into account the current financial
performance of the Company, the future financial requirements of
the Company and any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Board may also decide on the frequency of dividend payment
and further declare/recommend any special distributions.
Dividend(s) may be in the form of cash, shares, distribution in-
specie or any other form as the Board may determine.

The Board may review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
update, amend, modify and/or cancel the Dividend Policy at any
time in the interest of the Company and its shareholders.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include annual general meeting, annual report, interim
report, various notices, announcements and circulars.

The Company shall communicate other information to
Shareholders on a need basis by way of announcement which will
be posted on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited and the Company. Other than AGM, EGM shall be held
pursuant to relevant rules and regulations if required. Shareholders
shall receive explanatory circulars and proxy forms relating to the
EGMs. Proxy arrangements for the general meetings are in place
for shareholders who are unable to attend the meetings in person.

Shareholders and the investment community shall be provided
with designated contacts, email addresses and enquiry lines of the
Company, which are available on the Company website, in order
to enable them to make any query in respect of the Company or to
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available.

Shareholders’ questions about their shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s Share Registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Rooms 1712-1716, 17/F,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Investor Relations

In order to enhance communication between the Company
and investors/analysts, senior management members will hold
meetings with investors/analysts upon request as and when the
need arises.

Investors are welcome to send email directly to the Company
Secretary’s email at comsec@lamsoon.com or browse the
Company'’s website for the latest release and financial
information.

A dedicated Investor Relations section is available on the Company
website (http://www.lamsoon.com). Information on the Company
website is updated on a regular basis.
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The directors submit their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2020.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 229 to
231.

Principal Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out on
pages 229 to 231.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement, Review of Operations
and Environmental, Social and Governance Report of this annual
report.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year, the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2020 and the Group’s
cash flows and statement of changes in equity for the year ended
are set out in the financial statements on pages 117 to 228.

Dividends

The Directors are recommending to the shareholders for approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
Wednesday, 11 November 2020 a final dividend of HK$0.31 per
share totaling approximately HK$75,440,000. This, together with
the interim dividend of HK$0.14 per share paid on Tuesday, 24
March 2020, will amount to a total dividend of HK$0.45 per share
for the year (2019: interim dividend of HK$0.14 and final dividend
of HK$0.30 per share). Subject to shareholders’ approval, the final
dividend will be payable on Wednesday, 2 December 2020 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on
Friday, 20 November 2020.
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Closure of Register of Members

For ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting:

Closure dates of Register of
Members (both days inclusive)

6 November 2020 (Friday)
to 11 November 2020 (Wednesday)

Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on 5 November 2020

(Thursday)

Record date 11 November 2020
(Wednesday)

Annual General Meeting 11 November 2020
(Wednesday)

For ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final
dividend*:

Closure dates of Register of
Members (both days inclusive)

19 November 2020 (Thursday)
to 20 November 2020 (Friday)

Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on 18 November 2020

(Wednesday)

Record date 20 November 2020
(Friday)

Proposed final dividend 2 December 2020
payment date (Wednesday)

(* subject to shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting)

During the periods of the closure of Register of Members, no
share transfers will be registered. For registration, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars and Transfer
Office — Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Rooms 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before the relevant latest time to lodge
transfers.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 21 to the financial statements.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 of the
Company as disclosed in this Directors’ Report, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into by the Company subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended 30 June 2020.
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Directors
The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

KWEK Leng Hai, Chairman*
WONG Cho Fai, Group Managing Director**

— appointed on 1 July 2020

TANG Hong Cheong*

WHANG Sun Tze, Ph.D.*

TAN Lim Heng*

LO Kai Yiu, Anthony*

HUANG Lester Garson, SBS, JP*
HO Yuk Wai, Joan*

— appointed as Independent Non-executive Director after the
conclusion of the 2019 annual general meeting held on 13
November 2019 (the “2019 AGM”)

LEUNG Joseph**

— retired as Group Managing Director with effect from 1 July

2020
AU Chee Ming*

— retired as Independent Non-executive Director after the

conclusion of the 2019 AGM

i Non-executive director
e Executive director
i/ Independent non-executive director

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s articles of
association and Code A.4.2 of the Code of Corporate Governance
Practices of the Company, Dr. WHANG Sun Tze and Mr. TAN Lim
Heng shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “AGM"). Dr. WHANG Sun Tze, being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election at the AGM.

Mr. TAN Lim Heng has indicated his intention not to offer himself
for re-election at the AGM as he would like to devote more time to
pursue his personal interests.

In accordance with Article 89 of the Company’s articles of
association and Code A.4.2 of the Code of Corporate Governance
Practices of the Company, Mr. WONG Cho Fai and Ms. HO Yuk
Wai, Joan shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.
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Directors (continued)
Directors of Subsidiaries

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the financial year ended
30 June 2020 or during the period from 1 July 2020 up to
the date of this report is available on the Company’s website
(http://www.lamsoon.com).

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries, within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangement or Contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the Company
or an entity connected with a director had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every director
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company maintains directors
and officers liability insurance, which gives appropriate cover for
any legal action brought against its directors. The level of the
coverage is reviewed annually.
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Connected Transactions
Master Services Agreements

The following master services agreements (collectively, the
“Master Services Agreements”) were entered into by the Company
(together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) with certain
subsidiaries of Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM"),
the ultimate holding company of the Company, for the provision
by the latter of management services including, among other
things, overview and/or oversight of businesses and operations,
investment management and financial management disciplines,
treasury and risk management, key managerial recruitment and
retention as well as other operating practices and procedures,
accounting, corporate advisory, legal, company secretarial and
other services (the “Services”):

(i) the master services agreement entered into by the
Company with GuoLine Group Management Co. Limited
("GGMC") dated 7 July 2017 for provision of the Services
by GGMC to the Company’s subsidiaries excluding, at
any time, the subsidiaries incorporated, resident or with
operation in Hong Kong (“Hong Kong Subsidiaries”); and

(ii) the master services agreement entered into by the
Company with GOMC Limited (“GOMC") dated 7 July 2017
for provision of the Services by GOMC to the Company and
the Hong Kong Subsidiaries.

The Master Services Agreements are for a term of three financial
years from 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2020.

The fees payable under the Master Services Agreements comprise a
monthly fee (the “Monthly Fee”) of HK$100,000 (or such amount
as agreed from time to time between the Company or such service
recipient and the relevant service provider) and an annual fee (the
“Annual Fee”) equal to 3 percent of the annual profits before
tax of the Company and the subsidiaries as shown in the audited
profit and loss accounts for the relevant financial year, subject
to appropriate adjustments. The total fee, being the sum of the
Monthly Fee, the Annual Fee and the total amount of any fees paid
or payable by the Group to any Hong Leong Group Company for
services of a similar nature as the Services are subject to an annual
cap of HK$25 million (the “Annual Cap”) for each of the three
financial years ending 30 June 2020.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Master Services Agreements (continued)

GGMC and GOMC are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
HLCM and thus they are associates of a connected person of the
Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
HLCM is deemed to be invested in shareholding in the Company.
The transactions under the Master Services Agreements constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under the
Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed the transactions under the Master Services Agreements
during the year and confirmed that:

(1) the transactions under the Master Services Agreements for
the year were entered into:

- in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

- on normal commercial terms or better; and

- according to the agreement governing them and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

(2) the aggregate service fees, being the sum of the monthly
fee, the annual fee and the total amounts of any fees,
paid and payable by the Group to any Hong Leong
Group company for services of a similar nature under
the Master Services Agreements for the year amounted
to approximately HK$13,189,000 which did not exceed
the Annual Cap of HK$25 million as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 7 July 2017.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

BAERXZ @)

Distribution Agreements pak i

1. On 29 August 2019, LS Synalife Trading Company Limited
("LS Synalife”) entered into the distribution agreement
(the “Distribution Agreement”) with Manuka Health New
Zealand Limited (“MHNZ"), pursuant to which MHNZ has
agreed to appoint LS Synalife as the distributor to distribute
the full range of the products of MHNZ (the “Products”) via
certain online channels in the PRC for the period from 1 July
2019 to 30 June 2020.

2. On 27 March 2020, a master distribution agreement (the 2.

“Master Distribution Agreement”) was entered into by
Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”) with
MHNZ to extend the distributorship of the Distribution
Agreement to a wider geographic and channel coverage
for the distribution of the Products of any MHNZ and its
subsidiaries by the Company and its subsidiaries in the PRC
and such other jurisdictions as the parties may agree from
time to time. The Master Distribution Agreement is for a
term from 27 March 2020 to 30 June 2022.
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the Listing Rules. The transactions under the Master Distribution Ao
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Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the EMRAITHSERERS -

Company under the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Distribution Agreements (continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed the transactions under the Distribution Agreement and
Master Distribution Agreement during the year and confirmed

that:

(1

Note:

96

the transactions under the Distribution Agreement and
Master Distribution Agreement for the year were entered
into:

- in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

- on normal commercial terms or better; and

- according to the agreement governing them and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

the total amount of purchases of Products paid and payable
by the Group under the Distribution Agreement for the
period from 1 July 2019 to 26 March 2020 amounted
to approximately HK$8,945,000 which did not exceed
the Annual Cap of HK$36 million as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 August 2019;
and

the total amount of purchases of Products paid and payable
by the Group under the Master Distribution Agreement
for the period from 27 March 2020 to 30 June 2020
amounted to approximately HK$2,904,000 which did not
exceed the Annual Cap of HK$60 million as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 27 March 2020.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the total amount
of purchases of Products with MHNZ was approximately
HK$11,849,000.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions regarding the Master Services Agreements,
the Distribution Agreement and the Master Distribution
Agreement mentioned above in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors have issued an unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of
the Company which require disclosure in the annual report in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

Management Contracts

Except for the Master Services Agreements disclosed in the section
of “Connected Transactions” above, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Group was entered into or subsisted
during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

None of the directors is interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business, which is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 30 June 2020, the directors of the Company have the
following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the "Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules:

EERKRD -  HEROKE
o5 Z e

REZZZZEFARAZ=TH  SESERARFARH
EAREEE(ERREBSRAERM(EBER
HIEIRAI ) EXVER) R ARE R 5 R EIRA
EI2FBMEMR 2B BMPAEZROEE
BARAT ZXRRE - HERORES 2ERZR
RIELHRA 2 EMARAESETESZRZNER
EFA((REFA ) ANSARAREBHER
ZFERAR (B ) 2 EmMmT :

(A) The Company (A) ZFA1FH
Long positions in shares/underlying shares B3 TEEER G Z A

Approximate

percentage of

total number of

Number of ordinary shares of

shares/ the Company

underlying in issue

Nature of shares held HAQ R E BT

Name of director interest BEk Note Total EERBEZ

EEgE EEME HER G A BteE gt BABED

KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,300,000 2,300,000 0.95%
HSE A

Joseph LEUNG Personal 1,850,000 1,850,000 0.76%
RZE 5PN

TANG Hong Cheong Personal 700,000 700,000 0.29%
BES A

WHANG Sun Tze Personal 27,523,743

BEtE 5PN

Corporate 19,326 (a) 27,543,069 11.32%
]

TAN Lim Heng Personal 274,000 274,000 0.11%
PRk £ A

LO Kai Yiu, Anthony Personal 200,000 200,000 0.08%
ERE A

HUANG Lester Garson Family 150,000 150,000 0.06%
ERMA ENA
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, EENRKRG - HEARMORE
Underlying Shares and Debentures 2R @)

(continued)

(A) The Company (continued) (A) ZAXAT(#E)

Long positions in shares/underlying shares (continued) BRE - HHEER G Z A (4E)

Note: KtaF -

(a) The interests disclosed represent the corporate interests (@) B EERRELEBELER
of Dr. WHANG Sun Tze in 18,457 ordinary shares and 869 SGR Investment Company, Limited
ordinary shares in the Company held by SGR Investment (I'SGR 1) R T.C. Whang & Company
Company, Limited (“SGR”) and T.C. Whang & Company (Private) Limited ([ T.C. & Co. 1) 2 Bl
(Private) Limited (“T.C. & Co.") respectively. Dr. WHANG BEARRNT8,457 R E AR K869
Sun Tze holds 95.41% and 59.52% interests in SGR and TRk AREm ELEBLE
T.C. & Co. respectively. SGRET.C. & Co. D Rl#FHE95.41% &

59.52% Z IR 1pfEss o

(B) Associated corporations (B) HEEEEE
(i)  Long positions in shares/underlying shares () RGBEERGZIE
Approximate
percentage of
total number
of ordinary
shares of
associated
Number of corporation
shares/ in issue
Name of underlying HHEEEE
associated Nature of  shares held BRTEER
corporation Name of director  interest BERHB  Note Total e 4
B EE LR EEpE BEME  HEROHE M Bt Aot
Hong Leong Company KWEK Leng Hai Personal 420,500 420,500 2.61%
(Malaysia) Berhad ~ Zf438 A
Guoco Group Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 3,800,775 3,800,775 1.16%
EEEBERAF #2E fELA
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 130,000 130,000 0.04%
xS A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 566,230 566,230 0.17%
BR AR fELA
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)
(B) Associated corporations (continued)

(i) Long positions in shares/underlying shares
(continued)

EERKRM - HERORE
F2ER @)

(B) #RECEE(E)
() R -HEERGZIFR (&)
Approximate

percentage of
total number

of ordinary
shares of
associated
Number of corporation
shares/ in issue
Name of underlying 1HEEEE
associated Nature of  shares held ERTEER
corporation Name of director  interest BER®B,  Note Total B2 BA
HELEEE EEnR EatE HEROEE HF gt Batt
Guocoland Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 35,290,914 35,290,914 2.98%
("GLL") $LE A
BEEHERRAE
((BIEEME]) TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 865,000 (a) 865,000 0.07%
BZzE BA
WHANG Sun Tze Family 66,600 66,600 0.01%
BEH Rk
TAN Lim Heng Personal 1,337,777 1,337,777 0.11%
BR AR L A
Hong Leong Bank KWEK Leng Hai Personal 5,510,000 5,510,000 0.26%
Berhad BSE A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 129,000 129,000 0.01%
BEH Rk
Hong Leong Financial  KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,526,000 2,526,000 0.22%
Group Berhad BSE A
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 174,146 174,146 0.02%
BEzE BA
WHANG Sun Tze Family 534,092 534,092 0.05%
BEH EQ
TAN Lim Heng Personal 267,813 267,813 0.02%
BR AR L BA
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

(B) Associated corporations (continued)

EERKRD -  HEROKE

H2ER

(B) HEBEEE(#E)

(i) Long positions in shares/underlying shares (i) BR17 - TEER G 2B (&)
(continued)
Approximate
percentage of
total number
of ordinary
shares of
associated
Number of corporation
shares/ in issue
Name of underlying 1HEEEE
associated Nature of  shares held ERTEER
corporation Name of director  interest BER®B,  Note Total wE A
HELEEE EEnR EatE HEROEE HF #@st Batt
Hong Leong Industries  KWEK Leng Hai Personal 190,000 190,000 0.06%
Berhad BB aA
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 300,000
BEE A
Family 15,000 315,000 0.10%
Rk
WHANG Sun Tze Family 105,600 105,600 0.05%
g Rk
Guocoland (Malaysia) KWEK Leng Hai Personal 226,800 226,800 0.03%
Berhad nLE BA
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 195,000 195,000 0.03%
P E fBA
TAN Lim Heng Personal 326,010 326,010 0.05%
BRME A
Hume Industries WHANG Sun Tze Family 12,667 12,667 0.01%
(Malaysia) Sdn Bhd ~ E L% e
GL Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 300,000 300,000 0.02%
548 A
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 2,500,000 2,500,000 0.18%
;ES BA
TAN Lim Heng Personal 1,100,000 1,100,000 0.08%
BRAME BA
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,

Underlying Shares

(continued)

and Debentures

(B) Associated corporations (continued)

(i) Long positions in shares/underlying shares

(continued)

EERKRM - HERORE
F2ER @)

(B) 1EEREE(#E)
() R3 HEERG 2B (E)
Approximate

percentage of
total number

of ordinary
shares of
associated
Number of corporation
shares/ in issue
Name of underlying 1HEEEE
associated Nature of  shares held ERTEER
corporation Name of director  interest BER®B,  Note Total B2 BA
HELE AR BExpng RN HERGEE W #@st Bk
Malaysian Pacific KWEK Leng Hai Personal 71,250 71,250 0.04%
Industries Berhad %8 BA
The Rank Group Plc KWEK Leng Hai Personal 1,026,209 1,026,209 0.26%
BLE BA
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 130,000 130,000 0.03%
BEE BA
TAN Lim Heng Personal 152,882 152,882 0.04%
PR E BA
Hume Industries KWEK Leng Hai Personal 310,771 (b) & (c) 310,771 0.06%
Berhad ("HIB") HLE BA
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 3,776,670 (b) & (d)
;ES BA
Family 26,199 3,802,869 0.76%
Kk
Southern Steel Berhad TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 71,000 71,000 0.01%
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

(B) Associated corporations (continued)

EENRRST - HERGORE
52

(B) fHEEEE ()

(i)  Long positions in debentures (i) EFZHE
Name of Nature of Amount of
associated corporation Name of director interest debentures held  Note Total
BB EE R EEMR ERE ERENEE Wi et
MYR MYR
BRAZET BRA T
HIB KWEK Leng Hai Personal 73,900 (b) 73,900
B8 BA
TANG Hong Cheong Personal 930,000 (b)
OEY= BA
Family 7,000 937,000
Y
Notes: B -

The total interests of 865,000 shares/underlying
shares comprised 345,000 ordinary shares of GLL
and an option in respect of 520,000 underlying
shares of GLL pursuant to an executive option
scheme of a Hong Leong Group Company.

Interests in 5-year 5% redeemable convertible
unsecured loan stocks (“RCULS") issued by HIB.
The RCULS are convertible into ordinary shares of
HIB at the conversion price of MYR0.7 RCULS for 1
HIB share.

The total interests of 310,771 shares/underlying
shares comprised 205,200 ordinary shares of HIB
and a derivative interest of 105,571 underlying
shares of HIB through the conversion right under
the RCULS.

The personal interests of 3,776,670 shares/
underlying shares comprised 2,448,100 ordinary
shares of HIB and a derivative interest of 1,328,570
underlying shares of HIB through the conversion
right under the RCULS. The family interests of
26,199 shares/underlying shares comprised 16,200
ordinary shares of HIB and a derivate interest
of 9,999 underlying shares of HIB through the
conversion right under the RCULS.

MIE(EB)BRRAA

SEEa il

865,000 8% & 17, 12 BA R 13 2
E 7 28 KA /B0 $5 345,000 8% B %
B EZERRRE -ZEBE
BEQTTHRAERDZEE
2|2 F520,000 R B E #tb
ERREIRD ZREBHE -

HBE {THSFEHSEET
BEOUEREEREER
(TRCULS ) WIFIE o RCULSH]
BER0.7ER AL T HER
BEHE1RHBAZER -

310,771 R B2 HHE KRB 2
RERBEEIE205,200RHIBE
BR&IEBRCULST R AR
1B #9105,571 R HIBAEEE AR 19
ZOTHERER o

3,776,670 B B 3 18 B8
BHzBEAEZBELRE
2,448,100 RHBE BR & &
BRCULSTHMAREESH
1,328,570B% HIBABRE AR 1B 2 6T
EHE 2619 BR B,
EROZRGEEAEE
$% 16,200 R HBE @ IR & &
BRCULSTHAREESH
9,999 HIBAERARR 10 2 HT 4 #E
%o
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

(B)

Associated corporations (continued)

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Share Options

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (“ESOS 2013")

ESOS 2013 was approved by the shareholders of the Company at
the extraordinary general meeting held on 23 April 2013 and took
effect on 25 April 2013 (“Adoption Date”). Summary of details of
the ESOS 2013 is set out below:

The purpose of the ESOS 2013 is as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

104

to align the long term interests of any executive or director
of the Group, who is eligible to participate in the ESOS
2013 ("Eligible Executives”) with those of the Shareholders
and encourage Eligible Executives to assume greater
responsibility for the performance of the business that they
manage;

to motivate Eligible Executives towards strategic business
objectives;

to reward Eligible Executives with an equity stake in the
success of the Group; and

to make the total compensation package more competitive
in order to attract, retain and motivate high caliber
executives.

EERKRM - HERORE
F2ER @)

(B)

1HEEE ()

BRAXFREEN  BETAAQFTE
ERA QAR EEMEEEE(REES
RHBERBIEXVER 2 ER) R ARER
FREFRBIZEIS2FRB[EMR 2B A
M fEzROBBBERA T 2 KRR
i HERORESZRBEREESFRA
HERDB R 2

KRR EE

20131THA ER P RBESTE([2013K 17
B RERTE )

203 RBEFBRA=-ZE—=FNA=+=
HRREFBRIAE EERRE  YR=F—=
FOA-+HBA(HFMBER]ER - 201345
RIBRESTEIZ BT ¢

2013 M ARBEFTENENMT -

0

(ii)

(iii)

FEEEAFSERSE2013RDBEE
AEIZITHRAERES(SERITHA
ENWREMNSERR - ASBE
ERTBRABHRSEMEEZEBHE
RAEERER;

BBSERTRASERRERXKER

LA RS 7 1 2 2% B ¥ 5% 181 /9 B 2 1 HE B JRR
ZEERTBAE &

FEEBHFMTBENS - LUIRE  %RE
R#EBSERNITHAS -
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Share Options (continued)

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (“ESOS 2013")
(continued)

To be eligible for participation in the ESOS 2013, a person must be
at least eighteen (18) years of age and:

(i) be an executive of a member of the Group and has been
confirmed in service; or

(ii) be a director of member of the Group.

The Board may at its absolute discretion select and identify suitable
Eligible Executives to be offered options.

The total number of shares which may be issued and/or transferred
by the Trust upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the ESOS 2013 and any other share option scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Company’s total number of shares
in issue at the Adoption Date of the ESOS 2013.

The maximum entitlement for any eligible executive in respect of
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granted in any 12 months period does
not exceed 1% of the Company’s total number of shares in issue.

The Board may at its discretion determine the exercise price of an
option under the ESOS 2013 provided that the exercise price so
fixed shall not be less than greatest of (a) the average closing price
of a share as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the day of offer of such option; (b) the closing price of a share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the day
of offer of such option, which must be a business day; and (c) the
nominal value of a share®o®,

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of
the share option within 30 days (or such longer period of time as
may be permitted by the Board at its discretion) from the date of
making such offer.

The ESOS 2013 will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on 25 April 2013.

Note: The concept of par value of a share was abolished with effect from
3 March 2014 pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RO ABRE )

20131TTHA ER P RBESTE([2013K 17
RERETE ) #)

HEERSE20BROABES B AT HE
FwmTN18mK :

0) AEERERAZITHRABY CHER
REBRY ; =

(i) AEERERAZES-

ESSTRHBHMBERRERERAESZRE
BITBRABRTREE -

RIB2013R 40 R ME AT IR H AR 0 R BB
SEIT TR AR BEETER - BT
%/ SEBRETEREZRODBE - SHTER
BARBREMBACSRITRDBEZ10% °

REFA+ZEASE - EAEERTRAERT
FEERE KRR 2 RBRRC BITRERITR
NRE BETFEBERITROBEZ1% -

EZEURANBRRAESERN2013RDRAE
TR TR 2RBEZITEE - ERUEEEN
THEERZELBTIINRSE : (a)RERHZRA
BREZANDALXABI I8 ARERNE
RZEBRROFHVTE  bREZRBEEH
(REAREER Bz BRRERMETZE
BEADTE  ROBREE®Y

REHEHEFN=1THER(REESSRER
BREAFN—ERRNE)  ERRBEAIN
REBEIT -

2013RBBBEH B ERBRE-T—=F
MA—+HEAEHTE

e RBFBATERG > BROEABENESE HE
B H-Z-—NE=ZA=A84ENK
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Share O ptions (continued)

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (“ESOS 2013")
(continued)

Details of the options during the year ended 30 June 2020 are as
follows:

As at 1 July 2019, there were 1,035,000 outstanding options
pursuant to the ESOS 2013.

During the year, no share options were vested to the grantees
under the ESOS 2013. No share options granted to the grantees
were lapsed or cancelled and 1,035,000 share options were
exercised by the grantees. Details of the share options as at 30
June 2020 are as follows:

RO ABRE )

20131TTHA ER P RBETE([2013K 17
RERETE ) #)

BE-S-SFAASALEE  AWENH
BT :

RZE-IEFEELA—H  RE2013RMHZERE
T8 MARITHEZFRBEEEZE 51,035,000 °

REIA - RIB2013BMRERETE > WREM[
ERARTRARE - RERTERAZRIBEX
M BUE » UARER AITEEL1,035 0008 R
Eo-RZB-ZBEXNA=TH  RODEEZ
BT :

Number of share options
RiRBEHE
Weighted
average
closing price
for exercise
of options
(Note 4)
As at Granted Lapsed Exercised As at Exercise  fTHRBEEZ
1 July 2019 during during during 30 June 2020 price TS
Date of grant Grantees RZZ-1E the year the year theyear ~ WZ-ECEF per share Gl
RLRE BRA tA-A REAEY REAAR  RERAER e SRITEE (Hiit4)
HKS HKS ~ Notes
B B Wi
2810 2013 LEUNG Joseph 450,000 - - 450,000 - 461 1260 183
ZE-ZERACTNR (Group Managing Director)
PIERE SEESLLR
28 Jun 2013 Eligible Executives 504,000 = = 504,000 = 462 1442 183
SE-SERBCTNR RERABAR
26 Nov 2014 Eligible Executive 81,000 - - 81,000 - 6.80 1260 283
ZE-RET-AotRE GERAHAR
Total 4% : 1,035,000 - - 1,035,000 -
Notes: /‘V#ﬁi& :
1. Following the end of the performance period from 1 July 2012 1. R-E——_F+tHA—-HZ-ZF—tFXA=+

to 30 June 2017, the Board Remuneration Committee of the
Company (“BRC") has exercised its discretion to vest options in
respect of 2,250,000 shares of the Company to Mr. LEUNG Joseph
and 2,520,000 shares of the Company to Eligible Executives
("Earned Option”).

BzRBHERE N TAESSFHNEES
((FHEEL N EITERBEEARZBAER
2,250,000 AR RHD2RBEROEE
BITHRA B 52,520,000 R A2 = R4 2 52
BBRE([FriSseismel) -
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Share Options (continued)

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (“ESOS 2013")
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

2. Following the end of the performance period from 1 July 2014 to
30 June 2017, the BRC has exercised its discretion to vest options in
respect of 405,000 shares of the Company to an Eligible Executive
("Earned Option”).

B The Earned Option shall be exercisable as follows:

(a) 40% of the Earned Option is exercisable from the date of
notification of entitlement for the Earned Option (“Vesting
Date”) up to 6 months from the Vesting Date, i.e. from 23
November 2017 to 22 May 2018;

(b) another 40% of the Earned Option is exercisable from the
13th month up to the 18th month from the Vesting Date,
i.e. from 23 November 2018 to 22 May 2019; and

() the remaining 20% of the Earned Option is exercisable
from the 25th month up to the 30th month from the
Vesting Date, i.e. from 23 November 2019 to 22 May
2020.

4. Being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s
ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the options
were exercised.

Save as disclosed herein, no other options were vested, exercised,
lapsed or cancelled under the ESOS 2013 during the year.
Accordingly, there were no outstanding options at 30 June 2020.

Save for above, certain other subsidiaries of Hong Leong
Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM"), the ultimate holding
company of the Company, maintain share option schemes or
plans or arrangements which subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year, under which eligible directors of the
Company may be granted share options for acquisition of shares
of respective companies concerned. Mr. TANG Hong Cheong, a
director of the Company, had acquired and held shares of certain
subsidiaries of HLCM in pursuance of a share option scheme
maintained by a subsidiary of HLCM during the year.

Apart from above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

RO ABRE )

20131TTHA ER P RBESTE([2013K 17
RERETE ) #)

Hiat : ()

2. R-ZB—NELtB—BE=Z—+tEXA=1
BzRBHERE  FHZESCTHERBRE
BE EHITHAER F405,00088 &1 7 KRA
ZREBRE(FEREED -

3. FRiSRIBREASIEU T A RATHE -

(@) FERBENEI 2N TTEEHE
FEREERN(EERYHEER
BEHEANEARTE  DH=F
—tE+-A=Z+=HEZZE-N\&E
FA=+=H;

(0 FERMENSNESZETARE
BEMEET=8AEE+/\EA
WA BH=F— T8
—tEAE=®-AFEA=F=
B R

(0 FERBENESBREI 2= THARE
EERSBRE—_+tREAEE=1EA
HETE BBE=T-NE+-—A4
“+=HE-E-_EFHEA-+=H-

4. AR REBEREEREIBETERR ZATN
HOREF I THAE o

BRANFTREES  RAFER - £2013K 45
RBEITET  WEEMREEEEIRE 1T
£~ RMHECH - @At - REFBZFBFEARA=T
B SEERITEZ B o

BREXFRMEEN  ARBzHLERLF
Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad
(THICM D) 2 & FEMHMB LA AREEBRFE
REFREBERINRODBETEIATR - B
It KA EERESUERRBERAATRG
ZRDDBE - RAFER  AARESEES
TERBHLCMZ M B R B PR AV R 132 B85
28 EWBREEHLCMZE THB AT ZR
1 o

Br EXCFLE SN RAFER - AQF - HEER
DF -~ B R HERME A R RE R
BMBEAZHFZFTNTE  RBAEARTESZAHE
WA R B RAEMEAMEE 2 R REZESF

Ho
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

As at 30 June 2020, the following shareholders (other than
directors of the Company whose interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as disclosed above)
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

FTERRZFRERS

RZB-EBFEXRA=1AH - REZBHFRBEKG
FEIHMMEMB 2B AMBPFTHE > THERER
(B EX AN R EEHFE AR A ZRMH
ERAROGPZARROREERG 2ER)FE
RATRMBBEEABRAF 2 KR RD RAEBRD
2R

Approximate

Number of percentage

shares held of interest

BEZROHE fREZBHEIL

Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM") 155,349,659 63.84%
QUEK Leng Chan EB&#E 155,349,659 63.84%
HL Holdings Sdn Bhd (“HLH") 155,349,659 63.84%
Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte Limited (“HLIH") 155,349,659 63.84%
Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited (“Davos”) 155,349,659 63.84%
KWEK Leng Kee 155,349,659 63.84%

Note:

The interests comprised (i) 140,008,659 ordinary shares in the Company
held by GuolLine International Limited (“GIL"); (ii) 6,016,000 ordinary
shares in the Company held by Richly Choice Development (PTC) Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; and (iii) 9,325,000 underlying
shares of the Company of other unlisted derivatives held by Oceanease
Limited.

GIL was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GuoLine Capital Assets Limited
("GCA") which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of HLCM.
Oceanease Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GuocoEquity Assets
Limited which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guoco Group
Limited ("GGL"). GGL was 71.88% owned by Guoline Overseas Limited
("GOL") which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GCA. By virtue
of Section 316(2) of the SFO, HLCM was 49.11% owned by Mr. QUEK
Leng Chan as to 2.43% under his personal name, 46.68% via HLH which
was wholly-owned by him. HLIH held 34.49% interest in HLCM. Mr.
KWEK Leng Kee held 41.92% interest in Davos which in turn held 33.59%
interest in HLIH.

All the interests disclosed under this section were long positions in
the ordinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, no other person (other than directors of
the Company) has an interest or a short position in the shares and
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Hret

% HE# B $& (i) Guoline International Limited ([ GIL |)
BB RADQ T 140,008,659 Z B 2w ;5 (AR
7 2 & & [ B 2 FRichly Choice Development (PTC)
LimitediE B A A F6,016,0000 L imBIR 2 5 5 K(iii)
Oceanease LimitedZEBEMIE EHITETABFEARLD
79,325,0008% 1EBARR 1D = fE 2% ©

GILE Guoline Capital Assets Limited ([GCA]) 22 #&
WEBAR » BEAHLCMZEZEMEB AR o Oceanease
Limited BEE R AEEBRLAGAZEZENB AR
BEREEEEERARA(BESEER ] 22EHWE
AT BElMEEE 2 71.88% £ % H Guoline Overseas
Limited ([GOL)) B ° GOLAGCAZZEMB AT °
BRIEFE S R ERBIZE316(2FRE ' HLCM249.11%
EEADSBEEUMABEEE243% ~ KhEE
BB ZHLHIFE46.68% © HLIHIEBHLCM 34.49% 2 #&
# o KWEK Leng KeeZE 4 $5HEDavos 41.92% 2 BRFEM
DavosBlF B HLIH 33.59% Z B4 -

WO E . MEREERBAARTAHRER
BRAAD ©

BRANFREE S - RIFR R ERGIZE336
RBEMR 2B CMATRCEE - WERHEMA L (R
DNAEBRINBFEARTAROIEARAH 2
KRRG KBRS 2
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed Shares

During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the trustee for a trust set up for the purpose of acquiring shares
of the Company to satisfy the exercise of options granted to
the Executive Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 April 2013,
purchased 702,000 shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
at a total consideration of HK$9,302,000.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, the Company did not
redeem any of its listed shares and neither did the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the Company’s listed
shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Total sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s revenue for the year.

Total purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for less than 30% of the Group’s purchases for the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

At all times during the year and up to 27 August 2020, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the directors.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 August 2020

MR (EE

BE  HEIW/EEAFLZ
™ 7 7

RAFER  ARARZ2EMBARER—E
EEZETEA  ZEXNARBARIT 2R
MR BUBTREARANR-Z—=FIA
T = BERMZITHABRDREET BIRER
HZRORBEZTE)EEBHERZ AR
REBET702,000R AR FRE - RLERBE
9,302,0007T °

Eﬁﬂtm # ﬁ$“7&ﬁ@&ﬂ%%“7
HEBERHEEAEAAR 2 LHES -

FTEFFREER

FEBETFTREANERVEFNBARIEEEE
REEHEFEDLN30% °

AEBEESANERVHERNBEREARE
EXRFEEBEHEEEDN30% °

B ABRERE
ERAMASADEN 2 EHRBEEFAE

ERFERAREE-ZEFN\A=-TLR &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRHBENHRES

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lam
Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 117 to 228, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30 June 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BB &
BHIE(EB)BRATKE
(REBEMALAIERZ E])

=R

AZEE (AT EB KM EBAHNERE
M7ZE228EHMEIE(FE)BRQR (U TEHRB
[EAFNREMBLAR(UTHABIEEE])
WEEUBRE KU BRRBER=-ZE=Z
FRA=ZTHMNGEEUBERRNKRERZZA L
FENGREEEER HKeBERkEMZENKE
X BRARZEHRNGEESHSHER UK
FEMBRAMTE  SETESHEEME -

BEMRR  ZEGSUBRREREFTBER
MASEANC(EBIBREENEEMHS
WERMTERER-Z-_EFAA=THNEK
SUBRARBEZALFENGSVBRR
REEaHERE  YECBREB(RAGRMZ
REE -

RRNVER

EMERETBEHMASEAN(TBETE
BETES - RPEZSEATRENELES
EARE [ZBAR BT FE P BRRAEAED
BE B0 RAEE— S ML - RIEFBEFEIQ
SHEANCEXESRERTRD (U T8 <
Al BMBYRESE  ACETTRHH
HitERBREME - ARG - RAMESH
ETRREAERBERREMNEFZRRE
HER -
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Key audit matters

FRETSE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional BEERTSEERERMPNEZHNE  25Y
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the TG EMBRRNEABRREENSE - B
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These EEFEAERMENEESRSUBERRLEEA
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the EREETEEN BRMATSHELEEREMS
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our BEBEMER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 157 to 159

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Sales of flour, edible oil and home care products are
recognised as revenue when the control of the products
are transferred to the Group’s customers according to
the terms of the sales and purchase agreements entered
into between the Group and its customers.

Generally, management considers the control of the
products are transferred to the Group’s customers when
the goods are delivered to the customers’ premises.

The Group trades mainly with distributors and
supermarkets and has a large volume of individual
transactions which increases the risk of error in
recognising revenue.

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group which could create an incentive
for management to record revenue inappropriately to
meet targets or expectations and because the large
transaction volume increases the possibility of errors in
recognising revenue.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following:

o gaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls over the completeness,
existence and accuracy and timing of revenue
recognition;

o challenging the revenue recognition policies
adopted by the Group by making inquiries of
management and inspecting a sample of sales and
purchase agreements to understand the terms of the
transactions with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;

o assessing the existence and identity of a sample
of new customers of the Group during the year
by performing background searches on these
customers;

o comparing sales records for a sample of sales
transactions recorded during the year with relevant
underlying documentation, which included sales
invoices and goods delivery notes with evidence of
the customers’ receipt of the goods and the date of
receipt of the goods by the customers;

o identifying significant sales returns from the sales
ledger after the year end and inspecting the
underlying documentation in relation to these
sales returns to assess if the related adjustments to
revenue had been accounted for in the appropriate
accounting period;
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BYRHBENHRES

Key audit matters (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 157 to 159 (continued)

The Key Audit Matter (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

LN

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following: (continued)

o assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific
revenue transactions around the financial year end
had been recognised in the appropriate financial
period in accordance with the terms of sale as
set out in the sales and purchase agreements by
comparing details of these transactions with sales
invoices and goods delivery notes with evidence of
the customers’ receipt of the goods and the date of
receipt of the goods by the customers; and

o selecting a sample of journal entries affecting
revenue recognised during the year, adopting
specific risk-based criteria, and comparing the details
of these adjustments with the related underlying
documentation.
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FARETTEE @

BT ()

BE G BB ANESRE157EE 1598 BT B F ()

AR Z
BRBETER(AE) e pl:x

FrWAREZEE(E)

EMFEBABRETHEARZFEENT © (F)

Information other than the
consolidated financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors
for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Board Audit and Risk
Management Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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BB ERT RS M BRE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (ontinued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also: (continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board Audit and Risk Management
Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Board Audit and Risk
Management Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Guen Kin Shing.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 August 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEER

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

2020 2019
—E-EHE —E—hE
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
BiaE BT T BT T
Revenue WA 5 5,119,437 5,316,205
Cost of sales SHERM A (3,925,837) (4,161,761)
Gross profit ER 1,193,600 1,154,444
Other income Hauwg A 6 67,793 43,702
Selling and distribution expenses EERDHEHER (661,831) (614,519)
Administrative expenses THEHAR (199,692) (185,499)
Profit from operations KRR 399,870 398,128
Finance costs A& AN 7 (238) -
Profit before taxation B& F4 A1 55 R 7 399,632 398,128
Taxation 18 8(a) (82,743) (58,052)
Profit for the year REERF 316,889 340,076
Attributable to: FEh -
Equity shareholders of the Company FNNGT S 316,889 340,076
Non-controlling interests FEiEFIREE - -
Profit for the year REERF 316,889 340,076
Earnings per share BRER
Basic =N 117(a) HKS$HEME1.347T HK$BEE1 447t
Diluted B 11(b) HKS$#E¥1.347T HK$BEE1.43 7T
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July 2019 M AEBR-ZZE-NFLtA-—BANKBKBEE

using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, comparative information is not restated. See

note 2(c).

The notes on pages 125 to 228 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in

note 10.

B RS R ELEREE + S5 o RIBIRAKETH
BEE  KBENETEES - FIEHRM

E2(c) °

IR 125F 228 2 R IEMFEARBEHRK 2
—ER1D o FEAS F AN B IR IR FEAL AN R A AR

B2 BRI MEE10 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mERmkAEMEERER

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

2020 2019
—E-EHE —E—hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Profit for the year REERR 316,889 340,076
Other comprehensive income for AEEHMEEKE (NBREHIE
the year (net of nil tax and REHSERAER)
reclassification adjustments)
Items that may be reclassified HegnsHfosBEBHR2ER
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of BEEBIUINMNE D R MBERE
financial statements of subsidiaries FIEECERER
outside Hong Kong (64,048) (61,555)
Exchange reserves reclassified to WEARERELRBEETSE
profit or loss upon liquidation of ZiEER
a subsidiary (595) -
Other comprehensive income rEEHMEZEKE
__ fortheyear (64,643) (61,555
Total comprehensive income TEEZEKEEE
for the year 252,246 278,521
Attributable to: B4 -
Equity shareholders of the Company RABPRE 252,246 278,521
Non-controlling interests FEEHIER - -
Total comprehensive income for AEEEXHEKRBE
the year 252,246 278,521

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July 2019 using Flat : AREBR-ZE-NEtA—BYVBRERSHE

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, ISR EERIE + 59 o RIBFRALBITH
comparative information is not restated. See note 2(c). BE  EBRERIFAEEY - FBEEAM
F2(c) °

The notes on pages 125 to 228 form part of these financial SINE125F228E 2 R IEM S AR EHE 2
statements. — &4 °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

ma B IR &

At30June 2020 R=ZT=—ZFF<A=1H

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BiaE BT T BT T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Leasehold land and property, plant and HEL B RWE -
equipment MERZE 12 668,030 703,570
Intangible assets and goodwill B EENRTE 13 6,862 9,597
Deferred tax assets EIEFIIBEE 20 26 -
Other non-current assets HibEREERE 14 17,284 11,498
692,202 724,665
Current assets REBEE
Inventories ZE 15(a) 646,073 625,843
Trade and other receivables B 5 KkEMEWRR 16 347,216 393,284
Cash and short term funds BEREHES 17 1,529,608 1,317,927
2,522,897 2,337,054
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B REMESIRI 18(a) 639,793 673,063
Contract liabilities cRAa%E 18(b) 39,369 28,232
Tax payables PR 8(c) 35,146 13,636
Lease liabilities HEEE 19 2,767 160
717,075 715,091
Net current assets BREEE 1,805,822 1,621,963
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 2,498,024 2,346,628
Non-current liabilities FknBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EEHREBERE 20 19,543 11,731
Lease liabilities HEas 19 1,584 354
21,127 12,085
NET ASSETS BEE 2,476,897 2,334,543
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
e B IR R

At30June 2020 R=ZT=—ZF<A=1H

2020 2019
—E-EHE —E—hE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BtaE B F T BT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EeRkf#E

Share capital BRAK 21(a) 672,777 672,777
Reserves #E 1,804,120 1,651,053

Total equity attributable to equity AARRREGEER
shareholders of the Company 2,476,897 2,323,830
Non-controlling interests FEZH R - 10,713
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 2,476,897 2,334,543

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 KEEEEN-_E-_SENA-+LAH#ER

August 2020. FERETEE o
WONG Cho Fai =HHEHE TANG Hong Cheong BES
DIRECTOR =1 DIRECTOR EE

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July 2019 using fit: AREBR=ZZS—-NFEtA—BYBRERAETE

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, BB EERE T RE - REFALEITH
comparative information is not restated. See note 2(c). BE EBRERTAEEY - FBEEAM
F2(0) °

The notes on pages 125 to 228 form part of these financial FIRE 1258228 HE 2 S IEM AR RET 2
statements. —&h4p ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KAIRREE
Share Non-
Share  Surplus ESOP option  Exchange  Revenue controlling Total
capital  reserves  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve Total interests equity
figAR
Ri7#E k&

Bk BEBdE  BREE AWERE ENRE  GEER gt AEHEE  BEelt
Note  HKS000 ~ HKSO00  HKS'000 ~ HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'O00  HKS'000  HKS'000

Wi BRTr ERTR BRTn BRTn BRTn ERFa BRTn BT BRTx

At 1 July 2019 RIZ-NELA-A 672,177 156,399 (52,978) 1,012 (33,504) 1,580,064 2,323,830 10713 2,334,543
Profit for the year REEEA - - - - - 316889 316,889 - 316,889
Bichange differences on translation  BEEEUNKEAR

of financial statements of HERRAEEL

subsiciaries outside Hong Kong R - - - - (64,049) - (64048) - (64088)
Eichange reserves reclassified to B AREB 2 E R fith

profit or loss upon liquidation of ~ EFAEZERE

a subsidiary - - - - (595) - (595) - (595)
Total comprehensive income AEERENEAE

for the year - - - - (64643 316,889 252,246 - 250,46
Erercise of share options i RhAER - - 9186 (1,150) - (308 4958 = 4,958
Equity settled share-based BREEFZURGA

transactions EBRA - - - 78 - - 78 - 78
Purchase of ordinary shares of the ~ HRASERE T EERE

Company for share option scheme KRR ZEER ) - - (9.302) - - - (9.302) = (9.302)
Transfer from revenue reserve to MR HEERE BB

surplus reserve - 6,497 - - - (6,497) - - -
liquidation of asubsidiary with ~ ERBEFELERY

non-controlling interests WEAF - - - - - 10,713 10,713 (10,713) -
Utiisation of discretionary FRMERSGERE

surplus reserve - (1,329) - - - - (1,329) - (1,329)
Final dividend paid in respect SEEECARERE

of prior year 10(b) - - - - - (1,01 (m,0m) - (71,01m)
Interim dividend paid inrespect ~ BAEEDANHRE

of current year 10(3) - - - - - (3320 (33,20 - (3320

- 5,168 (116) (1,072) - (103,159 (99179)  (10,713)  (109,892)

At 30 June 2020 WZE-EERA=1H 672,117 161,567 (53,094) - (98,147) 1,793,794 2,476,897 - 2,476,897
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RAIRREL
Share Non-
Share Surplus £SOP option  Exchange  Revenue controlling Total
apital  reserves  reserve reseve  reserve  reserve Total  interests equity
filAg
hyieg kit
Re  EBEE  ARRG JBERE EXRE  GERE At FEGEE  BEGH
Note  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
fiE BT EETn BBin EETn BETn BBin BBin BETn BB
At 1 July 2018 RZE-N\EtA-H 672,771 151,588 (47,397) 2810 28051 1352473 2,160,362 10713 217,075
Profit for the year REEEA - - - - - 340076 340,076 - 340076
Bichange differences on translation  BEEEUNKEAR
of finandial statements of HBERAELL
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong ~ EXZESE - - - - (6155 - (6155) - (6155
Total comprehensive income for ~~ KEE2FUFAE
the year - - - - (61,555) 340,076 218521 - 21852
Evercice of share options iz RimE - - 15745 (2,160) - (3669) 9916 - 9916
Equity settled share-based REREEURDA
transactions EffRS - - - 362 - - 362 - 362
Purchase of ordinary shares of b GE 1 HEL £
the Company for share ANFZERR
option scheme 21(3) - - (213) - - - (213) - (21.32)
Transfer from revenue reserveto  FIEBEERE
surplus reserve BhRE - 1188 - - - (1186) - - -
Utiisation of discretionary surplus R EREA R
reserve - (7,051) - - - - (7,051) - (7,051)
Final dividend paid in respectof ~ BAEECARHRE
prior year 10(b) - - - - - (@31 (63730) - (63730)
Interim dividend paid inrespectof ~ FAEED ANHRE
current year 10a) - - - - - BW 3B - 33w
- 4,811 (5,581) (1.798) - (112,485)  (115,053) - (115,093)
At30 June 2019 RZE-NERA=TH 672,777 156,399 (52,978) 1,072 (33,504) 1,580,064 2,323,830 10713 2,334,543

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July 2019
using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, comparative information is not restated. See
note 2(c).

CARERZZE-NAFLA-HYUBKRAEE
ISR EERE % o RBRAEIERTH
BWE  EBERLTEES - FEHERRK
=F2(c) °

The notes on pages 125 to 228 form part of these financial
statements.

IR 1258228 H 2 R IEMFE AR HRK 2
— 45 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Bat B F T EBEF T
Operating activities ReEEE
Profit before taxation RRBL A& A 399,632 398,128
Adjustments for: .
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 7 68,381 61,786
Write-down of inventories FERE 15(b) 2,433 3,763
Loss allowance recognised for trade ESERERRZ
receivables EEREER 7 93 228
Finance costs [E SN 7 238 -
Interest income on financial assets RIBERAFTESREEZ
measured at amortised cost FEUWA 6 (32,140) (27,250)
Net unrealised loss on club membership £ 2 ARSI FEE 6 143 152
Net losses on disposal of property, plant and HEY¥ - MERZREZ
equipment FHEE 6 8,499 66
Government grants income related to MMEB—HENREZ
relocation of a flour mill plant ISR PN 6 (11,751) (7,766)
Share-based payment expenses REZSER 7 78 362
Net unrealised exchange losses ABIRE L FER 3,645 936
Changes in working capital: EESTHED
Increase in inventories FE & (43,916) (11,211)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B REMEWERRZ
other receivables B, () 39,519 (17,185)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and EENREMEMERRZ
other payables G,/ (3,856) 38,463
Increase in contract liabilities SEEEZEM 12,285 445
Cash generated from operations REEBRBNERS 443,283 440,917
Taxation: BiE
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded/(paid) EE(EM)EBREH 697 (6,229)
Tax paid outside Hong Kong SR EBUNNIE (53,553) (45,641)
Net cash generated from RETHABHRL T
operating activities 390,427 389,047
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BtaE B F T BEF T
Investing activities REED
Interest received 2 U F £ 30,211 27,250
(Increase)/decrease in fixed deposits FFERESBEAE=EA
held at banks with original maturity D ERRITEBRFERZ
over three months (1gm), (192,272) 50,000
Purchase of leasehold land and BEHEL MR YE -
property, plant and equipment MERZEAR
and intangible assets mEEE (92,904) (120,733)
Net proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment RIBFTBRIEFEE 1,039 1,485
Cash compensation received related to WE B REHRE—EEH
relocation of a flour mill plant BEFESRESEE 36,359 -
Net cash used in investing activities REZBFfIERLEE (217,567) (41,998)
Financing activities RMEEE
Purchase of ordinary shares of the MDA EEE
Company for share option scheme RRAB2EBR 21(a) (9,302) (21,326)
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1Tz R REBHE
Fri8shig 4,958 9,916
Decrease in restricted bank balances BRE 2BITESRZ
DR - 2,924
Capital element of lease rentals paid 2HEEHEE2EREHB  17(0) (3,642) (346)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEERESRELD  170) (238) -
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of {fFAQATREZRE
the Company (104,297) (96,954)
Net cash used in financing activities METBFAAREFE 0 (112,521) 77777777 (105786)
Net increase in cash and ReRESEHFHEEM
cash equivalents 60,339 241,263
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July REtB—BZRER
HEE5E 1,317,927 1,109,222
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ER& &)~ 5 (40,930) (32,558)
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June RAA=1+HZRER
HEZ4E 17(a) 1,337,336 1,317,927

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July 2019 using ftit : REBR-ZE—NEFEtB—BYBREAEE

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, B FEEREERIZE+ N5 - RIBRALEITHN
comparative information is not restated. See note 2(c). BEE EBEREREED o FIEERK
F2(0) °

The notes on pages 125 to 228 form part of these financial SINE125F228E 2 R IEM S AR EHE 2
statements. — &4 °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

General Information

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The
registered office and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at 21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial
Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is a holding company and its principal
activity is investment holding. The principal activities of
the Company’s subsidiaries include manufacturing, trading
and processing of edible oil, flour products and home care
products in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China
("PRC") and Macau.

Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“"HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 #HZE=

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2020 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- club membership; and

- derivative financial instruments (see note
2(9)).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16,
Leases, and a number of amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, none of the
developments have had a material effect on how the
Group's results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented.
The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the
related interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4, Determining
whether an arrangement contains a lease, HK(SIC)
15, Operating leases — incentives, and HK(SIC) 27,
Evaluating the substance of transactions involving
the legal form of a lease. It introduces a single
accounting model for lessees, which requires a
lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability for all leases, except for leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”)
and leases of low value assets. The lessor accounting
requirements are brought forward from HKAS 17
substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to assess
the effect that leases have on the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as
from 1 July 2019. The Group has elected to use
the modified retrospective approach and has
therefore recognised the cumulative effect of initial
application as an adjustment to the opening balance
of lease liabilities and the corresponding right-of-
use assets at 1 July 2019. Comparative information
has not been restated and continues to be reported
under HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and the
transition options applied are set out below:

(@)

New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly
relates to the concept of control. HKFRS 16
defines a lease on the basis of whether a
customer controls the use of an identified
asset for a period of time, which may be
determined by a defined amount of use.
Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of
a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that
were entered into or changed on or after
1 July 2019. For contracts entered into
before 1 July 2019, the Group has used
the transitional practical expedient to
grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are or contain leases.
Accordingly, contracts that were previously
assessed as leases under HKAS 17 continue to
be accounted for as leases under HKFRS 16.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2020

2.

BEESTBE @

(c)

BRI RS (#)

BB BHMEERIE N [
g/(#&)

FRBESHBRREH 2MER

=

|

LR ARBEERES

E—DEFBEHIMT ¢

(a)

HERHEZE

HEERZEBETESR
BRI BEBNK
BREZAFE+ARRER
FREN-—REFEAES
—REHEBEEREME
&S WEBBECEH
BEE AXFHRAREE
TERAEERBRIEE
AR EE KD KEF
HmOBRT - RIRRES
BEEE -

AEBESEBUBRSE
ERETARBNEEHE
EEAR-Z-NELA
— BRI LHEEZ
BE - XEEERR=-F
—NFELA—HAEZH
AREERER LA L2
BEFTEER L EF
BRAEZHER(ZES)H
g Bt TRREEE
SEEE T ERTMES
HEZENBEFRER
PR RS RIS 1 /<SR
TZHEARK-



2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(c)

2.

BEESTBE @

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

(b)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a
lessee to classify leases as either operating
leases or finance leases, as was previously
required by HKAS 17. Instead, the Group is
required to capitalise all leases when it is the
lessee, including leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, other than
those short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets which are exempt. As far as the
Group is concerned, these newly capitalised
leases are primarily in relation to property,
plant and equipment as disclosed in note 12.
For an explanation of how the Group applies
lessee accounting, see note 2(j)(i).

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. 1
July 2019), the Group determined the length
of the remaining lease terms and measured
the lease liabilities for the leases previously
classified as operating leases at the present
value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the relevant incremental
borrowing rates at 1 July 2019. The weighted
average of the incremental borrowing rates
used for determination of the present value
of the remaining lease payments was 5.14%.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

BEESTBE @

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

(b)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(continued)

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group
applied the following recognition exemption
and practical expedients at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16:

(i)

the Group elected not to apply the
requirements of HKFRS 16 in respect
of the recognition of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets to leases for
which the remaining lease term ends
within 12 months from the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16, i.e.
where the lease term ends on or
before 30 June 2020; and

when measuring the lease liabilities
at the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16, the Group applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with reasonably similar characteristics
(such as leases with a similar
remaining lease term for a similar
class of underlying asset in a similar
economic environment).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EESTHBERw

(continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) () EHBERNEHE)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued) BEBUBHEEREL NS [H
g/(#&)
(b)  Lessee accounting and transitional impact b) AEAESTTEEREBEE
(continued) Z(E)
The following table reconciles the operating MM EE25(0) I EE - T
lease commitments as disclosed in note 25(b) ®BARR=F—-NFXRA
as at 30 June 2019 to the opening balance for StTHZREHERIEN
lease liabilities recognised as at 1 July 2019: R=-Z—hEtB—H#®
R2HEEBEFNESRZ
AR
1 July 2019
—E-NEF
+A—H
HK$'000
B F T
Operating lease commitments at NZZ-NEXB=+tHzZEE
30 June 2019 HEHRE 3,423
Less: commitments relating to B BERRRERMLzEE
leases exempt from capitalisation: TRIE
— short-term leases and other leases - FepHEHNR ===
with remaining lease term FEERA=THE
ending on or before 30 June Z A E w2 SR HAAE
2020 ERHEMEE (219)
3,204
Less: total future interest expenses W RRFEEAARE (122)
Present value of remaining lease payments, RIZZE—AF+H—B2LUEE
discounted using the incremental BRI ZEEIR 2 R THENIR
borrowing rate at 1 July 2019 HE 3,082
Add: finance lease liabilities recognised as m:R=Z2—hE<A=1H
at 30 June 2019 mAHEHEaE 514
Total lease liabilities recognised R-ZE-NFtA—BERAZH
at 1 July 2019 E8E8% 3,596
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

(b)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(continued)

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases
previously classified as operating leases have
been recognised at an amount equal to the
amount recognised for the remaining lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to that lease recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 30 June
2019.

So far as the impact of the adoption of HKFRS
16 on leases previously classified as finance
leases is concerned, the Group is not required
to make any adjustments at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, other than changing
the captions for the balances. Accordingly,
instead of “obligations under finance leases”,
these amounts are included within “lease
liabilities”, and the depreciated carrying
amount of the corresponding leased assets is
identified as right-of-use assets. There is no
impact on the opening balance of equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2.

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

(b)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(continued)

The following table summarises the impacts
of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position:

BEESTBE @

(0 SEHERNESE)

BB BHEERE LN [H
g/(#&)

(b)

REANETEERBES

(&)

T R B IRAE B B T R
HEAE T NREEAER
REMBRRRZHE

Carrying amount Capitalisation  Carrying amount
at 30 June of operating at 1July
2019 lease contracts 2019
RZB-NE RZB-NE
~A=THZ feng tA-A2
RafE REERL REfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Vil BETT BETT
Line items in the consolidated statement  &HERAZT S FHE BT
of financial position impacted by the HEEAE AEHENER
adoption of HKFRS 16:
Leasehold land and property, RETHRNE  BEREE
plant and equipment 703,570 3,082 706,652
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 724,665 3,082 721,741
Lease liabilities (current) HESE(RE) 160 2,206 2,366
Total current liabilities El=EE 715,091 2,206 717,297
Net current assets BRBEE 1,621,963 (2,206) 1,619,757
Total assets less current liabilities BEEHTDAR 2,346,628 876 2,347,504
Lease liabilities (non-current) BEEECGERD) 354 876 1,230
Total non-current liabilities FRBARAR 12,085 876 12,961
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1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

BEESTBE @

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

(c)

(d)

Impact on the financial result, segment
results and cash flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019,
the Group as a lessee is required to recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead
of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
adoption of HKFRS 16 does not have material
impact on the financial results and segment
results of the Group for the year ended 30
June 2020.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the Group as a lessee is required to split
rentals paid under capitalised leases into their
capital element and interest element (see
note 17(b)). These elements are classified
as financing cash outflows, similar to how
leases previously classified as finance leases
under HKAS 17 were treated, rather than as
operating cash outflows, as was the case for
operating leases under HKAS 17. Although
total cash flows are unaffected, the adoption
of HKFRS 16 therefore results in a change
in presentation of cash flows within the
consolidated statement of cash flows (see
note 17(c)).

Lessor accounting
The accounting policies applicable to the

Group as a lessor remain substantially
unchanged from those under HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.
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For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 2(f)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(e)

(f)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over (ii) the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 2(k)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Investments other than equity investments
Non-equity investments held by the Group are

classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for

the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment
is calculated using the effective interest
method (see note 2(t)(iii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(f) Investments other than equity investments
(continued)

Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories: (continued)

fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI") - recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and
interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved
by both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss
of expected credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and
losses. When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity
to profit or loss.

fair value at profit or loss (“FVPL") if the
investment does not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised
in profit or loss.

(g) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss
on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest and items
of property, plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets arising from leases of underlying plant
and equipment, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(k)
(ii)). The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its present working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after an
item of property, plant and equipment has been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situation where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has
resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
the property, plant and equipment, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of the property,
plant and equipment.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)). Cost comprises
direct costs of construction, capitalised borrowing
costs and exchange differences to the extent that
it is an adjustment to borrowing costs during
the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their
intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress
until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(h)

()

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Leasehold land is depreciated over the unexpired
term of lease.

Buildings and leasehold 2-25 years
improvements
Machineries, equipment, 3-20 years

furniture and motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see note 2(k)(ii)). Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Enterprise planning resources 5 years
system (“ERP")
Trademarks 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

()

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 July 2019

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether
to capitalise the lease on a lease-
by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are
not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.
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R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

()

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 July 2019
(continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the
lease liability is initially recognised
at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease
liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised
when a lease is capitalised is initially
measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted
to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see notes 2(h) and

2(k)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

()

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 July 2019
(continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee,
or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset, or is recorded in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets
in “Leasehold land and property, plant
and equipment” and presents lease
liabilities separately in the statement
of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

()

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2019

In the comparative period, as a
lessee the Group classified leases as
finance leases if the leases transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group. Leases
which did not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group were classified as operating
leases.

Where the Group acquired the use
of assets under finance leases, the
amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum
lease payments, of such assets were
recognised as property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges,
were recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation was
provided at rates which wrote off the
cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it was likely
the Group would obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 2(h). Impairment losses
were accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set
out in note 2(k)(ii). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments were
charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals
were charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they were
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

()

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2019
(continued)

Where the Group had the use of
assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases
were charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis was
more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received
were recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent
rentals were charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they
were incurred.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with note

2(t)(i).
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1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial assets

The loss allowance of trade receivables is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses (“ECLs"), which are
those losses that are expected to occur over
the expected life of the trade receivables. The
loss allowance is estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial assets (including cash
and short term funds and other receivables),
the Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial assets since initial recognition, in
which case the loss allowance is measured at

an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date with any changes recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of financial assets through a

loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

2. EESHHEEX @

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

Credit losses from financial assets
(continued)

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the counterparties
does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

- leasehold land and property, plant and
equipment (including construction in
progress and right-of-use assets);

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the

Company's statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

Significant Accounting Policies 2. EESTBERw

(continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (k)
(continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not
yet available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit (“CGU")).

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2020

FEBERREERE )
(i) RtHFREEENBIE
(&

fid BB EMBF KRR Ll
B BENTREEE
A S WG o bbo - BIE
WEMEMRETR - BE
B R A 68 P Bz 4 BR X A 42
AURNBLEEDNRS
EITRERHE

- EETREEE

EENAWEER
ERAQFEER
& R AN S fE A E
ERFHNRSE - &
wEFEREER
EIARRRERE
A RBRBLAT T IR R
SEFHRE UK
BRT 5 B AT £ 88
NEEENZEE
0 E & B 89 Y
fl o i REEEFR
EEZBRERILHE
REEBIRHEM
EENRER - A
REVELXRER
NN —HEEA
BE—EREEE
EEfu) SREEE AT WL [El
MEE -



2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

()

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. In the case of work
in progress and finished goods, cost comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an attributable
proportion of production overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see note
2(1)). A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see note 2(n)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
note 2(t)(iii)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2(k)(i)).

Cash and short term funds

Cash and short term funds comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and short
term funds are assessed for ECL in accordance with
the policy set out in note 2(k)(i).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

BEESTBE @

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2.

(continued)

(p) Trade and other payables (p) EZRHAMEMSERER

152

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(g) Employee benefits

B REMENRREATEE
MNEwRE - HRZEHEKARA
fR-MEENRFEBALREXR . B
ERAANR

BERFF

(i) Short term employee benefits and (i) R E S 45 7 R [0 BE £
contributions to defined contribution FBIKGTE 225
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual HEN - FRIEA  BEEF
leave, contributions to defined contribution B - BERBEEFTEKRETE
retirement plans and the cost of non- ZHRRFSEBR 2K
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in RIEGREERBEERE
which the associated services are rendered ZEFEEFIR o BIFEE
by employees. Where payment or settlement HEHWHELEREXERE
is deferred and the effect would be material, R ZeESRITREA
these amounts are stated at their present BR o
values.

(i)  Share-based payments (i) BREZH

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7 R & Bﬁﬁi

“EFRAZSTHLFE

BEESTBE @

For the year ended 30 June 2020 #HZE=

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(a)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is
included in the amount recognised in share
capital for the shares issued) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to revenue
reserve).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—ZE_ZH A B=1HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(r)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they related to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

Significant Accounting Policies 2. EESTBERw

(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued) (r)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separated from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,

the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and

liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

= the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(s)

(t)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Sale of goods

Sales of the Group’s products are recognised
when the customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. If the products are a
partial fulfilment of a contract covering other
goods and/or services, then the amount
of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price
under the contract, allocated between all
the goods and services promised under the
contract on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 2(k)(i)).
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For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(t)

(u)

Revenue and other income (continued)
(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset
by way of reduced depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
the fair value was measured.
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For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(u)

(v)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of operations outside Hong Kong
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of an operation
outside Hong Kong acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the operation
outside Hong Kong.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that operation outside Hong Kong is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:
(a) has control or joint control over the

Group;

(b) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(0) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group'’s
parent.
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Eﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁi

For the year ended 30 June 2020 #HZE=

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(v) Related parties (continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(a)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third party and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i).
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For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(v)

(w)

Related parties (continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(9) A person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(h) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

Accounting Estimates and
Judgement

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made various estimates based on
past experiences, expectations of the future and other
information. Note 23 contains information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to fair value of
share options granted. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty that may significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the financial statements are disclosed below:

(a)

(b)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives,
after taking into account of their estimated residual
value. The determination of the useful lives and
residual value involve management'’s estimation.

The Group assesses annually the residual value and
the useful life of the property, plant and equipment
and if the assessment result differs from the
original estimate, such a difference may impact the
depreciation for the year. The details of property,
plant and equipment are disclosed in note 12.

Impairment of leasehold land and property,
plant and equipment and goodwill

Determining whether leasehold land and property,
plant and equipment and goodwill are impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the leasehold land
and property, plant and equipment and goodwill
have been allocated. The calculation of value in
use requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
If the estimation of value in use is different, any
reversal or further impairment will impact the profits
or losses of the Group. The details of leasehold land
and property, plant and equipment and goodwill are
disclosed in notes 12 and 13 respectively.
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For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

3. Accounting Estimates and
JUdgement (continued)

164

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c)

(d)

Income taxes

At 30 June 2020, deferred tax assets of
HK$5,199,000 (2019: HK$4,762,000) in relation to
unused tax losses were recognised as set out in note
20. No deferred tax asset was recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$249,263,000
(2019: HK$256,181,000) and temporary differences
of HK$79,705,000 (2019: HK$103,322,000)
arising from impairment of certain leasehold land
and property, plant and equipment due to the
unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the future profits generated
are less or more than expected, a write down or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in the profit or loss for
the period in which such a write down or further
recognition takes place.

Provision for expected credit loss of trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision of matrix to calculate
ECLs for trade receivables. The provision matrix is
based on management’s estimate of the lifetime
expected credit losses to be incurred by taking
into account the credit loss experience, ageing of
overdue trade receivables, customers’ repayment
history and customers’ financial position and
an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions, all of which involve a
significant degree of management judgment.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast general economic
conditions. The information about the ECLs and
trade receivables are disclosed in note 24(a). If the
financial condition of the customers or the forecast
economic conditions were to deteriorate, actual loss
allowance would be higher than estimated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

4. Segment Reporting

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management, the Group has two reportable segments,
as described below. Businesses in each reporting segment
have similar operating and currency risks, class of customer
for products, distribution channels and safety regulation.
The following summary describes the operations in each

segment:

Food: manufacture and distribution of a wide
range of food products including flour,
edible oils and specialty fats, and trading and
distribution of health products.

Home Care: manufacture and distribution of household
and institutional cleaning products.

(@) Segments results, assets and liabilities

The Group’s most senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “profit from operations”. To arrive at “profit
from operations”, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as head office or
corporate administration costs.

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of
deferred tax assets and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include tax payables, all trade and
other payables and contract liabilities attributable
to the manufacturing and sales activities of the
individual segments and lease liabilities with the
exception of deferred tax liabilities and other
corporate liabilities.

4.

7 EBERE

AEEC2HMET2 R - HA A
AAEEESETHREEAEARNBZR
BERNAX -3 - BELED X
BRELANEERERAR ERER
Bhl - 2HRENZEHAA o T X8
BEDE 2 EE -

B HERDHE-—RIBME
o BIEAEY  RRMK
BEwmE  AREZ RS
REEE: RERIERARIEMR

B2ERRm e
(a) oHFEE BERERE

FEERSETHREZAERE
THEEEEEFERES B2
¥E EERARE:

ARBED BN ZRTFES
[REEFN] - RTHHITEER
A ANEEZ BRI EBER
RMERI 2 #82E B (AR R RE
ETHRA)EHE-SHE -

PHMEEREMBERENEE &
FEENRBEE » BIELEHE
EEMHMAREERI - 23
REEEEMBIE @D B
RERHEZDRENMEES
REMEMERRREEEERAE
E8E HEESEREREM
EREERI o

MIE(BE)ERAA | —E_Z2FFH 165



(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

4. Segment Reporting (continued) 4. DHHRE@
Segments results, assets and liabilities (a) oEbHEE BEREME#HE)
(continued)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with RN ANBIREEZREBEF
customers by the timing of revenue recognition, as BEIMNWA  URBAEERES
well as information regarding the Group's reportable BITHREEAEZAEE 2R
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior DEPERIEFNT ¢
executive management is set out below:
2020 2019
e 42 “T-F
Segment Segment
Food  Home Care Total Food  Home Care Total
R FEER At & FERE 7 Eptast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BEFT BEFR BETT BET BEFT BEFT
Disaggregated by timing of REEREFEREA
revenue recognition on EINEIE
point in time
Revenue from external customers #5022 IIA 4,375,117 743,923 5,119,040 4,603,540 712,214 5315754
Reportable segment profit EES VR A
from operations eyl 367,632 84,451 452,083 393,892 60,268 454,160
Interest income on financial assets REHRATEER
measured at amortised cost EEZHEHMA 21,163 4,680 25,843 17,226 2,034 19,260
Finance costs BERK (176) (32 (208) - - -
Depreciation and amortisation EREE (53,533) (3,048) (56,581) (50,962) (2,169) (53,131)
Other material profit or loss items:  EtiBEEIERHEER
~ Net exchange gains/(osses) - ERFhE/
(&) 194 (681) (487) 869 204 1,073
- Loss allowance recognised for - E5RIRT 2
trade receivables FERERD (93) - (93) (228) - (228)
Taxation BB (47,%1) (20,880) (68,841) (35,264) (14,045) (49,309)
Reportable segment assets LES vipirA( 2,496,136 289,548 2,785,684 2,380,153 262,705 2,642,858
Reportable segment liabilities TEHRIHER 543,637 155,776 699,413 562,867 140,849 703,716
Additions to non-current ENNABERD
segment assets BE 74,566 5,182 79,748 103,225 3,951 107,176
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July Kzt . AEER=-ZE—-hhEtH—AH
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2019 using the modified retrospective approach.
Under this approach, comparative information is

not restated. See note 2(c).

AR AT B U B R E LS
TIN5 o RIBERAEIEFTHE
WE  HBRERAFEES -
FHEERMIEE2(c) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

4, Segment Reporting (continued)

(b)

4. DEHRE @)

Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) T2M/HIBUA - B8
revenue, profit or loss, assets and BEREENYE
liabilities i
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
JBEFIT JBEF T
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue EIE=S: S Al ON 5,119,040 5,315,754
Rental income HEWA 397 451
Consolidated revenue FmEWA 5,119,437 5,316,205
Profit g
Reportable segment profit A 23D I 2 LR H5F
from operations 452,083 454,160
Unallocated exchange losses Kotz ELEE (2,764) 3)
Unallocated head office and KOBMBLARARLES
corporate expenses F (49,449) (56,029)
Finance costs AE AR (238) -
Consolidated profit before taxation FEBRBIANRF 399,632 398,128
Assets &=
Reportable segment assets TE2RDEB2EE 2,785,684 2,642,858
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 4%3Zf [ FEUNFRIE < K $8 (4,005) (9,196)
2,781,679 2,633,662
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 26 -
Unallocated head office and AOBZBLATR
corporate assets TEEE 433,394 428,057
Consolidated total assets REBEE 3,215,099 3,061,719
Liabilities =it
Reportable segment liabilities EIEX-5:x1 74 R 699,413 703,716
Elimination of inter-segment payables 2B FE{TFUIE 2 K 88 (4,005) (9,196)
695,408 694,520
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 19,543 11,731
Unallocated head office and AOBZBATR
corporate liabilities TEEE 23,251 20,925
Consolidated total liabilities meBas 738,202 727,176
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July Kzt . AEEBR=-ZE—-hFEtHA—AH

2019 using the modified retrospective approach.
Under this approach, comparative information is

not restated. See note 2(c).
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1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

4. Segment Reporting (ontinued) 4. DHHRE@
Geographical information ()0 HEER
The following table sets out information about TREIIWHWEBENEERTE
the geographical location of (i) the reportable W2 BEIIEFZWA 5 K
segment’s revenue from external customers and (VEEENHEELREYE - K
(ii) the Group's leasehold land and property, plant ENFZE EFEENRBEERY
and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill and ¥ BERRBEAMRE(EE
prepayments for property, plant and equipment FREBEE]) cBEFWABHE
("specified non-current assets”). The geographical TIRIERBIEHSFEYE X 2 i
location of customers is based on the location at UMEE HETHRYE K
which the services were provided or the goods ERRENIEHERRERE
delivered. The geographical location of the leasehold WME - ME - MERRERE
land and property, plant and equipment is based NRENFBEEIREHEE
on the physical location of the assets, in the case of WE o MEBRNEERBENE
prepayments for property, plant and equipment, the wERIGREEES BRI NEE
location of operations and in the case of intangible BEME ©
assets and goodwill, the location of the operation to
which they are allocated.
2020 2019
~g-%f 2-hF
Hong Kong  Mainland Hong Kong ~ Mainland
and Macau China Total and Macau China Total
BEREM  TEAE ait  EERRM  PEAE ait
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BFr  EETn  BETm BEFr BRI BT
Revenue from extemal customers  #5MEF 2 A 744,657 4374383 5,119,000 746543 4,569,211 5315754
Specified non-current assets EEFRBEE 82,790 608,614 691,404 83,764 640,901 724,665
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July Kzt : AEBR-ZE—HFtH—H
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2019 using the modified retrospective approach.
Under this approach, comparative information is
not restated. See note 2(c).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

Revenue

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out
on pages 229 to 231.

Revenue represents the amounts receivable for the goods
sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts,
value added tax and other related taxes to external
customers as well as rental income.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by major products or service lines is as follows:

5.

A

AABE—BEREZERAR  EEXEMH
BRAAIMEEEKFINE29EHES
231H ©

BARKELERBBRAETHIE
F o HIRRITH - BEBRMEMEREHIE
HVBUGKRIE - IR EE WA -

BEXIREMIAMBLBZRERTFEME
HBABZWT

2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BHEF T
Revenue from contracts with customers FEPEHRELERFE+RIEEE
within the scope of HKFRS 15 AZREEFESENBA
Disaggregated by major products or REEEERTRBEE D
service lines
— Sales of goods — HEE®m 5,119,040 5,315,754
Revenue from other sources HAth i A SRR
Rental income HEWA 397 451
5,119,437 5,316,205

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition and by geographical
markets is disclosed in notes 4(a) and 4(c) respectively.

During the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019, there was
no single external customer that contributed 10% or more
of the Group's total revenue from external customers.

RWABEIREREETSZE D ZREB
FEFERK WA D B R M EE4(a) R 4(0)H
WEE -

BE_Z-_ZEFR-_Z-—NFEARA=T
AILEEE  AEEEHESEHESERR
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B-EFo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

Other Income

6. HfulgA

2020 2019

= —F-hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BEFT BHEF T

Sales of scrapped materials HERER 429 497

Income from food supply reservation EmEEAERA 9,760 8,181
Net losses on disposal of property, HEME  BERSEREZ

plant and equipment (note (i) TRIEE (BE0) (8,499) (66)
Interest income on financial assets REERATESRERE 2 F

measured at amortised cost BUEA 32,140 27,250
Net exchange (losses)/gains [E 5% (F518) W (3.251) 1,070
Net realised and unrealised gains/(losses)  $TE SR I EZCEBER KR

on derivative financial instruments BB, (E518) (BfaEd))

(note (ii)) 4,526 (3,327)
Net unrealised loss on club membership 2D REIHBEIE (143) (152)
Government grants income (note (i) U BRI (BFYEE()) 30,219 7,766
Others Hith 2,612 2,483

67,793 43,702

Notes:

Mt -

(i)

During the year ended 30 June 2020, expenditure relating
to the plant relocation project of HK$22,713,000 (2019:
HK$7,766,000) which mainly included fixed asset write-
off of the old plant of HK$8,325,000 (2019: Nil) and
corporate income tax of HK$11,751,000 (2019: Nil) had
been incurred. A corresponding amount of government
compensation was then credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The remaining balance of
government compensation is deducted from the carrying
amount of leasehold land and property, plant and
equipment (see note 18(a)(ii)).

The Group entered into various foreign exchange forward
contracts to manage its foreign currency risk exposures
during the year.
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7.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Profit Before Taxation 7.

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

BRE AR A

BRBANER MR GFA) THEE -

2020 2019
—EIERF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Finance costs A& R AR
Interest on lease liabilities (note 17(b)) HEeEadzFE(HF170) 238 -
Staff costs (including directors’ BIKSN(BREEEHE
emoluments - note 9) — MiEE9)
Salaries, wages and other benefits IE - - HE R EMER 391,463 357,547
Share-based payment expenses RiEZHER 78 362
Contribution to defined contribution TEZBRFEMET B 2 R
retirement plans 18,414 28,971
409,955 386,880
Auditors’ remuneration BN &
Audit services BRE R 1,745 1,755
Tax and other services B R b pR ik 981 253
2,726 2,008
Depreciation and amortisation WEKEHE
Leasehold land and property, HETHEYE  BERRE
plant and equipment 63,738 57,187
Intangible assets ‘B EE 4,643 4,599
68,381 61,786
Other items Hhg g
Net exchange losses/(gains) fE R EEE (k) 3,251 (1,070)
Loss allowance recognised for B 5 EWERAR 2 EriaiEeER
trade receivables 93 228
Total minimum lease payments for SRIRBEE AT ENE T
leases previously classified as FABEAKERE 2 HEMA
operating leases under HKAS 17* B RBEE - 6,146
Cost of inventories (note 15(b)) TFERA(FEE150b)) 3,925,837 4,161,761

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July 2019
using the modified retrospective approach and adjusted
the opening balances at 1 July 2019 to recognise right-
of-use assets relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. The
depreciated carrying amount of the finance lease assets
which were previously included in leasehold land and
property, plant and equipment is also identified as a
right-of-use asset. After initial recognition of right-of-use
assets at 1 July 2019, the Group as a lessee is required to
recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of
the previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Under this approach, comparative information
is not restated. See note 2(c).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—ZE_ZH A B=1HILEE

Profit Before Taxation (continued)

The Group participates in pension schemes organised by
the PRC government whereby the Group is required to pay
annual contributions at rates ranging from 13% to 16%
(2019: 13% to 16%) of the standard wages determined by
the relevant authorities in the PRC during the year ended 30
June 2020.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and an
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance Scheme (the
“ORSO Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme and ORSO scheme are
defined contribution retirement schemes administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
(2019: HK$30,000). Under the ORSO Scheme, the Group
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 10% and 5% of the employees’ relevant
income respectively. Contributions to the schemes vest
immediately. Save for the above schemes, the Group has
no other material obligation for payment of retirement
benefits beyond the contributions.

7.

BRI AR A )

AEBEZHEPEBFABNERSS
2Bl AEERBEZZSZEA
A=1+HIEFERNERTEEB¥EM
EEEEIEAREXE  B13%ZE16% (=
E—NE 13%E16%) WL HIEHFEE
BIRESMHER o

AEBETIRIEE B CGREME QB SRAE)D
MR ANET BRDD BRIBEE B (ER
RED) FEAE T EAZEER LB
Berral((BEesal ) MBmER KRG
BB EA—ERAEHIEKRS
58 BB ZERASE - RIEEE
258 XEEREER BERZTE
EHEENMEEEBWAS% ZHK - M
BBEWA LRAE AHBE30,000T (==
— L B8#30,0007T) o RIBRERENK
8 AEBREES NS EERZS
EEHMEERMMEEBBEWBA10%M5% 2
R o MFFEELNHFINEEE -
Br EfiEr&I4h » REER B R LR HRK
LM E A E R INE R RREE ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

8. Taxation

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents:

8. ®iiE

2020 2019
—EBCEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ZAREFHIE-FERE
Provision for the year REERE 5,125 4,022
(Over)/under-provision in respect of FFEEZ(BE),
prior years TREBE (63) 1
B R 4033
Current tax — Outside Hong Kong RERE - FBLUIN
Provision for the year REERE 69,214 48,244
Under/(over)-provision in respect of AEEZTR/
prior years (B2E) A& 681 (1,220)
SEitE . 47,024
Deferred tax (note 20) EERIE (MEF20)
Origination and reversal of M EREMNEEREE
___temporary differences 7786 6,995
82,743 58,052

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for at
the rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the respective
estimated assessable profits of the companies within
the Group operating in Hong Kong during the year.

Taxation outside Hong Kong represents income
tax charge on the estimated taxable profits of
certain subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
and Macau, calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective regions.

All entities engaged in the primary processing
of agricultural products in Mainland China are
exempted from PRC corporate income tax (“CIT").
As a result, the profits from flour mill operations
are exempted from CIT for the years ended 30 June
2020 and 2019.

Other subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
subject to CIT tax rate of 25% (2019: 25%).

MIE(ERB)BRLAR | — B2 FFRH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

8. Taxation (continued)

174

(a)

(b)

B (5

8- *E/II/\(/E)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) NEeBEBRRZBES: (8)
loss represents: (continued)
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a RBPECEMES L @
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared ELEREESRRERHEKR
to foreign investors from the foreign investment BERL Y 2 NE D ENRE UK
enterprises established in Mainland China. The 10%FENH - BEEAEE ==
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and ENF-A—HBEEN  LEH
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A R-ZBZBLF+ZA=+—HE
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there FrEE 2 BRI o i o B K B EBE Hp
is a tax treaty between China and the jurisdiction of BREEMBALZEEZEBESR
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable HREENTREEENTER
rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for B REBMWERLER5% °
withholding taxes on any dividends distributable It REBEERZERPE AR
by its subsidiaries established in Mainland China in RIWHBARM —ZENF—
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. A—REELZ2BFMD K2R
BRZBINH -
Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) ®iEFLESHEANZEARE
profit at applicable tax rates: ZEERWNT ¢
2020 2019
—ECER —B-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEF T BT T
Profit before taxation KRB AN @R 399,632 398,128
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BRERNE S
calculated at the rates applicable to profits iR ERRIBIREF
in the tax jurisdictions concerned ZEBE/E 98,568 101,867
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses b5y S N B ) e
BB 3,568 2,294
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERBBANBIBESE (7,373) (5,746)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RFUBRANBEERZ
BB 3,098 1,097
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FERRUAIEER T LER
not previously recognised RBERE BT E (580) (196)
Effect of tax concessions REERZTE (41,434) (48,974)
Under/(over)-provision in respect of AFEEZTR/(BE)BE
prior years 618 (1,209)
Withholding tax on dividend and royalty FPEIE A 2 T A Bl E UK
received and receivable from PRC REWRE KSR
subsidiaries BB 13,902 9,039
Corporate income tax on cash 2 BRE — B En
compensation received related to BEMSREHEZ
relocation of a flour mill plant (note 6) EMSH (Hite) 11,751 -
Others Hit 625 (120)
Actual tax expenses ERHRESH 82,743 58,052

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2020



8.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

Taxation (continued) 8. *ﬁléi\(,,%)
(c) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (0 EHREHBRRRPOESBE

financial position represents:

(A3

2020 2019
—EIERF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEF T BT T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for AFEEBR S EE
the year 5,125 4,022
Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax AFEEZBBFEH
payable/(recoverable) relating to BE (AT 2 sk
prior years 683 (3,973)
5,808 49
Provision for profits tax outside BBIUIIHIERE
Hong Kong 29,338 13,587
Tax payables FEHRIRR 35,146 13,636
HIBE(EB)BRAA | ZE_SFF R 175



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

9. Directors’ and Senior Executives’ 9. EER =& TH A S

Emoluments &
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=E=EMe
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section RIEEBCA THEMYEIIMNER
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and (REI(FEESFRER) RH)
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information E2NBBECEESHEWT -
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as
follows:
Estimated
Basic money
salaries/ Retirement value of
Directors' schemes  Retirement other Share-hased
fees  Bonuses contrbutions  benefits  benefits  Sub-total  payment 2020
(note (i) (note (ix) (note (xi)) (note (xii)
HbER
§e/ i pfts
Ezhe L HEMR  BKEA SBEE Mt REXfT Z3-%%
(i) (W) (i) (sttni))

HKS000  HKS00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'00  HKS'000
BRTr  ERTn  ERTn ERTn ERTn BRTn ERFr ERTR

Executive director HiEs

LEUNG Joseph (note (i) BB 4,267 1,500 B 1,800 140 1,730 40 1710
Non-executive directors HurEs

KWEK Leng Hai (note (j) S8 - - - - - - - =
TANG Hong Cheong (note (j) WER W) - - - - - - - -
WHANG Sun Tze BLE 230 - - - - 230 - 230
TANLim Heng Bl 230 - - - - 230 - 230

Independent non-executive directors B 11783

L0 Kai Yiu, Anthony (note (i) SRR ) 353 - - - - 353 - 353
AU Chee Ming (note (i) BR#AME) 130 = = - - 130 - 130
HUANG Lester Garson, 585, Jp BB gyEE
(note (1) Kt () 326 - - - - 326 - 326
HO Yuk W, Joan (note (v]) MRS (st 201 = = = - 0 - 201
Year ended 30 June 2020 HECEZCEZE
NEETRLEE 5,737 1,500 3 1,800 140 9,200 40 9,240
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9.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

Directors’ and Senior Executives’
Em0|uments (continued)

(a)

9. EENSRNITHAEM
€@

Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EE=M<£E)
Estimated
Basic money
salaries/ Retirement value of
Directors’ schemes other Share-based
fees  Bonuses contributions benefits  Sub-total  payment 2019
(note (viii))  (note (ix) (note (xi)) (note (xii))
AR
8/ B st
EShe B GHEMR  eHEE Nt REZN ZB-0E
(fistwi) (W) () (Kt (i)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
BEFr  E¥fn  BEFn BETn B¥fn BEFr EMIn
Executive director Hi7Es
LEUNG Joseph 2% 3,830 2,000 18 74 5922 180 6,102
Non-executive directors FiTES
KWEK Leng Hai (note (i) RS - - - - - - _
TANG Hong Cheong (note (i) WEE (W) - - - - - - _
WHANG Sun Tze BLE 230 - - - 230 - 230
TAN Lim Heng Rt 230 - - - 230 - 230
TSANG Cho Tai (note (vij) SRR (W) 12 - - - 12 - 12
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ERUE 340 - - - 340 - 340
AU Chee Ming (note (iv)) BIESAWE) 34 - - - 34 - 324
HUANG Lester Garson, 85, /P BRl gzyEs
X¥4t 320 - - - 320 - 320
Year ended 30 June 2019 BECE-NE
AAZTALEE 5,386 2,000 18 74 7478 180 7,658
Notes: Biat -
(i) No directors’ fees were paid or be payable to any (i) BE-_Z_ZFR-_Z—NF

(i)

(iii)

salaried directors employed by group companies
of Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad
("HLCM"), the Company’s ultimate holding
company, for the years ended 30 June 2020 and
2019.

Mr. Leung Joseph has retired as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 1 July
2020. Following the retirement of Mr. Joseph
Leung, Mr. Wong Cho Fai was appointed as an
executive director of the Company with effect from
1 July 2020.

Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony was appointed as a
member of the Board Remuneration Committee
("BRC") of the Company with effect from 13
November 2019 after the conclusion of the 2019
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
13 November 2019 (the “2019 AGM").

MIE(ERB)BRLAR | — B2 FFRH

RAZTHLEEEREESHE
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THES

(ii) RABEER-ZE-ZELA
—BREALFDANTES—
B RRZEEEREER &=
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ABEERENRITES -
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(iii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

9. Directors’ and Senior Executives’
Em0|uments (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(xi)

(xii)

178

Mr. Au Chee Ming was appointed as a member of
the Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
("BARMC") of the Company with effect from 13
November 2018 after the conclusion of the 2018
Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on 13 November 2018 (the “2018 AGM"). He
retired as an independent non-executive director
and ceased to be the chairman of the BRC, a
member of the BARMC and a member of the Board
Nomination Committee (“BNC") of the Company
with effect from 13 November 2019 after the
conclusion of the 2019 AGM.

Mr. Huang Lester Garson, SBS, JP was re-designated
as the Chairman of the BRC with effect from 13
November 2019 after the conclusion of the 2019
AGM.

Ms. Ho Yuk Wai, Joan was appointed as an
independent non-executive director, a member of
the BARMC and a member of the BNC with effect
from 13 November 2019 after the conclusion of the
2019 AGM.

Mr. Tsang Cho Tai retired as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 13
November 2018 after the conclusion of the 2018
AGM.

Basic salaries/directors’ fees — The amounts paid
and payable to non-executive directors were
directors’ fees. The amount paid and payable to
executive director was basic salaries.

Bonuses paid/payable for the year were
performance-related.

There was no arrangement under which a director
had waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

These represent the estimated money value of
medical insurance, life insurance and employees’
compensation.

These represent the estimated money value of share
options granted to the director under the Company'’s
share option scheme. The value of these share options
is measured according to the Group’s accounting
policies for share-based payment transactions as set
out in note 2(q)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy,
include adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in
previous years where grants of equity instruments are
forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted are
disclosed under note 23.
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(a)
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Hiat ()

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

9. Directors’ and Senior Executives’ 9. EER =& TH A S

Em0|uments (continued) %(,?E)
(b) Individuals with highest emoluments (b) EEWANEE
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, ESEsFMERALHR  B—
one (2019: one) is a director whose emolument is B(ZE—NE: —R)IARQH
disclosed in note 9(a) above. The aggregate of the ZEE H S B RKEE)F
emoluments in respect of the other four (2019: four) WE - HNZ(=ZF—NF :
individuals are as follows: BIALTZENE T -
2020 2019
—E_EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other benefits HFe R EMER 9,398 9,170
Discretionary bonuses BB TE 4L 2,077 2,611
Retirement schemes contributions RINGTEMHRR 123 67
11,598 11,848
Share-based payment expenses REXNER 29 140
11,627 11,988
The numbers of individuals whose emolument falls MeBTHHEARN 2 AT -
within the following bands are:
2020 2019
—E_EF —ZE-hEF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
HK$ #B# T A& A&
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 2
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 2 3
4 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

10. Dividends 10. R E
(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (a) FREFEXQXTRERE (M
of the Company (excluding the amount BRENSFARERITHRAER
paid to shares held by the Group under the NRBESRBRETEEZR
ESOP reserve) attributable to the year: BN ERE) :
2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interim dividend declared and paid of ~ HHIRESEIREEA
HK$0.14 (2019: HK$0.14) per BREERREY0.147T
ordinary share (ZE—NI%F:
B¥20.147T) 33,220 33,223
Final dividend proposed after the end of HAREHERIREE 2 RHARR S
the reporting period of HK$0.31 BREBERBE03IT
(2019: HK$0.30) per ordinary share (ZZ2—N%F:
7B#50.307T) 73,622 71,147
106,842 104,370

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a
liability at the end of the reporting period.

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (b)
of the Company (excluding the amount
paid to shares held by the Group under the
ESOP reserve) attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during

REIBEML B REIRE 2 RBAR
ERBEMRAEARERLER
R—EEE-

FRERRC A8 — {8 R B
FERMNAQARRRKRE (0
RENTFAEERITRAER
NRBESRFRETEFEZR
HHEE) :

the year:
2020 2019
—EIERF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
Final dividend in respect of the previous 74 RBEAT—{E 8 B EEH
financial year, approved and paid REMHRBRE
during the year, of HK$0.30 FREEREE0.30T
(2019: HK$0.27) per ordinary share (ZB—h%F:
B#0.277T) 71,077 63,731
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

11. Earnings per Share 11. BREF
(a) Basic earnings per share () BREXREF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based ERERERTIREARQFBRR
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders FE {5 5% 78 %5 316,889,000 7T (=
of the Company of HK$316,889,000 (2019: Z—NF : #B¥340,076,0007T)
HK$340,076,000) and the weighted average ERAEERATHITZER M
number of 237,190,000 (2019: 236,811,000) FEF 19 %237,190,000( =& — A,
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated as f 1236,811,000) REBRETE :
follows:
2020 2019
—ECEF —Z-hF
‘000 ‘000
F F
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning FHERTEER
of year 243,354 2437,73754”
Effect of shares repurchased FFERE2Z BRI
in prior years 2 (10,337) (8,849)
Effect of shares repurchased REE R 2 B
in current year 4= (309) (638)
(1502 (9,487)
Effect of share options exercised AFETEZRORIBE
in prior years o7 4,140 2,070
Effect of share options exercised REETEZRAZDIEE
in current year g & 342 874
2944
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ SREERINEFHIH
shares at the end of year 237,190 236,811
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

11. Earnings per Share (ontinued)

11. BRERN @)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) EREHEERF
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based BEREBEFEBIDREAITAR
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders R FE {1k )% R 78 %5 316,889,000 JT
of the Company of HK$316,889,000 (2019: (ZE=— N5 : B¥340,076,000
HK$340,076,000) and the weighted average T)REBEBRMMEFEZSRE
number of ordinary shares of 237,190,000 (2019: 237,190,000 ( = & — 1L &F :
237,491,000) after adjusting the effect of deemed 237,491,000) RE B R B ERIE
issue of shares under the Company’s share option RAB 2 BHORBETERTE
scheme, calculated as follows: BRERONEZEELFARTE
2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-NF
‘000 ‘000
F F
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FREBIRINEFHH
shares at the end of year 237,190 236,811
Effect of deemed issue of shares under {RIRERIEAD T ZRHD
the Company’s share option scheme REBRETTEIRTRON
b7 - 680
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FRZEIR(EHE) I0E
shares (diluted) at the end of year SEHE 237,190 237,491
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

12. Leasehold Land and Property,

(a)

12. HEXTHRYE - BE

- Y
Plant and Equipment REEE
Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) HREEZHER
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Machineries,
buildings in land and equipment,
Hong Kong buildings furniture
and leasehold outside Construction  and motor
improvements  Hong Kong in progress vehicles Total
EARE
THREF FENME HeE - R
REE  THRET EEIR BRARARE B3t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFL BEFL Vil BEFT
Cost: B
At 1July 2018 RIE-N\E+A-H 112,558 1,031,020 43,334 899,945 2,086,857
Additions )| 3,905 4,921 81,912 25,983 116,721
Transfer between categories DEEER 3,704 - (11,459) 7,755 -
Disposals HE - (409) - (13,222) (13,631)
Exchange adjustments R - (30,462) (2,320) (30,597) (63,379)
At 30 June 2019 RIE-NERR=TH 120,167 1,005,070 111,467 889,864 2,126,568
At 30 June 2019 RZB-RERB=TH 120,167 1,005,070 111,467 889,864 2,126,568
Impact on initial application of ~ #AIFAEBEKHEES
HKFRS 16 (note) ERwayioa 7 {(iF) - 3,082 - - 3,082
At 1July 2019 W=Z-nEtA-A 120,167 1,008,152 111,467 889,864 2,129,650
Additions 2 1,013 4,688 51,792 31,291 88,784
Deduction of government MERBATHE
grants (note 18(a)(ii) (H1EE186)0) - (20,571) - (15,788) (36,359)
Transfer between categories DEEER - 74,379 (137,003) 62,624 -
Disposals e - (17,788) - (40,345) (58,133)
Exchange adjustments EREE - (27,7127) (3,105) (26,622) (57,454)
At 30 June 2020 WZE-EEXA=1H 121,180 1,021,133 23,151 901,024 2,066,488
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0 7 R 3= Bﬁ%I

For the year ended 30 June 2020 #HZE=

12. Leasehold Land and Property,

184

“EFRAZTHLFE

12. HETHEYWE

& 5

- D
Plant and Equipment (ontinued) N & )
(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) (a) FREEZHIERGE)
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Machineries,
buildings in land and equipment,
Hong Kong buildings furniture
and leasehold outside Construction and motor
improvements ~ Hong Kong in progress vehicles Total
EAHE
IHREF FBEINEE e 26
REE  ThRkET EEIR BARARE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BEFT BEFT
Accumulated depreciation RitEREH:
and amortisation:
At 1 July 2018 RZE-NELR-A 38,658 548,560 - 634,453 1,221,671
Charge for the year KEEBERIE 2,294 24,032 - 30,861 57,187
Written back on disposals HEREE - (295) - (10,236) (10,531)
Exchange adjustments EREE - (24,504) - (21,000) (45,504)
At 30 June 2019 R=B-NERB=1A 40,952 547,793 - 634,078 1,222,823
At 1July 2019 RZBE-NFth-H 40,952 547,793 - 634,078 1,222,823
Charge for the year KEEBERNE 2,531 28,780 - 32,427 63,738
Written back on disposals HEZED - (14,696) - (33,899) (48,595)
Exchange adjustments BN R - (21,934) - (17,749) (39,683)
At 30 June 2020 RZBEZEERB=1H 43,483 539,943 - 614,857 1,198,283
Impairment loss: AEEE :
At 1 July 2018 RIE-N\E+A-H 34,765 165,410 - 1,602 201,777
Written back on disposals HEZED - - - (1,549) (1,549)
Exchange adjustments ERHR - - - (53) (53)
At30 June 2019, 1July 2019 R=B-hEXA=1H-
and 30 June 2020 “E-NELR-AR
—E-EZERAZTH 34,765 165,410 - - 200,175
Net book value: BHFE
At 30 June 2020 RZBZZFRA=1A 42,932 315,780 23,151 286,167 668,030
At 30 June 2019 RZE-RERB=TH 44,450 291,867 111,467 255,786 703,570

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective method and adjusted
the opening balances at 1 July 2019 to recognise
right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17. See note 2(c).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

12. Leasehold Land and Property, 12. HELHRYE  BE

Plant and Equipment (continued) REHE@
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) FHEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use RHBEESH2FRAEEEZ
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: BREVEESAOT
At 30 June At 1 July
2020 2019
R=ZF-ZFF RIZ-NF
AH=1+H +A—H
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T

Leasehold land and buildings in Hong ~ &HHEHEELRIETF
Kong 12,898 13,375

Leasehold land and buildings outside EEIIMEE L RIES
Hong Kong 63,959 66,782

Machineries, equipment, furniture and #4288 + 3%/E - FRMREE
motor vehicles 899 242

77,756 80,399
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For the year ended 30 June 2020 #HZE=

“EFRAZTHLFE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. Leasehold Land and Property, 12. HELTHRYE  BE
Plant and Equipment (continved) B
(b) Right-of-use assets (continued) (b) FEREESEGE)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases N EREREI S HE B
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: TEBSAFMT :
2020 2019
g —E-hF
(Note)
(Btat)
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BEFTT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use BHEEEDEZ
assets by class of underlying asset: EREEEZINTEER !
Leasehold land and buildings in EEHEET HRETF
Hong Kong 477 477
Leasehold land and buildings outside EBRUIIMEE L REF
Hong Kong 5,058 1,881
Machineries, equipment, furniture and  #88 - 4% « R RAE
motor vehicles 198 66
5,733 2,424
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) HEBBZFE(ME7) 238 -
Expense relating to short-term leases SBRTHEHR -ZE-ZF
and other leases with remaining lease ~ <A=+HHZ A4
term ending on or before 30 June Zﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ}ﬁﬂgﬁﬁfm
2020 HE 2R 9,060 -
Total minimum lease payments for RIB SRS BT
leases previously classified as F+EEoBELE
operating leases under HKAS 17 HEZHECHREE
TRBER - 6.146
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using Bt - AEBEERARIET EMERD

186

the modified retrospective approach and adjusted
the opening balances at 1 July 2019 to recognise
right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17. The depreciated carrying amount of the
finance lease assets which were previously included
in property, plant and equipment is also identified
as a right-of-use asset. After initial recognition of
right-of-use assets at 1 July 2019, the Group as a
lessee is required to recognise the depreciation of
right-of-use assets, instead of the previous policy
of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 2(c).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

12. Leasehold Land and Property,

Plant and Equipment (continved)

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2020, additions
to right-of-use assets were HK$5,555,000. This
amount included machineries and equipment of
HK$855,000, and the remainder primarily related to
the capitalised lease payments payable under new
tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

12. HEXTHRYE - BE

N & )

(b) FEREEEG)

REBE-Z-_ZFF<A=1+HL
FE FNEEFREEEARABY
5,555,0007C c ZRIEB B
855,000t & IE EALES N 3% E © &
THXEREHFHEEHZRETE

NMeBENREE -

BEZ D5 B &I A

notes 17(c) and 19, respectively. 17(c) %19 »
13. Intangible Assets and Goodwill 13. EFEEREHE
Goodwill Trademarks ERP Total
TEER
LS B HEEY a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BETT BETT
Cost: B
At 1 July 2018, 30 June 2019 R=E-N\E+tA—-A1"
and 1 July 2019 —E-RAEARAZTEK
—Z-NEtA-H 14,714 39,970 22,992 77,676
Additions by - - 1,908 1,908
At 30 June 2020 N-EBE-_ZFEXA=1H 14,714 39,970 24,900 79,584
Accumulated amortisation: RErE
At 1 July 2018 RZE-N\FtH—H - 39,970 10,971 50,941
Charge for the year NEZ - - 4,599 4,599
At 30 June 2019 R-E-NERA=TH - 39,970 15,570 55,540
At 1 July 2019 R=E-AE+tA—H - 39,970 15,570 55,540
Charge for the year REEHH - - 4,643 4,643
At 30 June 2020 R-ZE-ZEEXA=1H - 39,970 20,213 60,183
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0 7 R 3= Bﬁﬁi

“EFRAZTHLFE

For the year ended 30 June 2020 #HZE=

13. Intangible Assets and Goodwill 13. B EEREE
(continued)
Goodwill Trademarks ERP Total
TEER
(SRS B BEEY &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETFT BT
Impairment loss: REEE
At 1 July 2018, 30 June 2019, RIE-NFtA—-H"
1July 2019 and 30 June 2020 =E—HhERA=1+H -
“E-NFtA-BR
—E-FEEXA=1H 12,539 - - 12,539
Net book value: BRTEHE
At 30 June 2020 R-ZBE-EFAB=1H 2,175 - 4,687 6,862
At 30 June 2019 RZE-NEAB=1H 2,175 - 7,422 9,597

188

The amortisation charge for the year is included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to edible
oil operations. The recoverable amount of the CGU is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering the financial
year ending 30 June 2021. The key assumption of the
cash flow projections are the estimated weighted average
growth rate and the discount rate used. Cash flows for
the periods thereafter are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3% (2019: 3%) which
does not significantly exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the business in which the CGU operates. The cash
flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 14.0%
(2019: 14.3%) which reflects specific risks relating to the
relevant CGU.

The results of the tests undertaken as at 30 June 2020
and 30 June 2019 indicated no further recognition of
impairment loss was necessary.

AEEZHBHEERACSTARGEERR
[THREMR A -

BEHBZREEAEUZRENR

BEZEROSERERABIE - HE
REeELBENMNARKESELRIEFEHR
BETE ZEEFRAZREREFER
ERBREEEBMEREBE-_ZE=-—F A
STHLEBEENTEESE - HFH
HNEERBBFEFTMEFIIERERIT
BE NZHBENRSREMERNTE
SHINEFE IR FE3% (ZE—NF 13%)
THEBREeELEENLEEBNRETE
HIBRR - BHEREFEARBAINERER
14.0%(ZF—HIE : 143%)8H » d/x
MEBEESEEENMNITERRE -

3/\\\ v—qu/\ﬁ _T_El&—v j‘Lf'E
AB=+tRETZARERETRBAE
HE — BIRERE 2 R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

14. Other Non-Current Assets 14. Hit3ERBEE
2020 2019
i —Z-hF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BET T BT T
Prepayments for property, ME BERREZ
plant and equipment SERNEN 16,512 10,583
Club membership, measured at FVPL 2 ROATFEEA
Bnste 772 915
17,284 11,498
15. Inventories 15. 7 &
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement () REHEEHERRRZEES
of financial position comprise: g
2020 2019
i —ZE-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BHEF T
Raw materials [ AT 396,772 394,372
Work in progress K 36,880 41,150
Finished goods SR M 183,139 165,415
Inventories in transit ERER 5,472 1,212
Packing materials R 23,810 23,694
646,073 625,843
(b) The analysis of amount of inventories (b) RECEZRERAIHZE

recognised as an expense and included in E£BEoMWT
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
is as follows:
2020 2019
—B-%F —=-hEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BYFT BEFT
Carrying amount of inventories sold B2EFEZREE 3,923,404 4,157,998
Write-down of inventories EFERE 2,433 3,763
3,925,837 4,161,761
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

16. Trade and Other Receivables 16. EZ K HMEUERFK
2020 2019
—T-FF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BHEF T
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance HIBRE B EHE < & 5 FEURBRRR 310,159 349,530
Derivative financial instruments: fTE€mT A
- Foreign exchange forward contracts — MR HR A E 584 47
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments  EAFEUER - 1€ RTBTRIE 36,473 43,707
347,216 393,284
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be FEESZREMEBWIRFIGTENRE —F
recovered or recognised as expense within one year. ALNEIE R Y =S
Aging Analysis ARl 2 AT
As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis RBEHAR > REZZEAHRNKRE
of trade receivables (which are included in trade and other EREECESEWNERFZRRIT(E
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss STAEBS R EMEWRERTNT :

allowance, is as follows:

2020 2019
= —
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Within 3 months =@EAR 307,465 346,398
3 to 6 months =ZXEA 2,398 2,751
Over 6 months NEA B 296 381
310,159 349,530

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk AEBCEERERESEREREE

arising from trade receivables are set out in note 24(a). KIS B RS AMEE24(@) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

17. Cash and Short Term Funds and 17. ReREHES R HM

Other Cash Flow Information HEREER
(a) Cash and short term funds comprise: () HREREHELEE:
2020 2019
—E_EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Deposits with banks IRITEHER 1,231,791 1,050,192
Cash at bank and on hand RITERRRS 297,817 267,735
Cash and short term funds in the SFEMBRIRZBEER
consolidated statement of financial EHES
position 1,529,608 1,317,927
Fixed deposits held at banks with FEERIBAA=EA
original maturity over three months B ERIERIT EERTF R (192,272) -
Cash and cash equivalents in the GERHEFERZEESR

consolidated statement of cash flows HEEZ%E

1,337,336 1,317,927

Cash at bank carries interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposits rates. Deposits with banks
include time deposits which are matured within
three months and earn interest at the respective
short term deposit rates, and fixed deposits with
original maturity over three months.

MIE(ERB)BRLAR | — B2 FFRH

RITEAERBEEARITERZ
FEARFEMREA L o R1T
ERFREEERFRDIR=E
AREH  URREAZEHE
RAER=MEA U LEHNEREFR
BRENFI S o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

17. Cash and Short Term Funds and 17. Re R EHEES R HM

192

Other Cash Flow Information

(continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b)
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.

HEHhEER®

BMEEBEL A EHR

TRANASEREETHTEE
ZEE2E  ETRERENE
Re8y  BMEFTDHRELEZR
BEAREREGNIARRAE
RESRAEERERERER
RO BERBEFTH2RERE -

Lease liabilities (note 79)

HESBMFE19)

2020 2019

—EB-EHF —E—-NE

HK$°000 HK$'000

BEFT BHEF T

At 30 June RAB=+H 514 669
Impact on initial application of NBRAEBUERE
HKFRS 16 (note 2(c)) ERE+REZTE

(BfzE2(c) 3,082 -

Aty  REA-R 220 662 |
Changes from financing cash flows: BER&SFHESH :

Capital element of lease rentals paid 2 HERE 2 EREH (3.642) (346)
Interest element of lease rentals paid [REREiEN=C kel =EiEy) (238) -
Total changes from financing cash flows BEREARBLBRE S (346)
_Exchange adjustments EX®=E (0)) ().

Other changes: Hih B8 :
Increase in lease liabilities from entering FRRBEIFT I HEE >
into new leases during the year HESEEM 4,520 202
Interest expenses (note 7) MEBER(ME7) 238 -
_Totalotherchanges ~~ Rt&=®m#s 00 12 . 202 |
At 30 June HA<AB=+H 4,351 514

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective method and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 July 2019 to recognise lease
liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. See
notes 2(c) and 19.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

17. REeEREHPEESRHEM
HEREER 2

17. Cash and Short Term Funds and
Other Cash Flow Information

(continued)

HERESRHAT

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c)

BEEFAGERERERZK

Amounts included in the consolidated statement of

cash flows for leases comprise the following: IBEELTIER
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
(Note)
(KiaE)
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Within operating cash flows KERERERN 9,060 6,146
Within financing cash flows BEHESREN 3,880 346
12,940 6,492
Note: As explained in note 2(c), the adoption of HKFRS 16 BfaE - A2z BE 0 KAR

BEBIREERE R HEIA
BEETHESHEZRE
REDEEE - ZELBREY

introduces a change in classification of cash flows
of certain rentals paid on leases. The comparative
amounts have not been restated.

FEEY -
These amounts relate to the following: ZEFEEE LI T /HES ¢
2020 2019
i —B-NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BHEFT
Lease rentals paid 2fEERES 12,940 6,492
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For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

18. Trade and Other Payables and 18. EZRHMEMNERR

Contract Liabilities EEARE
(a) Trade and other payables () EZRHMEMNER
As of the end of the reporting period, the aging MRI|ERARE BRBEXZAH
analysis of trade payables (which are included in B ZEMRRZRRIMM(EFTA
trade and other payables), based on the invoice date, B REMEBARIONT ¢
is as follows:
2020 2019
e —B-NE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BtaF BT T BHEF T
Within 3 months =@EBR 306,865 356,051
More than 3 months =@EB UL 6,529 7,611
Trade payables B B ETIR 313,394 363,662
Deposits received glize 10,259 8,909
Other payables and accruals HiESIRA R
&R 311,554 285,547
Deferred income EIEWA (i) 4,472 14,945
Derivative financial instruments: fTESmT A
— Foreign exchange forward —INEEEEE
contracts 114 -
639,793 673,063
Notes: B -
(i) All of the trade and other payables are expected to (i) FEES REMENIRRIITE
be settled or recognised as income within one year SHE—FREFIERBBA
or are repayable on demand. RAEREGERE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7 R & Bﬁﬁi

For the year ended 30 June 2020 #HZE=

18. Trade and Other Payables and
Contract Liabilities (continued)

(a)

Trade and other payables (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(if)

(iii)

Pursuant to the relocation agreement executed
on 16 November 2016 between the Grain
Bureau of YiXing City and Jiangsu Lam Soon
Flour Mills Company Limited (“JSLSF”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, government
compensation will be paid to JSLSF to compensate
the relocation of a flour mill plant in connection
with the construction of the new plant on the
relocated land, including among others, acquisition
of property, plant and equipment and associated
costs relating to the relocation. The full amount of
cash relocation compensation has been received
during the year ended 30 June 2020.

As at 30 June 2020, government compensation
of HK$68,108,000 (2019: HK$21,419,000) in
relation to the relocation was received. During the
year, expenditure relating to the plant relocation
project of HK$22,713,000 (2019: HK$7,766,000)
had been incurred. A corresponding amount of
government compensation was then credited to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss (see
note 6).

After offsetting the total estimated costs and
expenses relating to the relocation, the remaining
balance of HK$36,359,000 is deducted from the
carrying amount of leasehold land and property,
plant and equipment and consequently is
effectively recognised in profit or loss over useful
life of the assets by way of reduced depreciation
expense in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 2(t)(iv).

As at 30 June 2020, trade payables included
an amount due to a fellow subsidiary of
HK$1,586,000 (2019: HK$2,076,000) in relation
to purchase of goods from the fellow subsidiary,
which is unsecured, interest-free and to be settled
according to the contract terms.

As at 30 June 2020, other payables and accruals
included the amounts due to fellow subsidiaries of
HK$11,989,000 (2019: HK$11,944,000) in relation
to management fee expenses payable to the fellow
subsidiaries, which are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

“EFRAZSTHLFE

18. ES REMENRAR
EREE @)

B85 Kk EMENRR ()

Hiat : (#E)

(a)

HMIE(EE)BRAR | —2_FFEFR

(i)

(iii)

BEEETERRFEAAQT
2EME QA IEEIEE D
BRAR ([I&HMEIESE
¥l) R=ZB—X"E+—A8
TARBERTNRERZ

RHEEEXSF I&HEIES
MUREEEFRENRE
T EREHIR BEE
BEYE BERZEURRE
WMEBEEENEEER - 28
ﬁémLﬁFéﬁaﬂﬁi
ZERNA=ZTAHLE

__‘,_

EUE -

R-ZE-EBEEXA=1+H R
WEMWZIBGHERBYE
68,108,000t (= F— A& :
HHE21,419,000T) ° £ R
EELHEBRBEEERENX
HEB®D22 713,000T (==
— N B#7,766,0007T)
RS EBNHED S AL
EEZR(REKEES) -

B BIRBEE T 28
MARBX%E  BHEHBE
36,359,000t ATHE L # K Y
% BERREZREEST
& RIEEEAERFRT
TR ARP R - WIRRH
AL 2(t)(v) T8 2 & 5T BUER TR
DIFEEM -

R-ZBZZBFRA=1+H

DY ICEN IE@%EETTH%W
B AT E% 1,586,000t (=&
— N : B¥2,076,0007T) °
EREHERARNEBE A RRE
BN ZREAREKAR RE
RIRESEIRRIELE -

RZIEZZEFXA=+AH >
HihENFRARESTERAE
FEAEBRKE QB
11,989,000t (= &F— N5 :
HHE11,044,000T) ' ERE
BEMATRANMBATINER
BHY  ZREAREKR %
BRIRERERE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

18. Trade and Other Payables and 18. EZRHMEMNERR

Contract Liabilities (continued) SREE@®
(b) Contract liabilities b) ERAE
2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Advances received for goods to be sold FHEERBEKRER 39,369 28,232
Contract liabilities represent receipts in advances for cRAERELERRARER
sales of goods, giving rise to contract liabilities until EEIBAZAMEEZERE
revenue is recognised. &
Included in the contract liabilities as at 30 June RZBE-AEARA=+HNER
2019, a balance of HK$27,293,000 (1 July 2018: EEEY  EREFEERIAW
HK$28,383,000) was recognised as revenue in the AAEN7 293,000 (=ZF—N
current year. F+ A — B : 8 ¥ 28,383,000
JT) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

19. Lease Liabilities

19. HEEE

TREZJNAEEZHEAGEREMNRB

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the
current and previous reporting periods and at the date of

transition to HKFRS 16:

ABRSARRBEEEBYBREER
BTRERZBTENHR -

At 30 June 2020 At 1 July 2019 (Note) At 30 June 2019 (Note)

WZE-ZEXA=1H R-B-NEXR-BHE) RZE-NEXB=TRME)
Present Present Present
value value value
of the Total of the Total of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease ease lease
payments payments payments payments payments payments
REHE REHE RERE RERE RERE RERE
AR RE 588 [RBE R88  [(RzBE DEEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARFI ARFT BEFT BYEFT BEFT BYEFT
Within 1 year ~ER 2,767 2,920 2,366 2474 160 160
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERER 899 940 1,002 1,016 126 126
After 2 years but within S years  WEAEBRER 685 107 228 228 228 228
ool At 1,584 L S . A 34
4,351 4,567 3,596 3,718 514 514
Less: total future interest expenses  J5 - RRKISERLE (216) (122) -
Present value of lease liabilities HEERZEE 4,351 3,59 514
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the Bt - AREERAKIERTNBEDRER

modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 July 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to leases which were previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17. These liabilities have been
aggregated with the brought forward balances relating to
leases previously classified as finance leases. Comparative
information as at 30 June 2019 has not been restated
and relates solely to leases previously classified as finance
leases. Further details on the impact of the transition to

HKFRS 16 are set out in note 2(c).

MIE(ERB)BRLAR | — B2 FFRH

EBMBIREERNE SR RAER
TE-NFLtA-BZHWER 0 U
BRELNRBETBSTENE T
FOERAEEHECHENB 2AE
B -ZEEEETADEABER
B AAGHRENEE - RZ2—N
FRAZTHZEBRENLEFTEE
3 BEHEARSBARMEREZHE
B - ARHBEEEBUBREE
B+ MR EE-THFRR
MizE2(c) ©
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1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

20. Deferred Taxation

20. IEFEFIH

(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (a) CORIREEREEERESE:
recognised:
(i) Movement of each component of (i) FEEHIEEEREMEHEE
deferred tax assets and liabilities BE
The components of deferred tax liabilities/ RiFE MR RKRERR
(assets) recognised in the consolidated ZELEHREBEEE (EE)
statement of financial position and the HERFAZESFHMNT :
movements during the year are as follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of
the related Undistributed
Deferred tax arising from: EEREELE depreciation  Provisions  Tax losses profits Total
REEHE
BEEENE by HHER  AOENE fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
At 1 July 2018 RZE-N\FtA-H 1471 (38) (4,027) 1,330 4,736
Charged/(credited) to REAEERIR/GIA)
consolidated statement of  (#f5283))
profit or loss (note 8(a)) 1,096 (19) (735) 6,653 6,995
At 30 June 2019 RZB-NERA=TA 8,567 (57) (4,762) 7,983 11,731
At 1 uly 2019 R=Z-NFtA-A 8,567 651 (4762) 7,983 1,731
Charged/(credited) to REEEHENR /(G
consolidated statement of  (#32843))
profit or loss (note 8(a)) 502 (44) (437) 7,765 7,786
At 30 June 2020 RZE-EEXA=1H 9,069 (101) (5,199) 15,748 19,517
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

20. Deferred Taxation (ontinued) 20. EERIE )
Deferred tax assets and liabilities (a) CRIAECEHEEERARE:
recognised: (continued) (&)
(i)  Reconciliation to the consolidated (i) HEHBEMRRRZEE
statement of financial position:
2020 2019
—BEHF —E-hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFT BHEF T
Net deferred tax assets recognised  FAMRE BITSARIR TR
in the consolidated statement of BHERZIELER I
financial position FEE (26) -
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised R4E& BRI R
in the consolidated statement of ERRZIELERIE
financial position FaE 19,543 11,731
19,517 11,731
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (b) ARERELEHEBEEMS

(b)

At 30 June 2020, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the Group's
subsidiaries in the Mainland China amounted
to HK$763,541,000 (2019: HK$643,151,000).
A deferred tax liability has been recognised in
respect of undistributed profits of HK$314,960,000
(2019: HK$159,660,000) where there are
planned distributions from subsidiaries in the
foreseeable future. No deferred tax liabilities
have been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$448,581,000 (2019: HK$483,491,000) as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits will not be distributed by these
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

MIE(ERB)BRLAR | — B2 FFRH

NZBE-ZEAA=1+H EAH
AEBENPEKREZHBRRR
PTEHANENEFREEZELBE
763,541,000t (ZZE—NF : 8
#£643,151,0007T) - FEATH
Ko BEREAE®314,960,0007T
(ZZE—NF : #B¥ 159,660,000
7T) > WEBIR A RARR S IR
o Bt —EEEHBEEECDH
B2 o AL T IIEHIZEN
BAAKNKREBR  XERER
ARRRZEMBLARRATEES
FEDIRBRA > FRAMLARFEART
K58 #5448,581,000t (ZE— N
£ j81483,491,0007T) kD B
FEREBERAELHESS -

199



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

20. Deferred Taxation (continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

At 30 June 2020, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$280,774,000 (2019: HK$285,042,000) available
for offset against future taxable profits. A deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax
losses of HK$31,511,000 (2019: HK$28,861,000).
No deferred tax assets have been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$249,263,000 (2019:
HK$256,181,000) due to the unpredictability
of future taxable profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$28,509,000
(2019: HK$38,543,000) that will expire within
five years. Other losses can be carried forward

indefinitely.

At 30 June 2020, the Group had temporary
differences of HK$79,705,000 (2019:
HK$103,322,000) arising from impairment losses
of certain leasehold land and property, plant and
equipment provided in prior years. No deferred tax
assets have been recognised in respect of these
temporary differences due to the unpredictability of
taxable profits streams against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised in the

foreseeable future.
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AERELEBIREE

RZZEZZFXRA=1+H  &&
8 280,774,000 T (= &
— R & : #B%285,042,0007T) 7]
AR 30 5K 2R FE 2R B 0% Rl 9 B 7%
B - ER PR SEEERT
7B#31,511,000c (ZE— N F :
7B#528,861,0007T ) WIELEF 1B E
E o T &R 8 ¥ 249,263,000 7T
(ZE—NF : #B¥256,181,000
) AEHNAER BAKRRK
EANNATEEME > TR
REBRBELHRBEE - 5
S KBRNBEBETEEY
28,509,000 (= —NF : B
38,543,00070) B IEBHERAER
BHR o ELMhE 1B A LU IR Bt &
BEBHR o

AEBRUBFEASETHESL
WRME BRERREERE
BiE ZERBER-_ZE_-ZF
NRE=ZTHBAXREEELERY
79,705,000t (=& — 15 : B
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21. Share Capital

(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Eﬁ%iﬁ%’zﬁﬁi

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BZE—ZE-_ZF A B=1HILEE
21. B
Issued share capital () CDBEITRX
2020 2019
—EB-EHF —E—-NE
Number of Number of
shares shares
BpEE BpEE
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$°000
F BT F BT T

Ordinary shares, issued ER{TROCHE
and fully paid: il

At 1 July and 30 June RtA—BR
A~A=tH 243,354

672,777 243,354 672,777

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the
Company do not have a par value.

During the year, the Group purchased its own
ordinary shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited for the purpose of satisfying the
exercise of share options granted under the Group’s
share option scheme as follows:

For the year ended 30 June 2020:

Number of

RIBEEB(RBRPIH1356% » &
AEEERTBEAAEE

REERAREERTRODBEE
—H&"ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂlﬂi‘r REEEZER 0

REREABAHAETBHAX
%Fﬁﬁﬁﬁ’& AHRNEBRRIT

BE-Z-ZFAAZ=THLHF
E:

Highest Lowest

shares price paid price paid Aggregate
purchased per share pershare price paid

=-S5 =% -SF)

BARAG BRES BRER =5 Chy
Month/year F /A% £ BEE EE BB
‘000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
= BT BT BETF T
September 2019 —E-hEhAB 130 13.68 12.70 1,735
October 2019 —E-NEF+A 75 13.80 13.08 1,003
November 2019 —E-hE+—A8 47 14.40 13.90 666
December 2019 —E-hE+ZH 71 14.60 14.30 1,027
January 2020 —E"FF—H 50 15.28 14.60 749
March 2020 —E"FF=H 150 13.30 11.10 1,848
April 2020 —E-EFMA 55 12.50 12.00 675
May 2020 _q_qfﬁﬁﬁ 41 13.00 12.50 521
June 2020 —EBEENXNA 83 13.10 12.80 1,078
702 9,302
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21. Share Capltal (continued)
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(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

Issued share capital (continued) (a)

For the year ended 30 June 2019:

21. & (@)

EBITRA(E)

BE-Z-NE~A=1+HLHE
E

Number of Highest Lowest
shares price paid price paid  Aggregate
purchased per share per share price paid

=5 Ch) =5 Ch)
BARS BRES BREE =5 Ch)
Month/year /A g2 BE BE BIERK
‘000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
F BT BT BEFT
August 2018 —Z2—-N\ENA 38 12.90 12.70 487
September 2018 —E-N\FEhA 260 12.90 12.54 3,304
October 2018 —Z2-N\%+A 158 12.80 12.50 2,002
November 2018 —E-N\¥+-A 99 13.80 12.60 1,287
December 2018 —E-NE+ZA 130 14.28 13.66 1,822
January 2019 —E—-NEF—A 72 14.60 14.18 1,032
February 2019 —E-h&FE=A 35 15.20 14.58 521
March 2019 —E-NE=A 92 15.26 14.78 1,377
April 2019 —E-hAFMA 209 16.00 15.10 3,291
May 2019 —E-hERA 107 16.06 15.50 1,690
June 2019 —E-hERA 288 15.94 15.46 4,513
1,488 21,326

The considerations of the purchased shares for the
year ended 30 June 2020 of HK$9,302,000 (2019:

HK$21,326,000) were charged to ESOP reserve.

BE-Z_-_ZEFA~A=+HL
FEBEARMHNEBEARBY
9,302,000 L (=ZE—NF : BE
21,326,00078) W EETHAER
DREEFE T REZMEIBR ©

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

As at 30 June 2020, there were 5,864,000 (2019:
6,197,000) ordinary shares acquired and held by the
Group under the ESOP reserve for the purpose of
satisfying the exercise of share options granted to a
director and eligible employees.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

21. Share Capltal (continued)

(b)

21. A& (@)

Capital management (b) EXERE
The Group’s primary objectives when managing FrEBEBEANTIEZEEERE
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to REEBREASELSE  BEBAR
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue = &R &) E B E bk A S
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits WEE UKREBRAESERAE
for other stakeholders, by pricing products and BHE  MMmEEAERRIEHD
services commensurately with the level of risk and by R AEMFISAEREE FRFE ©
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and TEEEBR EHHEREERE
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance BT REE  LEESRED
between the higher shareholder returns that might HMIBERTAIREMEEsRSEEK
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the FEHRIFHNE NIRRT ERNER
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital BFRECZENEXESH  WEHERLK
position, and makes adjustments to the capital BIRENSCEHEREEBIELT
structure in light of changes in economic conditions. o
The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing REBUEZEELEEZRRSR
its equity-debt ratio and cashflow requirements, EREZEHB RN IEE B RRIE
taking into account of its future financial obligations BEEREEZEXRAEE -BFRER
and commitments. For this purpose, the Group It REEBEZEHREERE
defines equity-debt ratio as the ratio of the total BARATBRREGEAEREFE
equity attributable to equity shareholders of the BHtE=x - FEHREBRHEHEAE
Company to net debt. Net debt represents lease WRERERES -
liabilities less cash and short term funds.
At 30 June At 1July At 30June
2020 2019 2019
R-Z-2F R-ZE-NF RZZ-hF
AB=tH tB—H RA=+H
(Note) (Note)
(Hrzt) (HraZ)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T
Lease liabilities HESE 4,351 3,596 514
Less: Cash and short term funds BBEENEHES (1,529,608) (1,317,927) (1,317,927)
Net liquid funds ERBES (1,525,257)  (1,314,331)  (1,317,413)
Total equity attributable to equity 72 RIRR RAE(G B RS
shareholders of the Company 2,476,897 2,323,830 2,323,830
Equity-debt ratio EREK = 100:0 100:0 100:0
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the Bt - AREEERAEET WREERD

modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 July 2019 to recognise lease
liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.
Under this approach, the comparative information
is not restated. See note 2(c).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

22. Reserves

204

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

22. f#fE
The Company PN/
Share
Share option Revenue
capital reserve reserve Total
R FREERE
R f&tE W s &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFTT BEFTT BT BT T
At 1 July 2018 RZE-N\E
+tA—H 672,777 2,870 1,421,086 2,096,733
Profit for the year REERA - - 27,859 27,859
Exercise of share options TEZRMOERE - (2,160) (17,776) (19,936)
Equity settled share-based BREGEEURDAE
transactions w5 - 362 - 362
Final dividend paid in RAEFECDH
respect of prior year KEIRR B - - (65,705) (65,705)
Interim dividend paid in BRAFEEEN
respect of current year HERRR B - - (34,070) (34,070)
At 30 June 2019 RZE-hERB=1+H 672,777 1,072 1,331,394 2,005,243
At 1 July 2019 NZZE-NF
+HA—H 672,777 1,072 1,331,394 2,005,243
Profit for the year REEEF - - 145,305 145,305
Exercise of share options T2 RO RIERE - (1,150) (7,770) (8,920)
Equity settled share-based BEREECURGAE
transactions BR5 - 78 - 78
Final dividend paid in BRAFEEH
respect of prior year FHEIRR B - - (73,006) (73,006)
Interim dividend paid in MAFEECH
respect of current year hER R B - - (34,070) (34,070)
At 30 June 2020 RZBEZEFRA=1H 672,777 - 1,361,853 2,034,630
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—Z—_THA=1+HILEE

22. Reserves (continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Surplus reserves

Surplus reserves include statutory surplus reserve
and discretionary surplus reserve.

In accordance with Accounting Regulations for
Business Enterprises, foreign investment enterprises
in Mainland China are required to transfer at least
10% of their profit after taxation, as determined
under accounting principles generally accepted in
the PRC (“PRC GAAP") to the statutory surplus
reserve until the balance of the reserve is equal to
50% of their registered capital.

ESOP reserve

The ESOP reserve comprises the purchase
consideration for issued shares of the Company
acquired for the purpose of satisfying the exercise
of share options granted to a director and eligible
employees under the Company’s Share Option
Scheme.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve comprises the cumulative fair
value of employee services received for the issue of
share options at respective grant date and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies in
note 2(q)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises: (a) the foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong whose functional currencies are different
from the functional currency of the Company; and
(b) the exchange differences on monetary items
which form part of the Group’s net investment in the
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 2(u).

22. @

EERBEMERAR :

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

MIE(ERB)BRLAR | — B2 FFRH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 #HZE=

Reserves (continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group: (continued)
(v) Revenue reserve

The distributable reserves of the Company at 30
June 2020 amounted to HK$1,361,853,000 (2019:
HK$1,331,394,000).

Equity Settled Share-Based
Transactions

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (the “ESOS 2013")
was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 23 April 2013 and
took effect on 25 April 2013 to, among other, allow grant
of options over newly issued shares and/or transfer of
existing shares by a trust of the ESOS 2013 (the “Trust”)
which was established between the Company and a trustee
of the Trust, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

Options granted under the ESOS 2013 are subject to
achievement of performance-based vesting condition. The
option shall lapse on the date the grantee ceased to be an
employee of the Group or the performance-based condition
is not satisfied. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company and is
settled gross in shares.

As at 1 July 2019, there were 1,035,000 (1 July 2018:
3,105,000) outstanding options pursuant to the ESOS
2013. During the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019,
no share options were vested to the grantees under the
ESOS 2013. No share options granted to the grantees were
lapsed or cancelled during the years ended 30 June 2020
and 2019 and 1,035,000 (2019: 2,070,000) share options
were exercised by the grantees during the year ended 30
June 2020.

22.

23.

EEERASTHILERE

R

SERE2HEERARE  (B)
(v) WA E
i NN £ F XA

=tHzZA% Eﬂ{zﬁﬁ%,ﬁﬁ%
1,361,853,000 t (=& — L &F :
7##51,331,394,0007T) ©

BERBEEZURGA
ERRS

20131THRAER 7 SR B RS2 ( 2013
BHRABEETE DR =_ZE—=FTA
TH=ZARAERTABRRESH RS L ER
RittE > WR=_F—=FMA=-+HA
£ HPBERBEFRESRIBTR
B RBEB2013R D RBEETEIRNE
F(EFD) (EERALQTEERZET
ZETAFRY  MEBEAABRERZ
2EMBAT) °

RIBE2013RDRBRETEFIRE Z2RE
E2EBIRBEMIRGBEZE - K#H
RBERARAFLAREBZETI 2
HRRBEZETRITIEERFAN - BHR
PREERFEEARBARAQAT —RE
BROERR AR MDBIEEE

RZE—hFtA—A8  RE2013KB%H
FROEBRESTE) » 251,035,000 =F—N\F
+tA—R: 3105000)}%&ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ2 R
B -REBEZZE-FER-ZZE-LEAX
A=+HILEE $E‘<}F2013foﬁ BB
STERERERARBRERE - NE
EEZ_EFR_FT— niz\ﬁ +H
LFE RERTERAZRBREIN
HECEURREZE-_SE-_FFE~A=1
HILFE » BIRAITEH1,035,000(=F
— & 1 2,070,000) IREDEEHE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

23. REREEZURNDA

23. Equity Settled Share-Based
Transactions (continued)

HEBXZ @)

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are (a) BHZGERMEHEDT :
as follows:
ESOS 2013: 20131 R B RERT &) ¢
Number of
instruments Contractual
at grant date  Exercisable period life of options
BRERHRBEHE ATEHE ABESHH
Options granted to a director:
RRERT 28
- 28 June 2013 (Batch 1) 1,250,000  From the date of notification of entitlement 4 years
-RZE-=EXB=+/\B(#%E1) (“Vesting Date") up to 6 months from
the Vesting Date
RESAEREIBERN(EERM)EE k3
BERASBAEARTE
From the 13th month up to the 18th month from 5 years
the Vesting Date
REBRBEET=EAZE T \EABETE G
From the 25th month up to the 30th month from 6 years
the Vesting Date
REBRREE-tEEAZE=TEABRTE NE
- 28 June 2013 (Batch 2) 3,750,000  From the Vesting Date up to 6 months from 4 years
-RZE-=ZEXAZTNR(E2) the Vesting Date
REBBHEAEARTE k3
From the 13th month up to the 18th month from 5 years
the Vesting Date
REBRBEET=EAZE T \ERHBETE g3
From the 25th month up to the 30th month from 6 years
the Vesting Date
REBRREE-tEEAZE=TEABRTE ~NE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

23. Equity Settled Share-Based 23. BREBHFEZURG R
Transactions (continued) Eﬁ%fi% (4&)
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are (@) BHZERNEHENT : (&)
as follows: (continued)
ESOS 2013: (continued) 2013k 1D RREERERTE] - (48)
Number of
instruments Contractual
at grant date  Exercisable period life of options
BRURHREREHE AIEHE ABESHE
Options granted to eligible executives:
ABERTRERITHAS
- 28 June 2013 (Batch 1) 2,400,000 From the Vesting Date up to 6 months from 4 years
-RIE-ZExXAZHNA R the Vesting Date
REBRHEABARTE k3
From the 13th month up to the 18th month from 5 years
the Vesting Date
REBRHEET=EAZET/\EABETE Gg:
From the 25th month up to the 30th month from 6 years
the Vesting Date
REBRBEE-tREAZE=HEASBRETHR NE
- 28 June 2013 (Batch 2) 7,200,000 From the Vesting Date up to 6 months from 4 years
-RIE-ZExXA A (#E2) the Vesting Date
REBRHEABARTE k3
From the 13th month up to the 18th month from 5 years
the Vesting Date
REBRHEET=EAZET/\EABETE Gg:
From the 25th month up to the 30th month from 6 years
the Vesting Date
REBRBEE-tREAZE=HEASBRETHR NE
- 26 November 2014 900,000 From the Vesting Date up to 6 months from 3 years
-RZE-WE+-A=T5RA the Vesting Date
REBE RS8R RTE =
From the 13th month up to the 18th month from 4 years
the Vesting Date
REBRHEET=EAZET/\EABETE k3
From the 25th month up to the 30th month from 5 years
the Vesting Date
REBRBEE-tRMEAZE=HEASBRETHR g3
Total share options granted 15,500,000
RARBERT A
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R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

23. REREEZURNDA

Transactions (continued) ERRZ @
(b) The number and weighted average (b) ROZPBENEE RMNEFS
exercise prices of share options are as TEEMT :
follows:
ESOS 2013: 2013 MR ABRERT I
2020 2019
b 2.2 “B-hF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
itk S IET g
CagEd REEYE T8 R A
HKS$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT F BET F
Outstanding at the RED KRBT
beginning of the year 4.79 1,035 4.90 3,105
Exercised during the year RERTE 4.79 (1,035) 4.79 (2,070)
Outstanding at the end REREREITHE
of the year - - 4.79 1,035
Exercisable at the end RERTTE
of the year - - - -

The options outstanding at 30 June 2019 under
the ESOS 2013 had weighted average exercise
price of HK$4.79 and weighted average remaining
contractual life of 0.9 year.

MIE(ERB)BRLAR | — B2 FFRH

RZE-NEXB=1+H: %
2013 A ARBRESTEIP » HRIT
FRRDRBEMERIGTEE
BBEEA 79T AR MEF IR R
EHHA0.9%F -
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23. Equity Settled Share-Based
Transactions (continued)

210

(c)

Fair value of share options and
assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on Black-Scholes model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into this
model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions of ESOS
2013:

23. REREEZ2URNGDA
BERERXZ @

(0 KROIBEENLIFEENRR

ERETROIBEBRMURY
NAFEBEESEMETAEE
MAFEETE ERHBROR
BREAVEERRE [HIR—EF
ET RAEE - RODBENS
WHREZEENBAE -

RORBEBELDTEER2013KRD
E R

26 November 2014 20 November 2013 28 June 2013

Grant date REAH ZE-MET-AtRA ZE-ZE+-AZtH ZB-=EXAZTNA

Fair value at measurement date RtEAZATER HK$0.883 - HK$1.083 HK$1.090 - HK$1.739 HK$0.456 - HK$1.060

BI50.883 B 10837 BH1.0007T-BH 1739 BH0.4567T-15%1.0607T

Share price k& HK$6.75 HK$5.75 HK$4.58

6757 5 757 L 58T

Exercise price 18 HK$6.80 HK$4.62 HK$4.62

BH6.807T B4 62T BT

Expected volatility BHRiE 26.46% - 27.81% 23.33% - 35.04% 27.20% - 35.99%

Option life DREES 2.6 years - 4.6 years 0.6 year - 5.6 years 1 year - 6 years

26E-4.6%F 0.65-56%F 1E-65

Expected dividend yield BHREE 3.1% 3.1% 3.5%

Risk-free rate ERRAE 0.49% - 1.07% 0.20% - 1.25% 0.24% - 1.37%
(based on Exchange Fund Note) (RENEESEE)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

AR 0 T3 AR 1B 4B 1E R iR i B
(FIETRIEIRAD 3 B RY I ¥
FRIERE) - LRBABFRENE
BEARRRIENABEEFELRA
B - HHRENBREBEREM
BE EX@ABEBRRITHA
FEEMTERNEATE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
is primarily attributable to trade receivables. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash
and short term funds and derivative financial assets
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with a good credit rating, for
which the Group considers to have low credit risk.
The Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 37% (2019: 37%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s five largest
customers.

2. BERBEER N TVE

(=l

AEEEEREEBRETEYEE R
BES  MERREBER AEEERY
ZUHERERBRASERN 2 EREER
RMEFRRRF L ZRBEHIAT -

(a)

MIE(ERB)BRLAR | — B2 FFRH

FERR

FERABRERZFERREGNE
EFMEFAEEMBERZRA
o AEEZEERBERRH
B EWIRA - ARBEAEHER
EREAPETRITESMEEZ
FERBIER  ERARXSZA
REBRFFEFRZEBETRE
BEE EEERUABAEKH
HEZ EERBERE - AEEL
ERHEMEFAEEEKREER
ok

B 5 EWAR

TEEEBZEERAREIESR
BEEZEBBERMIERTFLEEE
BAEZITESERTE » B
It BEREREERBEZRLR
SEHRERE P 2B K=k
HIR o RIREHKRE > BEFEW
BRAMBEZ37% (ZE—NF
37%) BEWAREEEREF 2R

=
o
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24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

212

(a)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Credits are offered
to customers following financial assessments and
established payment records where applicable.
Credit limits are set for all customers and these are
exceeded only with the approval of senior company
officers. Customers considered to be with credit risk
are traded on a cash basis. General credit terms are
payment within 30 to 60 days following the sales
took place. Regular review and follow up actions
are carried out on overdue amounts to minimise
the Group’s exposure to credit risk. Collaterals over
properties are obtained from certain customers.
An ageing analysis of the debtors is prepared on a
regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise
any credit risk associated with these debtors.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience indicates
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.
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For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(a)

24. I ERBEERAFE
)

Credit risk (continued) () FEERKE)
Trade receivables (continued) BESEWR (E)
The following table provides information about the THREHBEBEASERE S EK
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade A EE2EERRNRBHE
receivables: BEE2ER
2020 2019
e Sp 22 —E2-NF
Gross Gross
carrying Loss carrying Loss
amount  allowance amount allowance
IREAE EEEE IREAE EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000
BEFT BT BT BEF T
Current (not past due) BIEA (SREHA) 285,109 = 312,392 -
Less than 3 months BEDR=EA
past due 24,182 - 31,185 -
More than 3 months BIERRE R =18 A
past due 1,278 (410) 6,509 (556)
310,569 (410) 350,086 (556)

The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome of expected credit losses and is adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has
been collected, current conditions and also forward-
looking information including the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

MIE(ERB)BRLAR | — B2 FFRH

ZAERREAREEBR 2B
MR WETHE  URR
MRl EZE LS 2 &R
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For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

24. Financial Risk Managementand 24. BiIREKREER A FLE

Fair Values (continued) E(,{;—E}
(a) Credit risk (continued) () FEERKE)
Trade receivables (continued) B S ENARR (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect AEEEZEWERR ZEIERE
of trade receivables during the year is as follows: AERREMD 2 Z BT ¢
2020 2019
ft et 222 —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Atbeginning ofyear  ®® .
Amounts written off during the year REEMESE (224) (137)
Loss allowance recognised during REEEFBERERR
the year 93 228
sy 91
_Exchange adjustments Ex#=® (1) —— (18),
At end of year FR 410 556
(b) Liquidity risk (b) RBESER
The Group closely monitors its liquidity and financial AEBEZYERERBE S
resources to ensure that a healthy financial position BER  UBRRESERWETT
is maintained such that cash inflows from operating MR FREEEEENAMBIR
activities together with un-drawn banking facilities T BREARBANRITERE
are sufficient to meet the requirements for loan B BEUEREEZENR - BEE
repayments, daily operational needs, capital B2 EBEXEY UREBREBER
expenditure, as well as potential business expansion BRNBEESEE -
and development.
The Group reviews its strategy from time to time AEBAERITEMBERE - B
to ensure that cost-efficient funding is available to HWREFHEERANENHRER
cater for the unique operating environment of each ¥ UEEHNEBELARBENEE

subsidiary. RIE o

214 Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

. Financial Risk Management and 24. I B EKREER A LE

Fair Values (continued) B

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBEELERE)
The following tables show the remaining contractual TRIINAEECREBENRRE
maturities at the end of the reporting period of MARBZBTENZEE 8T
the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based EHNAHENREVRITERS
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including RE(BEMNBHNERZS (3
interest payments computed using contractual rates BIEREHABBANAETE
or, if floating, based on rates prevailing at the end of ZREAEH)URAEFBTHER
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group TRZHREAHEE

can be required to pay:

2020
i
Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or within within
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years
BRARR —ER —EhE MENL

REE HREREAR K ERENR BREENR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E¥TR E¥TR E¥TR E¥TR E¥TR

Trade payables ERRAER 313,394 313,394 313,394 - -
Other payables and accruals Hit AR RETER 311,554 311,554 311,554 - -
Lease liabilities (note) REEREWZ) 4,351 4,567 2,920 940 107

629,299 629,515 627,868 940 707
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For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

24. Financial Risk Managementand 24. BiIREKREER A FLE

Fair Values (continued) {E(,{g}
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) HREBELEE)
2019
ZB-NE

Total More than More than
contractual Within Tyearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or within within
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years
BNRRR —FR —FHE WERL

REE REREAE 25 BEEAR EEFAUR
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
ERTn  E¥Fr  ERTn  E¥Fr ERTx

Trade payables EARRES 363,662 363,662 363,662 - -
Other payables and accruals Hit SRR ETER 285,547 285,547 285,547 - -
Lease liabilities relating to leases BEABEEAEHERNS
previously classified under TEHAEAREREY
HKAS 17 as finance leases RENE HESE 514 514 160 126 228
649,723 649,723 649,369 126 228
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the Ba - REBERBRIETERED
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the WMERAB B BEHREERSE
opening balances at 1 July 2019 to recognise lease TARERAEA-_Z—IEFL
liabilities relating to leases which were previously B— B4R LR
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. ERIREEBETTEAE T+
Other lease liabilities include amounts recognised FAEAKEREZHENRE
at the date of transition to HKFRS 16 in respect Z2HEE8E - RIBUFE
of leases previously classified as operating leases BERUTEES - FEEHRN
under HKAS 17 and amounts relating to new leases FEE2(0) ©

entered into during the year. Under this approach,
the comparative information is not restated. See
note 2(c).
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For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

24. Financial Risk Managementand 24. IR EREER A FLE

Fair Values (ontinued) B
(c) Interest rate risk () FI=mEp
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIFEHER
The following table details the interest TRFEVNRREHLB
rate profile of the Group's interest earning rEEZHECREER
financial assets and interest bearing financial TESRMEERRER

liabilities at the end of the reporting period:

2020 2019
ZECER “E-hE
Effective Effective
interest Carrying interest Carrying
rate p.a. amount rate p.a. amount
ERER=E REE BRENZ RAEE
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
BYEFT BETT
Fixed rate financial assets/ EESHE
(liabilities): BE/(86):
Deposits with banks RITEHEN 236 1,231,791 296 1,050,192
Lease liabilities (note) HEaE(hZ) 4.77 (4,351) - (514)
1,227,440 1,049,678
Variable rate financial assets: FELREE .

Cash at bank RITER 1.27 258,929 1.32 233,648
Total &t 1,486,369 1,283,326
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 M REBERAKEETH
using the modified retrospective approach BWENRERS S
and adjusted the opening balances at 1 July MR EERE+ <
2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating HRABR-ZT—N
to leases which were previously classified as FtA—BZHE
operating leases under HKAS 17. Under this BR - LIFERREE £ ATAR
approach, the comparative information is BEEBSEASE
not restated. See note 2(c). TEESEARKER

ExHEHEEZEE
8E - RIBUFE
kHERLEFEE
H oo FBHRME
2(c) e
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24. B EBEER X TVE

24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

218

() Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2020, it is estimated that general
increase/decrease of 0 to 7 basis points
(2019: 0 to 50 basis points) in interest rates
for the Group’s interest earning financial
assets and interest bearing financial liabilities
denominated in various currencies, mainly
Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
States dollars, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased
the Group’s profit for the year and revenue
reserve by approximately HK$157,000 (2019:
decreased/increased of HK$348,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax (and revenue reserve) that would
arise assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the
impact on the Group’s profit after tax (and
revenue reserve) is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest income of such a change
in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis as for 2019.

B

() F=EbE)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases which give rise to
receivables, payables and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily United States
dollars (“US$"), Renminbi (“RMB"), Hong Kong
dollars ("“HK$"), Macau Patacas ("MOP"), New
Zealand dollars (“NZ$") and Euro (“EUR").

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements
of operations outside Hong Kong into the
Group's presentation currency and exposure
arising from inter-company balances which
are considered to be in the nature of interest
in subsidiaries are excluded.

24. I ERBEERAFE
)

(d) E¥EE

AEEEHNERRR  EBR
BEREEMEE ZRBWIRMN - &
NRARREEER  ZERET)
BN - IRBSREH 2D
BEEB LN EREETE - SMER
BMEBRAET  ARY -8
W ORI AR RET

() AZZIERE

TRAAEERBEHL
B NHEEQANEER
UHNERHENCHERE
EREEMEAZ ZIER
BRAEH MDA - IR
BB 2 B TR
EREEZ2FEBUR
BANBLARRRMEE 2
EELABzES®RZE
B U FAEEER -

Exposure to foreign currencies (Expressed in original currency)

i
MOPUOD  NZSOOD  EUROOD  HKSOO0  RMBOOO  USSOO0  AOPOOO  NZSIO0
ke AEERTE  Bitn ENPn ARRTE Eifn AORTR AEERTR

HKS'000  RMBYO00  USS'000
BT AR EifA

EXAERR(ARENHE)
2019
k3

Trade and other receiables EARERBUER - - 1
Other non-current assets AfReEs = - -
Cash and short term funds BeREDES 510 13875 12,980
Trade and other payables EARERENER (62) - (0w
Amounts dusl(to)from group companes B/ (B EMATRE 26,151 @)

5,33 = - 31,09 - - 201 -

- 1w - - - - -
I - S ongm 5 - -
S

Gross exposure arising from recognised BEFEERERRLNE

asets and lbiles BRESE %59 1383 1088
Notional amounts of foreign exchange AT EESFABEZ

forward contracts atfarvalue thiough  SMEEHAUNZ 588

profit o loss - - 116

5,33 ) 1184 31,693 12917 12% 201 (40)

- 1,964 - - - - m

Net exposure arsing from recognised £ HEER &EEE 2
assets and liabiltes BRSE 26,599 13853 18,774

5,336 ) 3148 31,693 12917 12% 201 365
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24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continueq)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

220

24. B EBEER X TVE

B

(d) E¥EREE)

Sensitivity analysis (i) HBESIT
The following table indicates the TREY HEREBRIR
instantaneous changes in the Group’s profit EHARBFrmE EKER
after tax (and revenue reserve) that would ZINEEER - NEZ B EW
arise if foreign exchange rates to which BrESHAEBRERE
the Group has significant exposure at the i A (RO U &8 4 ) = B e
end of the reporting period had changed at #E - WERIZMBEEME
that date, assuming all other risk variables P BRI o
remained constant.
2020 2019
e “E-0F
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit (decrease) in profit
in foreign after tax in foreign after tax
exchange and revenue exchange  and revenue
rates reserve rates reserve
BB R BREEERIR
MHEE= K HEE= K
E/(FH)  #m/ (o) L#/ (TR #in/(8BD)
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
BETT BETT
RMB AR# 131 166 0.40 49
HK$ ot (1.31) (153) (0.40) (40)
us$ Er 0.28 495 0.63 56
MOP BRI (1.31) (51) (0.40) (6)
NZ$ ik 0.33 3) 0.06 1
EUR B 2.80 691 - -
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For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

2. BERBEER N TVE

24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit or loss after tax and revenue
reserve measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as for 2019.

(e) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured
at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

B

(d) E¥EREE

(i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2020 HBE-—Z_ZTHF A A=1HIEE

Fair Values (continued) E(,{?}

(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value (continued)

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not
available.

24. B EBEER X TVE

AVEEE )

() HKAFEETABZZHE
EREEE)

E_MBIMEME - &£
P — B A B
BEIRHEE—R
RIRER A B
B)HENQFE
B BTEfAE
RAAEEGAH
B RABEHA
HEBARERST

SEIE R ABIE ©
= Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured = E=MBIEE : &
using significant unobservable inputs. AEARTHEBER
ABBFTENAFE
B1E -
2020 2019
CECEf Sy
Level 1 Level2  Level3 Total  Level!  Level2  Level3 Total
T R R T
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
AT AEFr  EETr  ARfn Btir B¢ BT B
Recurring fair value measurements ~ EEHATEREIE
Assets i
Other non-current assets: Bt REEE
- Club membership -gf - m - m - 915 - 915
Derivative financial instruments: fESRIE:
- Foreign exchange forward contracts - e - 584 - 584 - 4 - 4
- 1,356 - 1,356 - 9% - %2
Liability 88
Derivative finandial intruments; fAemIE:
- Foreign exchange forward contracts -)EEAR - 114 - 114 - - - -

- During the years ended 30 June 2020
and 2019, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

2. BERBEER N TVE

24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of club membership in Level
2 is determined using market comparison
approach by reference to quoted prices in an
active market of financial assets similar to the
instrument being valued, adjusted for factors
unigue to the instrument being valued.

The fair value of foreign exchange forward
contracts in Level 2 is determined based on
quotes from market makers or alternative
participants supported by observable inputs
including spot and forward exchange rates.

Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

Apart from non-trade balances with
subsidiaries, all other significant financial
assets and liabilities are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values
as at 30 June 2020 and 2019. It is not
meaningful to disclose the fair value of non-
trade balances with subsidiaries because
there is no fixed term of repayment.

B

(e) ARV EEREME)

(ii)

(iii)

MIE(ERB)BRLAR | — B2 FFRH

HRARE=—RFI L2 FEE
FTERIEER MR AR
5B

IIEE Bz B8R 2R
FEERZEMNIAMERL
ZEMEERTBLBUL
ERTSE 2 TS RE
BUERIARZBERE
FLAGEE -

BUPESE — R Rz SN =
BREZAFEERUER
FHMTIESEEUAE
S A BB TS RE
REE  HhEENHRK
EHER o

FURFEEIRNZE
BERAMREZAFERE

MREAMB AR ZFE R
BN RZBEZEFRZ
E—-hEXB=1H"F
EHMEARERHEERE
BENERAEEEANTEER
WHEEBAREE o HREK
BRABIZHE R ERILE
EEERE  HHEELD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Eﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁi

For the year ended 30 June 2020 #HZE=

25. Commitments

“EFRAZTHLFE

25. RiE

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at the end of the () AEENRBEHLABUTER
reporting period not provided for in the financial FRYE R B A 3R AR 1 B 34
statements were as follows:

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Capital expenditure authorised and CRENCTNZ
contracted for EXAX 52,760 29,013
Capital expenditure authorised but not B EREBARTHZ
contracted for =N 157,845 135,260

(b) At 30 June 2019, the total future minimum lease (b) RH=T—hEXA=1+H KK
payments under non-cancellable operating leases FARzREREEBEEN
were payable as follows: ZEEBENFRBTEMNT ¢

Properties

LES

HK$°000

BT T

Within 1 year —&ER 2,712

After 1 year but within 5 years —FHBEEFR 711

3,423

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of AEBAZERBEINEESR

properties held under leases which were previously ERETEESE ﬁi‘“%"iﬂ‘sﬁ’ﬁ
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. BEYEZEBA  KEEKRH
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using BAERTHEBMENIRERE RN
the modified retrospective approach. Under this EIREERE+]5E  BIBERA
approach, the Group adjusted the opening balances RIETTHERE  AEEERZ
at 1 July 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating Z-NFELtAR—BRAEHDE
to these leases (see note 2(c)). From 1 July 2019 % U EEZSHEZHE
onwards, future lease payments are recognised as BEGFRHENNE20) - B=F
lease liabilities in the statement of financial position —nELB—HBE  REMFE2()
in accordance with the policies set out in note 2(j), 2 BE  RREEFRER

and the details regarding the Group’s future lease BBRRERAEAABEARS -
payments are disclosed in note 19. MmEBEREBRREENRZF

BRI 19 1% -

(c) At 30 June 2020, the Group had several non- (0 R=ZEBE-ZZHFEARBA=1+H 4%

cancellable purchase orders for raw materials with
its suppliers with an amount of HK$754,566,000
(2019: HK$768,624,000).
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26. Related Party Transactions

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

Key management personnel remuneration (a)

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
and certain of the highest paid employees is
disclosed in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements. Total remuneration is included in “staff
costs” (note 7).

26. BERAEALTZRS

FTEEE ASEHM

FTEEBAEZHH  BEXM
FARRAEERETHEESH
BENGREMBERRMTOWER
5 o HENAEERC T A TR T RA
A (RBIEE7) -

Material transactions with related parties (b) BEALTERRS
2020 2019
Nature of transactions XEHE —ECEE —E—hEF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BEFTT
Management fee expenses to fellow EEHEBEYHTFER
subsidiaries (note (i) MIB A 8l (aEa) 13,189 12,844
Purchase of goods from a fellow BIEEXEG]
subsidiary (note (ii)) EREBE R (HYaE (i) 11,849 2,102
Notes: B
(i) On 7 July 2017, two master services agreements (i) R-ZZE—tFtAtH  AQAFHEHE

(collectively, the “Master Services Agreements”)
were entered into by the Company with Guoline
Group Management Co. Limited ("GGMC")
and GOMC Limited ("GOMC") respectively,
both are subsidiaries of Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM"), the Company's
ultimate holding company, for provision by i)
GGMC of management services to the Company's
subsidiaries excluding, at any time, the subsidiaries
incorporated, resident or with operation in Hong
Kong (“Hong Kong Subsidiaries”) and; ii) GOMC
of management services to the Company and the
Hong Kong Subsidiaries.

The Master Services Agreements are for a term of
three years from 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2020.

MIE(ERB)BRLAR | — B2 FFRH

B # 1% I% A T Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad ([HLCM ) Z B2
7] » Guoline Group Management Co.
Limited ([ GGMC 1) & GOMC Limited
(rGomcCl) » B BIFT T W 1n AR £
R (SR [ ZERBEEHRD BN
H() GGMCEAR AR Z B A R (R E
EREMREESBRY > EHGE
EvHMBAREEBMBARDREE
ERT © R(i) GOMCEAR AR EE
M A R B RAS ©

ZEREEHBESNHH-_Z—tF
+B—RAZE=-ZE=-EFEXA=+AH "
BH=F o

225



26. Related Party Transactions
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Eﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁi

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE—ZE-—ZF A B=1HILEE

26. BEEEAT 2R F @)

(continued)
(b) Material transactions with related parties (b)
(continued)

(c)

Notes: (continued)

(i) On 29 August 2019, LS Synalife Trading Company
Limited (“LS Synalife”, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) entered into the distribution
agreement (the “Distribution Agreement”) with
Manuka Health New Zealand Limited (“MHNZ",
an indirect subsidiary of HLCM, the Company's
ultimate holding company), pursuant to which
MHNZ has agreed to appoint LS Synalife as the
distributor to distribute the full range of the
products of MHNZ (the “Products”) via certain
online channels in the PRC for the period from 1
July 2019 to 30 June 2020.

On 27 March 2020, a master distribution
agreement (the “Master Distribution Agreement”)
was entered into by the Company with MHNZ
to extend the distributorship of the Distribution
Agreement to a wider geographic and channel
coverage for the distribution of the Products of any
MHNZ and its subsidiaries by the Company and its
subsidiaries in the PRC and such other jurisdictions
as the parties may agree from time to time.

The Master Distribution Agreement is for a term
from 27 March 2020 to 30 June 2022.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to ()
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of
management fee expenses and purchase of goods
above constitute continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules are provided in section “Connected
Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2020

EXRBEALRS (#)

Hiet ()

(ii)

R-ZZ—-AENA=1+HhAE
FERESERAR(THE
Bl BRAQATAZEWE
AR EARDRREZER A
HICMz BEIFENHE A |
Manuka Health New Zealand
Limited ([ MHNZ 1) 3T 32 % %
W (T2 8EmE] - Bk
MHNZE R ZEH L E A D 5
ﬁéﬁ RZZE-hELA—HE

—TECEFXNA=1THLILE
Fﬁ RPEERE TR LEHEE
EEAEMHNZZEER(E

ml) e

R-ZE-ZEF=A=++H"

RN T EMHNZET 3 £ 2 $5 1
] FE @étﬁsm  LUBR S
HRBET 2O HEEBEEEZ
E’ﬁm& B BEXQARE
B A RRAE RN A8

TEBENEMEEREED 8
FAMHNZIIE R ©

EIREHBENHR-ZT =2
FZA-t+tHEE=Z=Z
FARB=THL-

FEBEXRS 2 LHRAZE

Rt

BREMEEEIHRRBERN
2ﬁgﬁﬁki§%$§ﬁit‘rﬁiﬂﬁﬂ

FULAEREZFERERS - £

MARABEUAEREZHBERES
SRENBEERS |—HFiRME -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE—Z_ZTHF A A=1HILEE

N B B Y M AR AR

27. Company-Level Statement of

Financial Position

27.

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERZE 230 277
Interest in subsidiaries MB D alER 885,346 883,682
Amounts due from subsidiaries AL NG B 966,760 920,869
1,852,336 1,804,828
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b EURBRFR 1,882 1,210
Cash and short term funds REREHES 346,370 347,050
348,252 348,260
Current liability REBEE
Other payables and accruals HAbFE(TERRX 17,243 8,229
17,243 8,229
Net current assets BREBEE 331,009 340,031
Total assets less current liability BEERABEMS 2,183,345 2,144,859
Non-current liability FREBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEHI B A Bl FRIE 148,715 139,616
NET ASSETS BEE 2,034,630 2,005,243
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EeREE
Share capital (note 21) BRA(BtEE21) 672,777 672,777
Reserves (note 22) R (ffaF22) 1,361,853 1,332,466
TOTAL EQUITY MR 2,034,630 2,005,243
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors KRHESENR_Z_ZFNA=-+tH
on 27 August 2020. HERFRETIZ o
WONG Cho Fai =HifmE TANG Hong Cheong ZfES
DIRECTOR = DIRECTOR EE
MIE(EB)BRAR | ZE_ZFFFR 227



28.

29.

30.

228

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0 7 R 3= Bﬁ%I

For the year ended 30 June 2020 #HZE=

Comparative Figures

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July 2019
using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, comparative information is not restated. Further
details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed in
note 2(c).

Immediate and Ultimate Holding
Company

At 30 June 2020, the directors consider the immediate
holding company to be Guoline International Limited,
which is incorporated in Bermuda and the ultimate holding
company to be HLCM, which is incorporated in Malaysia.
These entities do not produce financial statements available
for public use.

Possible Impact of Amendments,
New Standards and Interpretations
Issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 30 June 2020

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new
standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not
yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2020 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant
to the Group.

29.

30.

“EFRAZTHLFE

28.

g 2

AEECER-ZT-NFLtA-HIHEEK
REBYBRELERE /558 - REK
ARETNERE  KREHNEFEE
5l  BRASHBR 2B 2 E-DFE
REfEE2(0 PR -

EERERERAR

EERAR-ZE-_TFA~A=1THE
# ¥ B 2 3 B Guoline International
Limited * —BIRBREFMRI 2D
A MRAZZERATABHLCM > —RRE
RADEMRL AT c ELEERERE
IR ROIEAREA ©

BE_ZFTE_ZEF KA
=ETHLEFESEMGE
M RAERZELIEET - #
RINERARZREAREE
EHEE

%izzt‘ﬁﬂ%‘iﬁiﬂﬁ‘i‘ZEl EEGTED
AECEMEBE S _ZF<A=1H
LEFEEERER  FEERPFBREREK
BZHBETT R —IEHNTER - FEH
BHRELAUET LR [RESET] EF
BREETSITREEALERE -

all

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
=R 3-Heil!
BIRER

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a business

BRMBREENE =S [EHEE [2ER

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of material

BREERE SRR BRSNS N\R [ EELEE /28R

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

1 January 2020
—ZE-EF-F—H
1 January 2020
Z¥—-A—H

_7_

REBEFGEZFETRNRERNRD
ZEMEE  -HRBAAL HAZE
BIRBTEHAREGEMBRKRE
EERTE -
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The following list contains particulars of principal subsidiaries at 30

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
TEMERQ 7

At 30 June 2020 K=

EBFERA=T

REBZZEFNA=+TRABTENBARARE

June 2020: P
Place of incorporation/ Effective
Particulars of establishment and percentage of
Name of company issued capital operation equity holding Principal activities Notes
NAEH BRTZRAHE EREEEH REREEAL TERHR Mt
Group  Company
58  A4q
Changzhou Lam Soon Edible Oils  RMB40,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited AEK#40,000,000 China specialty fats products
ENEIEREERAE PEARLANE BERREREERES
Gladko Industries Limited 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding
EREXARAT UREBR i REER
Guangzhou Lam Soon HK$21,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Homecare Products Limited B#21,000,0007 China home care products
ENEEEZRRERAR hEARLAE FEEEERLERES
Hong Kong Flour Mills Limited 100 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Provision of trucks rental service
ERERHERL T 10,000 deferred shares &8 and investment holding
100REBR RUESERERREER
10,000 RIELE R
Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills US$7,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 7,000,000% 7 China flour products
THEIEENERAF hEARLNE BREREERES
Jiangsu Lam Soon Food US$10,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of NT
Company Limited 10,000,000 7T China flour products
THEERmERAT PEARLNE BRERLERES
Lam Soon (China) Holdings US$1 British Virgin Islands/ 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited 1£57 Hong Kong REER
ARGEBREE/ B
Lam Soon Cleaning & Caring 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Trading of home care products
Laboratories (Hong Kong) UREBER B REEBEERES
Company Limited
HIEEZERRE (FB)BRAR
Lam Soon Distribution 400,000 ordinary shares  Hong Kong 100 100 Trading of edible oils products
(International) Limited 400,000/ E3E R &5 REHERES
MBS (ER)ERAR
HIBE(EB)BRAA | ZE_SFF R 229



PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
TEMERQ 7

At30June 2020 R=Z=FF A=1

Place of incorporation/ Effective
Particulars of establishment and percentage of
Name of company issued capital operation equity holding Principal activities Notes
NEER ERTZRARE EREEEH RERREIL TERHE Wit
Group  Company
%58  A4d
Lam Soon Food Industries HK$ 11,858,415 British Virgin Islands 100 - Investment holding
(BVI) Limited 811,858 4157 ABEBRES REER
Lam Soon Food Supply 1,000 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited 500,000 deferred shares ~ &i# RERR
HERmAEERAF 1,000REER
500,000 B R
Lam Soon Food Supply (Macau) MOP25,000 Macau 100 4 Trading of flour, edible oils and
Company Limited TBP9#25,0007 B home care products
HERRMECRN)ERAR B RRRRFEEEERES
Lam Soon (Pan Yu) Industries 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited UREBR BA REER
HIE(EE) IEERAR
Lam Soon Products Supply 1,000,000 ordinary shares  Hong Kong 100 - Manufacturing of edible oils and
(Hong Kong) Company Limited 1,000,000 & &M% Bk trading of flour, edible oils and
HIEERME(EE)ERAF agency products
REMLERER  RAMR
REERES
Lam Soon Realty Limited 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Property holding, the provision of
HIESERRAR UREBR Bk warehousing and logistic services
and licenses of factory canteen
NEEE - RERRNMRRBER
IRREHREE
Lam Soon (Shandong) Food US$10,113,100 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 10,113,100% 1T China flour products
FIE(LR) RMERAR hEARLNE BRERLEERES
Lam Soon (Sichuan) Food US$7,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 7,000,000 7T China flour products
HEmNRRERAE hEARLNE BRERLERES
Lam Soon Silos Investments Limited 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding
HEFEREBRAR URERR 5 REER
Lam Soon Systems Limited 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Provision of information
HIBZGERA A UREBR Bk technology services
RATEMBER RS
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
TEMERQ 7

At 30 June 2020 WA=

TTFEARA=T

Place of incorporation/ Effective
Particulars of establishment and percentage of
Name of company issued capital operation equity holding Principal activities Notes
NEER BRITZRAHE EREEHH RERREIL TERB Wit
Group  Company
%58  A4d
Lam Soon Trademark Limited Us$2 Cook Islands/ 100 - Trademark holding
VES Hong Kong BEEE
NREE/BE
LS SynaLife Trading 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Trading and distribution of
Company Limited UREBR Bt products and investment holding
HEEEZBRAT EFRDHERRREER
LS SynaLife Trading (Shanghai) RMB7,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Trading and distribution of NT
Company Limited AK%7,000,000 China products
BEEHE (LB)ERAR HEARLNE ESRAHER
Richly Choice Development Us$1 British Virgin Islands 100 100 Provision of trustee services
(PTC) Limited 1£7 EBERARES REETRE
Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills US$27,500,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 27,500,000% 7% China flour products
OEIEENERAF hEARLNE BRERLERES
Shekou Lam Soon Silo US$9,500,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Provision of silo facilities NT
Company Limited 9,500,000£ 7 China REFERE
EOBRERAERAR HEARLNE
Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils US$12,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company, Limited 12,000,000% T China edible oils products
RYIE BB R A B hEARLAE RABEREERES
Note: Kzt :
N1 These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-owned-foreign N1 ZEMBLARRPEAREMNBEAEUIG

BENREHRAM -

companies under PRC Laws.
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LFEMBEHRE

FEEBEHEMRFENESE EERAE
RADRRREEAEDZGROT

The summaries of results, assets and liabilities of the Group and
total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for

the last five financial years are as follows:

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—B-%F "F-NF SE-N\F Bt ZB-RE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BlEEErT BERErT BERErT BEREr BEEER
Results E
Revenue WA 5,119 5,316 5,374 4,814 4,708
Operating profit before interest, ARIMBRFEZH ~ H1E -
taxation, depreciation and WERBHENEEER
amortisation 436 433 428 369 324
Profit attributable to equity v UNSIE il
shareholders of the Company 317 340 326 273 202
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Non-current assets FRBEE 692 725 684 698 727
Net current assets FRBEE 1,806 1,622 1,491 1,209 1,005
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (21) (12) (5) (M (M
Non-controlling interests FiEFIER - (1) (1) (11) (11)
Total equity attributable to equity 77 RIRR B FE(G A HE %
shareholders of the Company 2,477 2,324 2,159 1,895 1,720

232
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FSC

www/sc.org

MIX

Paper from
responsible sources

FSC™ C120915

© Copyright Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited. All Rights Reserved.

The FSC™ logo identifies products which contain wood and virgin fibre from responsible sources
certified in accordance with the rules of the Forest Stewardship Council®
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